





His Excellency, Governar Christopher T. Sununu
and fl Honorable Council
Page 30f3

As referenced in Exhic™ A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2} additional years,

conting * e funding, agreement of the parties and
wert cercising its option to renew at this time.
A st indivy T in
v € d ontl & Jis

enhance and sustain recovery that, in some cases, prevents untimely deaths. Without an increase
in fundsthe = ractors will be unable to cover the cost of these serv s,

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.959/FAIN #TI0B3041; CFDAY3.788/FAIN #Ti0B1685 AND
#TI083326

in the evant that the Federa! or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respecifully submitted,

0’%’% gM@mﬂﬂ/
Lori A Shibinatte
Commiissionss
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {("State” or
“Department”) and Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc. ("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract"} approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 2, 2020 (ltem #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price ||m|tat|on or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
~in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$135,650
2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1, Subsection 1.20., Paragraph 1.20.4 to read:

1.20.4 The Contractor shall utilize the WITS system for individuals who are in a program funded or
overseen by the Department, including:

~

1.20.4.1. Individuals receiving BDAS-funded SUD treatment services;

1.20.4.2 Individuals receiving services from Impalred Driver Care Management Programs
{IDCMP}; and

1.20.4.3 Individuals receiving services from Impaired Driver Service Prowders {IDSP),
‘regardiess of funding source.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.20, by adding Paragraph 1.20.5to
read:

1.20.5 The Contractor may use WITS to enter information for non-BDAS clients, as approved by
the Department, if the Contractor was utilizing WITS prior to contract year 2019 and did not
have an alternative electronic health record available for use.

4. Modify Exhibit B Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.20, by adding Paragraph 1.20.6 to
read:

1.20.6 The Contractor shall cease utilizing WITS if a client enrolls in Medicaid, obtains private
health insurance, or receives funding assistance from a private organization while in
treatment, unless otherwise approved by the Department.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Section 5, Subsection 5.3, Credits and Copyright Ownership to update the heading
title, to read:

5.3. Credits, Copyright Ownership, and Licenses
6. Modify Exhibit B, Section 5, Subsection 5.3, by adding Paragraph 5.3.5 to read:

5.3.5. Effective May 1, 2021, if a Contractor publicly references or markets their use of American
Society of Addiction Medicine criteria, or utilizes language related to American Society of

Addiction Medicine levels of care in promotion or marketing of their services, the Cfnggactor

58-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02-A01 Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc. Contractor Initials:

A-5-1.0 Page1of 4 Date:s/ls/2021
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shall:

5.3.5.1. Sign and have in effect, Exhibit L, Amendment #1 Sample End User License
Agreement with the State of New Hampshire prior to such referencing or marketing.

5.3.5.2. Comply with the executed End User License Agreement, or shall otherwise not be
permitted to publicly reference or market the use of anything related to American Society of
Addiction Medicine.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 6, to read:

6. Additiocnal Billing information for Room and Board for Medicaid Clients in residential level of care
who have Opioid Use Disorder (OUD} or Stimulant Use Disorders, as defined in the SOR Grant.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

The Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board payments up to $100
per day for Medicaid clients with OUD or Stimulant Use Disorders in residential level
of care. -

With the exception of room. and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor
shall not bill the Depariment for Room and Board payments in excess of $64,400.

The Contractor shall maintain documentation that includes, but is not limited to:
+ 6.3.1. Medicaid ID of the Client.
6.3.2. WITS ID of the Client, if applicable.
6.3.3. Period for which room and board payments apply.

6.3.4. Level of Care for which the client received services for the date range
identified in 6.3.3.

6.3.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service.

The Contractor shall ensure clients receiving services rendered from SOR funds have
a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or Stimulant
Use Disorders.

The Contractor shail coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with.documented
history or current diagnoses of QUD or Stimulant Use Disorder, receiving services
rendered from SOR funds, with Doorways in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 10, Submitting Charges for Payment, Subsection 10.5

to read:

10.5. The Contractor shall only bill room and board for SUD clients with Opioid Use Disorder

andfor Stimulant Use Disorder that are Medicaid coded for both residential and
transitional living services ‘

9. Modify Exhibit C-1, Service Fee Table, Table A, Row 1.4 {0 read:

Service

Maximum Allowable Charge

Unit

1.4

Low-Intensity Residential for Medicaid
clients with OUD or Stimulant Use
Disorders- Enhanced Room and Board

$100.00

Per day

10. Add Exhibit L, Amendment #1, Sample End User License Agreement, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

$5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02-A01

A-5-1.0
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Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc.

Dat

[¢]
Contractor Initials: [ M
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

5/13/2021

Date

5/13/2021

Date

$8-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02-A01

A-5-1.0

. State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
Katja Fex
EQODOSAO4CAIA42
Name: Katja Fox
Title: Director

-Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc.

DocuSigned by:

nnnnn

Name: cheryll Andrews
Title: Executive Director

Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc.

Page 3of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
5/13/2021 %"
DACAYNIEIICAAE

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
Title:

$5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02-A01 Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc.

A-5-1.0 Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 18AFDDCD-A2BI-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286
Exhibit L, Amendment #1

SAMPLE End User License Agreement

This End User License Agreement (“EULA") is made this ___ day of , 20

by the undersigned provider ("ELIGIBLE PROVIDER") with the American Society of
Addiction Medicine ("LICENSOR") with offices at 11400 Rockville Pike Suite 200,
Rockville, MD 20852 and <PUBLIC ENTITY NAME> (“‘LICENSEE") with offices at
cPUBLIC ENTITY OFFICE LOCA TION>! Capitalized terms not defined hereln shall have
the meanings as set forth in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, LICENSOR and LICENSEE entered into the Public Entity Permission
Agreement ("Agreement”’) on [DATE];

WHEREAS, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER desires to be subject to a non;transferrable sub-
licensee to use the WORK pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER desires to be subject to the Agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, in.order to be legally bound, and for good and valuable
consideration, which is hereby acknowledged, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER elects as follows:

1. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER hereby agrees to participate, cdmply and be bound by the
terms of the Agreement. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER represents that it has reviewed the
Agreement attached hereto which is made a part of and incorporated herein.

2. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER shall be permitted to describe, characterize, market, or
otherwise communicate their compliance with the ASAM Criteria and delivery of
specific ASAM Level(s) of Care to the extent the WORK is incorporated into state
laws or policies that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER is subject to. Such communications may
use plain-text versions of the ASAM trademark and The ASAM Criteria trademark,
but shall not use any logo, seal, or graphic incorporating the ASAM or The ASAM
Criteria trademark without separate, direct permission from ASAM. ELIGIBLE
PROVIDER shall not be permitted to incorporate ASAM Criteria content in their other
business operations, including digital technology and commercial training services,
unless they have a separate, direct agreement with ASAM to license the ASAM
Criteria. .

3. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER agrees that LICENSOR retains the right to review and
approve the ELIGIBLE PROVIDER's public communications described in paragraph
2 upon request, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, and ELIGIBLE
PROVIDER agrees to make such public communications only in the form approved
by LICENSOR. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER agrees to provide to LICENSOR the means
to access any public communications described in paragraph 2 for the limited
purpose of ensuring compliance with this Agreement. LICENSOR agrees to notify
ELIGIBLE PROVIDER of any objections to its public communications within thirty (30)
business days of LICENSOR's review. If LICENSOR does not approve the public
communications subject to paragraph 2, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER may redesign and/or

=

5/13/2021
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Exhibit L, Amendment #1

SAMPLE End User License Agreemént

modify them and submit to further review by LICENSOR. In the event that
LICENSOR has not approved the public communications within 180 days following
the initial review, the LICENSOR may terminate thjs EULA.

4. LICENSOR shall have the right to immediately terminate this EULA only by providing
written notice of such termination to ELIGIBLE PROVIDER in the event that
ELIGIBLE. PROVIDER fails to abide by any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, in the event that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER'’s license, contract, or other
arrangement with LICENSEE terminates or expires for any reason, or in the event

- that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER’s continued use of the WORK or operation of the
OPERATIONS is reasonably determined by LICENSOR to be materially detrimental
to the interests of ASAM and its members. In the event of a termination of this
Agreement for any reason, all rights with respect to the WORK shall automatically
revert to LICENSOR. Termination of this EULA shall be without prejudice to any rights
of either party at law or equity.

5. In the event of a conflict between the terms of any other agreements between
LICENSEE agreement and ELIGIBLE PROVIDER and the Agreement, the terms of
the Agreement shall control as to ELIGIBLE PROVIDER’s, LICENSOR's, and
LICENSEE’s obligations under the Agreement. '

The ELIGIBLE PROVIDER hereby accepts the terms contained herein by signing below.

ELIGIBLE PROVIDER

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Address:

Email address:

Telephone number:

National Provider ldentifier:

Date:

G

5/13/2021
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: State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certifv that DISMAS HOME OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered Lo transact business in New Hampshire on December
01, 2014. | further certify that al! fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 719017
Centificate Number: 0005353309

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be aflixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 20th dav of April A.D. 2021,

‘ ‘\';.\!:',’" I_ 2 ey l“- -
Teaparts ‘ “"'.
Y Waspdini g voal o
SRR ) g/ 4 e
\\\h = ] A ] M
N S / William M. Gardner

Secretary of State .
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I Paul Young hereby certify that:
{Name oTlhe elecled Omcer of the Comoration/LLC; cannot be contract signatory}

1.1ama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Dismas Home of NH, Inc
{Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is atrue copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April20 , 2024 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present
and voting. (Date) ‘

VOTED: That _ Chenyll Andrews, Executive Director (may list more than one person)

(Name and Tille of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Dismas Home of NH, Inc , anter into contracts oragreements with the State
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or depatments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
" may in his/her judgment be desirable ornecessary to effect the pumose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and rematns in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valld for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this cerificate as evidence that the person{s) listed above currently occupy the
position{s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the carporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporationin contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. )
Dated: ___April 21,2021 l /Zz?/

Signature of Elected Officer
% Name: Paul Young
- Title: Board Chalr

Rav. 03/24/20
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e ‘ DISMHOM-01 TBRAND
ACORP CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oA o

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY QR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the cartificate holdor is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsemont. A statement on
this certificate does not confalﬂghts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER _ggﬁ ACT Theresa Brandon
LC. FAX
MB) Company Group LLC e, _ [ &€, vy
North Haven, CT 06473 - | 5345, theresa brandon@mbi-ins.com
INSURER(S), AFFOHD'ING COVERAGE _ NAIC #
insurer A : Technology Ingurance Company 42376
INSURED wsurer B: AmTrust North America
Dismas Home of New Hampshire Inc. _ INSURER C : ‘
P.O.Box 73 ‘ INSURER D :
North Sutton, NH 03260
‘ o INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

R TYPE OF INSURANCE o [ POLICY NUMBER O | LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| cLamsannoe | X ] occur TPP1306893 511112021 | S/11/2022 | BAMAGEIORENTED |5 100,000
L l MED EXP {Any one person)__| 5,000
|| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY _| § 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE ~__|§ 3,000,000
| X | poLicy SE& Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 3,090,000
OTHER! s
A | auToMoBILE LIABILITY | EOMOEO T eLELMIT ¢ 1,000,000
L ANY AUTO . 5079463 51112021 | 5M11/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Pev person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED
.| AUTos oMLy AUTOS . BODILY INJURY {Per aceidant)| §
|| RO¥S omy PRI - [BE RSP ANAE $
$
B | X [umsreratue | X | occum ' EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE WUM1820821 5/11/2021 | 5M1/2022 AGGREGATE s 1,000,000
pEo | | RETENTIONS 3
PER oI
B |Xermases X | SR | X | 8
Y PROPRIETORPARTHEREXECUTIVE WWC 3533205 511112021 | 51172022 [ | cacut acorpens . 500,000
REFICERMENDER EXCLUDED? NiA 500,000
"‘""":ﬂb EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYER § '
DE“CRI.PTIO?J%)F QPERATIONS below £.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT [ $ 500,000
A |Professional Liab. TPP1306893 51112021 | 5/11/2022 (1,000,000 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS ! VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addions! Remsrks Scheduls, may be stiached f mors space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER : CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Stato of Now Hampshiro ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Streot

- Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
l C/ [M OM

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
: The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ISMAS
HOME

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Mission:

The mission of Dismas Home of NH, Inc is to provide a professionally implemented program for
previously incarcerated women that gets to the root cause of issues, and supports a transition to a
successful life with treatment and education for each individual resident. Residents are eligible to stay in
the program for up to one year, and then supported as transition continues. At Dismas Home, we
believe that women are the core of the community and by helping our residents heal and learn
resiliency, we are empowering them to become healthy contributing members of our community of
sisters.
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08500515 759259 1006.001

IRS e-file Signature Authorization OMa No. 1345- 1878
rom 8879-EQ for an Exempt Organization
For calendar year 2019, or fiscal year baginning - , 2018, mnd snding 20
Depariment of the Treastry b Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 20 1 9
Intecnal Revenus Service P Go to www.irs.gov/FormB8879EQ for the latest information.
Name of sxempt organization Employar idantification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

Name and title of officer

JOHN WALLACE

TREASURER & DIRECTOR

[Partl' ]  Type of Return and Return Information (whole Dollars Only)

Chack the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you check the box
on lina 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the retum baing filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b;
whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the raturn, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complste mora
than one lina in Part |.

ta Form 930 chackhere P[X] b Total ravenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIll, column (A}, line 12) : 1 320,633,

2a Form 990-EZ check here I:l b Total revenue, if any (Form S90-EZ, line 9) | 2b

3a Form1120-POL checkhere B | b Total tax {Form 1120POL. line22) . . . PU— 3b
4b -

4a Form 990-PF check here D * b Tax based on investment income (Form QQO-KI, line5)y ...

Sa Form 8868 checkhers p[_] b Balance Due {Form 8868, line 3c) sb

. A‘
[Partl | Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer S/ . N

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and thatflilr{a‘vf( Zemined a copy of the organization's 2019
electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knoWledge" and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. |
further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the organime_ \s alectronic retum. | consent to allow my
intermadiate service provider, transmitter, or electronic retum originator (ERO) to serfc_j-t'l"l'é,‘orga i7atidn’s retum to the IRS and to receive from the IRS
{a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) thé.rg@bn ’IQ@ y delay in processing the return or refund, and (¢}
the date of any refund. if applicable, | authorize the U.S. Treasury and fts designated FiQané' | Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal {direct
debit} entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparaligge-s'énware lq‘r payment of the organization’s federal taxes owed on this

return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To reveke a'hayments limust contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at |

1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (senle‘rﬂeqtb) d. .-T;'Q'r:go authorize the financial institutions invelved in the
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential informq& o riecessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the
payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PiN) as my, signature fdnthe organization's electronic return and, if applicable, the
organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal. \] '

- Officer’s PIN: check one box only

[X] ) authorize LEONE, MCDONNELL & ROBERTS./ P.A. toentermyPIN] 03102

ERQ firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

asmy signémre on the organization’s tax year 2019 electronically filed retum. If | have indicated within this retun that a copy of the retum
is being filed with a state agency{jes) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, ) also authorize the aforementioned ERO to
anter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen. :

[:] As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2013 electronically filed return. If | have.
indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies} regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State
program, | will enter my PIN on the retum’s disclosure consent screen.

Officer's signature P Date P>

[Part TN  Certification and Authentication

ERQ's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit elactronic filing identification

number (EFIN} followed by your five-digit self-selacted PIN. [ 02023203894 |

Do not enter all zeros

{ cartify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2019 elactronically filed retum for the organization indicated above. |
confirm that | am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File {MeF) Information for Autherized IRS
e-file Providers for Business Retums.

ERO's signature P Date » 05/15/20

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-EQ {2019)
923051 10-03-18

2019.03042 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSH 1006.001
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Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Form
{Rev. January 2020)

Under section 501{c), 527, or 4947{a}{1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations)

OMB No. 1545-0047

P Do not enter secial security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

2019

Open to Public I

Drenat Hevermse Sevice P Go to www,irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending
B Check i C Name of organization - D Employer identification number
applicable;
[(Jefane' | DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
g Doing business as 47-2722572
k=] Number and street (or P.0O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone numbar
Final 102 FOURTH STREET 603-782-3004
ki City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Cromareceipts § - 320,633,
[havanaeal MANCHESTER, NH 03102 H{a} Is this a group retum
Wos'ee [ £ Name and address of principal officer: PAUL  YOUNG for subordinates? [ Ives No
P |ONE PUMPKIN CIRCLE, EXETER, NH 03 833 H(b} Aro at subordinalon inciuded? ] Yes ] No
| _Tax-exempt status: If "No,* attach a list. (see instructions)
J Website: p WWW.DISMASHOMENH . ORG Hic) Group exermnption number P

K_Form of organization; [ X ] Cosporation [~ ] Trust [ ] Association [ Other =

[ L vear of formation; 201 5] m State of legal domicile: NH

I_Part I| Summary
o| 1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: HELPING ;THE FORMERLY
e INCARCERATED WITH A SECOND CHANCE FOR A NEW/BEGIN'NING THE
E 2 Check this box P |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or dispose -of’ more an 25% of its net assets,
g 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line A N 3 10
:—: 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, ine 10)_ § A/ . . 4 10
w| & Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 {Part V. line 28) M\ i 5 11
Z| & Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ..._.__._.........Z& e S N SO 6 26
| 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), 5n8 12 NN ™ e oo 7a 0.
< b Nst unralated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line39 ... ... ‘ ................................................ 7b 0.
: Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants Part Vill, line 1h) . ... .4 239,355, 239,228,
g 8  Program service revenue (Part VIl line 2g) . 47,097. 81,376.
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7 25. 29.
@1 11 Other revenue (Part VIll, column [4), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, /z;n"’l 1,369. 0.
12 Total revenus - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Partwlilscolumn (A} line 12) .. 287 ,846. 320,633,
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A}, Iina?1 0. 0.
14 Benafits paid to or for members (Part IX, column {4}, line 4} 0. 0.
w| 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part [X, column (A}, lines 5-10) 190,919. 218,521.
§ 16a Professional fundraising foes (Part IX, column (A}, ine tte} . 0. 0.
|§ b Total tundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D}, line 25) P 2,195, j
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11624e) . 68,249, 86,361.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 1317 (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine 25) ... ... 259,168. 304,882,
19 Revenue less expenses. Subltract line 18 fromline 12 . oo 28, 678. 15,751.
54 o Baginning of Current Year End of Year
24 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 190,406. 198,974.
23 21 Total liabilities (Par X, line 26} 12,083, 6,642,
= Net assets or fund balances. Subtract ling 21 from lin@ 20 ... 178,321, 192,332.

[ Part Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have sxamined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and 1o the best of my knowledua and belied, it is
lrug, correct, and complete. Declaration of pregarer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign ’ Signature of officer Date
Here JOHN WALLACE, TREASURER & DIRECTOR
Type or print nama and litle
Prin/Type preparer’s name Preparer's signature Date ora [J[ PTIN
Piid JOHN D. CALLAHAN, JR., CP 05/15/20)| ssansons [P00447720
Preparer |Firmsname p LEONE, MCDONNELL & ROBERTS, P.A. Frm'sEINp 02-0417217
Use Oaly [Fim'saddressp, 61 SOUTH MAIN STREET, PO BOX 1140
WOLFEBORO, NH 03854 Phoneno. { 603 ) 569-1953
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) ... ..o Yes I:I No
932001 01-20-20 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2019)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION
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Form 980 (2018) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 Page 2
[ Part Wl | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or nota to any ling in this Part Il
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

THE DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE PROVIDES A SAFE, NURTURING
ENVIRONMENT TO FORMERLY INCARCERATED WOMEN. THESE WOMEN OFTEN HAVE NO
PLACE TO GO BUT THE STREETS, A CHEAP BOARDING HOUSE OR A LOCATION AND
SITUATION THAT CONTRIBUTED TQO THE PROBLEMS LEADING TO THEIR
2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 0r 890-EZ2 e Cves (XINo
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O, . '
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? | ... .. ... |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.
4  Describe the arganization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Saction 501(c)(3) and 501(c){d) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

ravenus, if any, for each program service reported.

48  (Codm Hexparsaa § 287,856- including grants of § ) {Reverne s 81,405. )
IN 2016 THE ORGANIZATION OPENED ITS FIRST HOME LOCATED IN MANCHESTER,
NH. THE HOME HOUSES FORMERLY INCARCERATED FEMALES AND ASSISTS WITH

THEIR REINTERGRATION INTQ THE COMMUNITY. /7
. j_
YANN
/ 4
7 {7/
~ £
AT
\V/
=N _\\ .
4b  (Code: ) {Exponees s includlnggé s ) H\v ) (Reverwes : )
/‘\\\
L7 NN\ Y
LN )]
NN/
~
4c  (Code: }Exp $ including granis of § } (Revenue § }

4d  Other program services {Describe on Schedule O.)
{Expenses § in¢huding granis of § } [Reverue $ )
4e Total program service expenses P 287,856,

Form 990 (2019)
922002 01-20-20
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Form 990 (2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 Page 3
[Part V] Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No

1 s the organization described in section 501{c}3) or 4947(3)(1) {other than a private foundation)?
f *YES," COMPIELE STHETUIB A .........oovcvcorivevereeevenesbvomsosssessssonereereerersesssessesees s Lol X

2 s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? 2 | X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for ‘
PUDIIC OffiCe? If *Yes,* COMPIELE SCREOUIE C, PAITT ...........ov.uccoovvssvosssissssssseeseeesssessmesess e sess s sse et 3 X
4  Section 501{c){3) organizations. Did the organization engage in tobbying activities, or have a section 501{h) election in effect
during the tax year? if *Yes,” Complate SCHOOUIE C, P H ...............cccccoooooovoooeooeovvvvessssssssssssssssesssrssssssesssesos oo 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501{c){5), or 501(c}{6} organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 Jf *Yes, " complete Schedule C, Part ll .................ccccoreervvvrriironen 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
. provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? f “ves, * complata Schedule D, Part | [] X
. 7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, '
the snvironment, historic land areas, or historic structures? |f “Yes,* complete Schedle D, Part Il ... eoeeeeeciivesiirianrenins 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? jf "Yes, * complate
SCNEGUIB D, PA Ml ..o oo ers s st emesoss s e Heveessesers s ariees 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, og/tabt negotiation services?
I "Yes,” complete SChedula D, Part IV .._...........cccceoeoeceerciri et PN g X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-rasiricted en ents
or in quasi endowments? if “Yes,* complete SChedula D, Part V ......cccovvivvvenrflflnctigeee e Bt Fe e 10 X

11 lthe organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes," then complatg Sche Lile D, Parts VI, VII, Vill, IX, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in P(f;‘x.,.line 107 Yes," complete Schedule D,

L SR U U O VURRTTPTOUTEL. Y Woveoe USRS 1Ma| X
A i

b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part 2, that is 5% or more of its total

assets reported in Part X, line 167 if "Yes, * complete Schedule D, Fars ‘;...\ N s 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program re n ~iipa 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Pant X, line 167 if “Yes, = complete Schedule D, P3 %ﬂ .......................................................................... 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part Xelfiai5, hat'is,5% or more of its total assets reported in .
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complefe Schedule D, Part 1X ... A 0.0 \ ............................................................................. 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in'Ra .gir"ne 52 If “Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X .................. 11¢ | X
t Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial state ' fér,the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FINNTB%ASC 740)? if "ves," complete Schedule D, Part X ........... 114 X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f “Yas,* complete
SCHEAUIE D, PAIS XIBOH XIl ....coooe.oooeevoeeeeeeeeeee s eeeoees oo eee et 8 0 ae 241208 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xll is optional  ............... 12b X
13 s the organization a school described in section 17T0MI(AET I "Yes,” complete Schedule £ ... . ..., 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ... 14a X
b Did tha organization have aggregata ravenues or expe'nses of mare than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the Uniled States or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? if *Yas,* complete SCheoule F, Parts 180 IV .......cccooiivieriages et 14b X
15 Did the orgamzatlon raport on Part IX, column (A}, lineg 3, more than $5, 000 “of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? Jf "Yes,* complete Schedule F, Parts Hand IV ...t 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to i
or for foreign individuals? If *Yes,* complete SChedule F, Parts H1 N0 IV ..__..........oooooooooooeooeeeoeeee oo eee e enee 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising servicas on Part IX,
colurmn {A), 1ines 6 and 1187 If *Yes, " COMPIRLE SCHEAUIE G, PAIT 1 —......oo.v....oooooeeooeeeeveosesseseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeessees s 7 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part Vill, lines .
1€ and BaT /f *Yes, ™ COMPIBIE SCHOAUIB G, PAEH ........cooo..ooooooeeoooeoeeeeeevoooese oo sssss s eens e senso b s r s ene st 18 X
19  Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross incoms from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes, "
COMPIEIE SCRBGUIE G, PAI Ml .....oc. oo oeeoeoe oo evvees s et eeee oo ees e ees oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate cne or more hospital facilities? f "Y.esi *complete SChagdule H ..........cccceveeieieiee i 20n X
b If *Yes" to line 203, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum? . 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A} ling 17 jf *Yes " complete Schedule [ Parts 1and i e 21 X
932003 01-20-20 _ ' : ) Form 990 (2019}
3
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" Form 990 (2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572  paged
| Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (snhinued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column {A), line 27 Jf *Yes,* complate Schedule I, Parts 1 8nd ll  .............cccocoeviieiiisisis e eee s 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or § about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? Jf "Yes," complete
SChedule J oo e et e, e 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 s "Yes, " answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
SChdUIB K. 1 "NO," GO B0 I8 258 _....ooooeoee oot ee ey ee v e s vt e e e s e v et s et eaere e et s et eae b et easebees s et rara 242 X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? | 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
24¢
d 24d
25a Section 501(cH3), 591(c)(4l. and 501(c)(28) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified parson during the year? if *Yes, " complete Schedule L, Part ! .....ocooooooooeeeeoeoee 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified persen in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the crganization’s prier Forms 990 or 990-E2? yr “Yes, " complete ]
SCRBOUI L, PBIt T oooooooooooeoeereeeeeeeeeeeeseesis s ssssssssssscscserssse e oo eeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeeee e eeseen 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, fine 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables toany current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contribu_‘g , or 5%
controlled entity or family membar of any of these persons? If “Yes,* complete Schedlld L, Bartit ™ o, 26 X
27  Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former offj cgr\d} or, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereol, a grant selaction comemiltea,member, or to a 35% controlled .
entity {including an employeé thereof) or family member of any of these persopS?~iilyes, %p]efe Schedule L, Part it ......... 27 X
28  Was the organization a party to a business transaction with ona of the following 'p"a"rtiets@Schedule L, Partiv
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): \/,
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or orn\e!' or siybstantial contributor? ¢
*Yes,” complete Schedule L, Pt IV ..o 4‘7 ,/% ............................................................. 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? {f “Yes,* complda’Schedute L, Part IV ........ocvevooeoeoeeoee 28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or orga izatlons‘?ias@ed in lines 28a or 28b7
_*Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... e / ................................................................................ e 28¢c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cashg ntributiohs]? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M __............c.......... 29 X
30 Did the organization raceive contributions of art, historical lrea'su\e'ﬁ,.or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? Jf *Yes, " complete Schedule M \/ ................................................................................ 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? /f *Yes, * complete Schedule N, Parti ................. 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? ¢ "Yes," complete
SCHOAUIB N, PAF I ........ccccoovveerevioeossooseonserses oo eeseeeeeeseeseeseereeraeerent e e oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 i “Yes,* complete Schedule R, Part{ ... et b st teeene e 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? f *ves,* complete Schedule R, Part If, I, or IV, and
Part V, B T oottt ettt et et e e ee e ee e ettt et veea e aar oA v e trtaere st 2 oAt it e Yt e et R e et A e b et e et e et et eaeee e et eneer e 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512013y . 35a X
b if *Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b){(13)7 I “Yas,* complete Schedule R, Part V.l 2 oo, 35b
36 Section 501(cK3) erganizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitabie related organization?
If *Yes," complete SChedule B, PArt Y, 8 2 _...........c....ooe.cveosemssviisssssosssoeeeeooeeesoe. e 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a relaled organization
_ and that s treated as a partnership for faderal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........cococvevvornn, 37 X
38 ' Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... ... 38 | X
| Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any linein thisPartV |:|
, Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096, Enter -0- if not applicable e 1a 2
b Enter the number of Forms W.2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winningsto prize winners? 1c | X
932004 01-20:20 ) - Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572  pPage’
[Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance gontinued) R

Yes ! No

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retuemn 2a
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums? . . 2o | X
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) }
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?
b 1 "Yes," hasit filed a Form 980-T for this year? jf "No* to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ...
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial accounty? . .. 4a X
b If "Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country P
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
S5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 58 : X

g

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?
¢ If “Yes" to line Sa or 5b, did the organization file Form BB86-T? | .. .. .. ———

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? - 6a X

b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts

®e
Y

were not tax deductible? e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170{c). l
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and parily fo -, rices provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes,* did the organization notify the donor pf the value of the goods or services p}gﬁaad \; ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 7h .
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal prop: rty.{g. hich it was required
to fila Form 82827 ... ettt en et en s ssaesene s s neses s e e SN e et e et e ene st n e aeseten s e es 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year Ao O I 7d I i |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums Q‘;"pa s n_aj;beneﬁt contract? 70
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a \é al benefit contract?. 7t
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual propgfty,di &X{g/anizmion file Form B399 as required? | | 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, élh :‘( icles,*did the crganization file 2 Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Difh@d{id\dsed fund maintained by the . |
sponscring organization have excess business holdings at an}tirﬂ?du ing%year? _________________________________________________________ 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds ) : |
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distribu ngcunder soclion 49667 I
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a dono Sb
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VI, line 12 e | 102
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders s 118
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them) 11b -
120 Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If“Yes,” enter the amount of tax-sxempt interest received or accrued during the'year ... | 12b
13 Section 501(c){29} qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers,
o |s the crganization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 12a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedute O.
b’ Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13h
¢ Enterthe amountofreservesonhand | 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? e 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? Jf "No, * provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(sh duning the YBarT . . e 15 X
If *Yes,"” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. B i
16 Is the organization an sducational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investmentincome? . .| 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schadule O, ) |
: Form 990 (2019)

932005 01-20-20
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Form 990 (2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ' 47-2722572  Page6
l Eart !I l Governance, Management, and Disclosure ror each *ves® response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for 8 “No* response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O, See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any linein this Part Ml it s
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 18 10
It thera are material difierences in voling rights amang members of tha geverning body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committes, explain on Schedute 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b ‘10
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? .. ... e e e bbb e eSSt 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its goveming documents since the prior Forern 990 was filed? | 4 X
5 Did the organlzatron become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organlzallon sassets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockhalders? | 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appeint one or
more members of the governing body? ............................................................................ e 7a X
b Are any govemance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by} mel {, rs, stockholders, or
persons other than the goveming body? ., ,;\K .................................... 7b X
B8 Didthe mgamzaunn contemparaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken.dufing the.yexnby the {ollawing: |
o Tho govaming DOy oo /8N A PRI
b Each committee with authonly to act on behalf of the governing body? L K L g | X
9 |s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who'c nnot be reached at the

organization's mailing address? jf "Yes, " provide rmwm;gmﬁmm \? .............................................. 9 X
Section B. Policies pc se - irhe] S TStarnal Beve

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . 10a X
b If "Yas," did the organization have written policies and procedures ¢ v{r:u:; e activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organ\til S EXOMPL PUIPOSEST 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 99010‘al| mbers of its governing body before fi llng the form? 112 | X
b Describe in Schedule O the process,’if any, usaed by the org a |on view thls Form 990. : )
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interast pol: o 0 B8 1 oo e i, 12a | X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to IIy interests that coutd give rise lo conflicts? | 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce mphanca with the policy? If "Yes, " describe
in Schedule O how this was dong .....................c.ccccoovmuvirinons et e 12c| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? .., 13 X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction PoliCY? . s 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
n The organization's CEQ, Exacutive Director, or top management official _____________________ 15a | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organizalion || | ... et e 15b [ X

If “Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Scheduls O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the YEAIT ... e e s 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangsments under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard’the organization's
exampt status with respect to such atrangerments? ... s TSRO . |16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed p-NH
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, it abplicable). 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[:] Own wabsite D Anocther’s website Upon request |:] Other (axplain on Schedule O}
19 Describe on Schedule O whether {and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public duriné the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and talaphone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records P
CHAMPION ACCOUNTING SOLUTIONS PLLC - 603-763-1722
14 PLEASANT PLACE, SUNAPEE, NH 03782
932008 01-20-20 ’ Form 990 {2019)
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Form 990 {2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-27122572 Page?
|Part Vil| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPart VIl ]

Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed, Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
® List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees {whether individuals or organizations), regardtess of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), {E), and {F) if no compensation was paid.
® List all of the organization's current key employess, if any. See instructions for definition of key employee.”
® List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
able compensation {Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1088-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® List afl of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highast compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® (st all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee ol the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

D Chack this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director. or trustee.
(A B {c) (D) {E) (F}
Name and title Average | . cﬁ?ﬂ::"’:‘w" one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, uniess person is both an compengation compensation amount of
woek Officer and 4 i ecterfuukies) iro@ from retated other
(list any g organizations compansation
hours for "E . g . nlzk (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related x| ¢ é /1089- Mi organization
organizations| & = s | and refated
below Blgl, e i o organizations
iney || 8|8|F 552
(1} SARA JANE LUTAT, MSW 40.00 —~—
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X X (. S \7 0,000. ) 0. 0.
{2) PAUL A. YOUNG 0.00 \ (
PRESIDENT AND DIRECTOR X r4rARI RN 0. 0. 0.
(1) ANNIKA AUGUSTA MARIE STANLEY-SM 0.00 // ) =~V !
VICE PRESIDENT AND DIRECTO X X‘\J/ ~ 0. 0. 0.
(4) JOHN D, WALLACE 0.00 | [N
TREASURER AND DIRECTOR . X7~ *X\\ N 0. 0. 0
(5) Jop1 KELLEY HOYT 0.00 &\ ))
SECRETARY AND DIRECTOR XN NS 0. 0. 0
(6) ANTHONY J. CORIATY 0.00 N
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(7) KENNETH P, BROWN 0.00
" DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(8) JULIE ANN MCCARTHY _ 0.00 '
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(9) CHRISTOPHER YOUNG 0.00
X DIRECTOR . X 0. 0. 0.
(10) MARTHA J, DICKEY 0.00
DIRECTOR . |X 0. 0.l 0.
(11} ROBERT FOOSE 0.00 :
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
932007 01-20-20 Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (Fmg) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572  Page8
art Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continyed)
{A) (B) (C} D} (E} (F)
Name and title Average (80 not ch?ﬂtj::‘mﬂ e Reportable Reportable Estimdted
hours per | pax, unieas person i both an compensation compansation amount of
week Sttioor and o diraclor/irustes) from from related other
{list any E the organizations compensation
hoursfor | & - organization {W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | = § g {W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| ¥ § g and related
below |3 E 228 s organizations
i) |E[F|3|5 |58 ¢
N
X/
~—
(s~
t
\ "( -
72N
10 Subtotal | e J<O/fF‘JV 70,000. 0. 0.
. ; - {7
¢ Total from continuation sheots to Part VII, Section A . N <> 0. 0. 0.
d Total{add lines Tband 1€} ..oy n W 70,000. 0. 0.
2 Total number of individuals'{including but not limited to thosefljsfed &b 53) Mo raceived more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization ( s 0
~/ Yes | No
3 Did the organization {ist any former ofﬁcer,'director. trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on ]
line 1a7 If *Yes, " complete Schedule J for SUCH INGIVIUBE  _..............c.ocooeiiiee et e 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the crganization ]
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 jf "Yes, " complete Schedule J for such individual ..., 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a raceive or accrue compensation from any unselated organization or individual for services |
rendered to the organization? jf *Yes " comalate SChechule J fOr SUCH DEFSOM <o isiia o1 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your fiva highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year anding with or within the organization's tax year.
(A) . (B8] c)
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation
L
2 Total number of independent contractors {including but not limited to thoss listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization P 0
' Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 {2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572  Page 9
[Part VIll | -Statement of Revenue
Chack if Schedule O conltains a response ornotato anylineinthis Part VIl ..o D
(A} (B) < (D}
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded

function revenus

business revenue

from tax under

sections 512 - 514

42 1 a Federated campaigns 1a
w b Membershipdues ... 1b
3 -
- ¢ Fundraisingevents . 1c
:g d Related organizations 1d ’
O
s e Government grants (contributions) | 1e 80,260,
_E 1 All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
3 similar amounis not included above _ [ 1f 158,968.
E g Noncash connlbutiona inchuded inlines ta-11 [ 193
h_Total. Add lines 1a-1f R | 239, 228.
Business Code .
g 2a MEDICAID 624100 71,5290. 71,520.
%4 b RESIDENT FEES 721310 9,856. 9,856,
A8 ¢ .
'E,g d //
B, VAN
a t All other program service revenue A N N
g Total. Addfines2a2f ... e B 81,3764 . W I
3 Investment income {including dividends, interest, and ( (\ (
other similaramounts), ... > 29, 29.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds > Y ) N \}
5 RoyaMies ... » AT Ty
fi) Real {i)) Personal v/
6 a Grossrents Ba V
b Less: rental expenses _ |6b / O
¢ Rental incoms or (loss) B¢ N,
d Netrentalincome oross) ... AN\
7 4 Gross amount from sales of {) Securities (i Othef™ ™ _V
assets other than inventory | 7a ( \ )
b Less: cost or other basis \\
s and sales expenses 7b '
§ ¢ Gainor{oss) , ... . Tc
2 d Netgain or (1088) ..o | =
| 8 a Grossincome from fundraising events (not
g including $ of
contributions reported on line 1¢). See
PartIv.line18 8a
Less: diract expenses 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events |
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
PartlV line18 Sa
b Less: direct expenses U I+
¢ Netincome or {loss) from gaming activities ... |
10 a Gross sales of inventory, lass retums )
and allowances . ... 10
b Less: costofgoodssold 10
¢_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ... .. | 4
Business Code '
g % " :
=
8y <
2 d Allotherrevenue . ...
= e Total Addlines1lai1d ... > |
12 Totsl revenue. Seeinstructions ... ..o | 320,633. 81,405. 0. 0.
532008 01-20-20 Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019} DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 Ppaga 10
'{ Part IX] Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(ck3) and 501(c){4) organizations must compilete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A),
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

: : o 5 < e
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Program service Mnnage(m}enl and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIii. exXpenses general expenses 8xpenses

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments, See Part IV, ling 21

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals, See Part V, line22

3 Grants and other assistance to foraign

" organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

4  Bensfits paid to or for members

§ Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees ..

€ Compensation not included above to disqualitied
persons (as defined under section 4958(f){1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

......... - &
7 Othersalariesandwages . . 201,819, 201,818.7
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (inbluda &\\
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) A \
9 Other employee benefits . . . .. VAN
10 Payrolitaxes ... 16,702, L6,702.
11 Fees for services {nonemployeas); §
o Management | Y
B LOGA! e : NTS Ty
¢ Accounting 6,688. \WV/ ~ 6,688,
d Lobbying . V4NN _
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, ling 17 S/ ) TNY
f Investment managementfees . . . NN ’/ i
g Other. (It line 119 amount exceeds 10% of line 25, N Q
column (A) amaent, list fine 11g expenses on Sch 0.) /—/’\\ ’
12  Advertising and promotion £\ 64 5?. l 645.
13 Officeexpenses .. .. . ... . ... 105723 4,809. 5,914.
14 ~N
15
16 11,914. 11,914,
17
18
for any faderal, state, or local public officials
19 Coriferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest e,
‘21 ' Payments to affiiates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 10,806. 10,806.

24  Other expenses. [temize expensas not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses on ling 24e. 1f
ling 248 amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column {A)
amount, list iing 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) ’

23 Insurance 20_,579. 18,3590. 2,229,

a OTHER 8§,787. 8,787.

b TRAINING 4,671, 4,671.

¢ HOME EXP: RESIDENT SERV 3,995, 3,995.

d HOME EXP: MAINTENANCE 3,550. 3,550.

o Al other expenses : 4,003, - 2,453, 1,550.
25 _ Total functional sxpenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. 304,882, 287,856. 14,831, 2,195,

26  Joint costs. Complete this ling only if the organization
reported in column (B} joint costs from a combinad
educational campaign and fundralsing soliciation.
Check hare B |:| it following SOP $8-2 (ASC §56-720}

232010 01-20-20 Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 {2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 page 11
[Part X [ Balance Sheet
Check if Scheduls O contains a response ornoteto anylineinthis Part X .. o0 D
' {A) ' B
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash - NONHNEIEStDBANNG ..........cc.ccocoicvvrverissesseosssossnssssisssosssissnon 100,866.] 1 111,083.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 10,000.] 2 10,000.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net e, 3
4 Accountsreceivable,met - 222.] 4 522.
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, diractor,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ... ...
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons {as defined |

[+)

under section 4958(){1)), and persons described in section 4958(c){3}(B) . 6
@ | 7 Notes and loans receivable. net .. ... R 7
% | 8 Inventories forsaleoruse .. ... 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part V1 of Schedule D 108,687, N
b Less: accumutated depreciation 31,318.] // 79,018.]10c 77,369.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities |\ ..., AN 11 o

A NN 12

12 Investments - other secutities. See Part IV, line 11

13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 .. ... .. . / / - ~ 13
14 Intangibleassets e 0/ 14
15  Otherassets. See Part IV, line 11 N L 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequal line 33} ................ W e \ % 190 (406.] 16 198,974.
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . N8 - 2,761.] 17| . 4,413,
18 Grantspayable | ... _ 18
19 Deferred rovenue | .. ........comiiiinnn i, 19
20 Tax-exemptbond liabilities ... g 20

21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schy

d leQr . 21
22 Loans and other payables to any current or former om(;}rrdl?ectx} ‘
XA S

[
'é trustee, kay employee, creator or founder, substantial tnbuto
'é controlled entity or famity member of any of these pe 2:1 _______________________ 22
=123 Secured mortgages and notas payable to unrelated third® me __________________ 23
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties™N 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to retated third
partias, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
OFSCheTUIE B ||| ... oo 9,322.] 25 2,229,
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... oo 12,083.] 26 6,642,
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here b
¢ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33,
£ | 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 146 ,650.] 27 167,332,
3 | 28  Net assets with donor restrictions 31,673.| 28 25,000.
E Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here P D
w and complete lines 29 through 33,
; 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29
@ | 30  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment lund ........................ 30
4 |31 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
3 |32 Totalnet assets or fund baIANCeS . _.......cmmmsn 178,323.] a2 192,332.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 190,406.] 33 198,974.

Form 990 (201g)
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Form 990 (2019) DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ‘ 47-2722572 Pagei2
Reconciliation of Net Assets :
Check if Schedule O containg a response or note to any line in this Part Xl . et eieeiaeiieiizess
1 Tota revenue (must equal Part VI, column (A} line 12) s 1 320,633,
2 Total axpenses (must equal Part 1X, Column (), N8 28) 2 304,882,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract Ine 2 from 08 1 3 15,751,
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year {must equal Part X, line 32, column {A)) 4 178,323,
5 Net unrealized gains (105888) ONIAVESIMENtS | s 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities || ... ... s 6 ,
7 Investment expenses ... 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (axplain on Schedule O) g -1,742.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Pan X, line 32,
column BY) .. OO o O O 10 192,332,
{Part XIIj Financial Statements and Reporting
Cheack if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lingin this Part XN ..o :]
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prapare the Form 950: I:l Cash Accrual [:] Other,
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other, ;?:ﬁn in Scheduls O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent acco )ﬁgt,’kb ____________________________________ 20 X
If "Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year we| _é(comp Ia%.}eviewed ona
saparate basis, consolidated basis, or both: '
|:| Separate basis l:] Consolidated basis D Both consolidated d‘sgg_q:/z:(e basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? ( ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e 2b X
If *Yas," chack a box below to indicate whether the financial statemants for thé"yearwere L@ted on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both: '>
D Separate basis D Consclidated basis D Both consolidated, a separate basis
¢ i *Yas® to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that es re}pog\sibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of aT(\Fj:e‘S t'-tk‘a}guntant? _____________________________________________ 2¢
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection pipcets’during the tax year, explain on Schedule O. i
3a As aresult of a faderal award, was the organization required tountiergo nhd't or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Act and OMB Circular A1337 |l NN e 3a X
b If "Yes,” did the organizaticn undergo the required audit o rganization did not undergo the required audit :
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps lak‘s}No{mderqo suchaudits . ... 3b
' Form 990 (2019)
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SCHEDULE A - - . © OMB No, 1545-0047
Public Charity Status and Public Support
{Form 990 or 990-EZ) . s . - .
Complete if the organization is a section 501{c){3) organization or a section 20 1 9
4947(a}1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
[rimnal Revenus Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form@80 for instructions and the latest information, Inspection
Name of the organization ) Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

[ Part | [ Reason for Public Charity Status (ANl organizations must complete this part) See instructions. -
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: {For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.}
1 |:] A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170{b)}{ 1}{A}(i).
2 D A school described in section 170{b}{ 1){A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-E7).)
3 |:] A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){ 1){ANiii).
4 |:] A medical rasearch organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in  section 170{b}{ 1{AKiii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state: '

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or univarsity owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170{b)(1}{A}iv}. (Complate Part Il.) .

A federal, state, or local government or govemmental unit described in section 170{bY{1{A)}v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a govemmental unit or from the general public described in

section 170{b} 1}{A)(vi). (Complete Part 1)

~

o o

U 00 80 O

A community trust describad in section 170{b) 1){A}{vi}. (Complete Part II.) ﬂ

An agricultural research erganization described in section 170{b)(1){AKix} operated i j c@lu ction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the ndms. city,,aitd state of the college or

university: . . N \)

An organization that normally receives: (1) mare than 33 1/3% of its support er’Q(:gptjib’utions. membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and {2) no.norg than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income {less section 511 tax) fro pusines&s-q?quired by the organization after.June 30, 1975.

10

See section 509{a}{2). (Complete Part Ill.) _ p
1 |___| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public saletys\e section 509(a){4).

.12 |____| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the beneﬁ!}f, {5} peﬁox{n)the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section "u)(1)))"53§tion 509%a)}2). See section 503{a}{3). Chack the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting or %af n a%{omplete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a |:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised r’conlrolia% its supported organization(s}, typically by giving
the supported Orgar;ization(s) the power to regularly a{‘o Sinto Mt a'majority of the directors or tnistees of the supporting -
organization. You must complete Part IV, Section qr:d B.

b [:] Type |l. A supporting organization supervised or control!%. onnection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vestédif the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part |V, Sections A and C.

] D Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(é) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:] Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization genserally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [:] Check this box if the oranizatioh received a written determination from the IRS that itis a Type |, Type Il, Type lll
functionally integrated, or Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organization,

f Enter the number of supported organizations

__q_Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(1) Name of supported (i} EIN {lil} Type of organization | 4711 ecianauon isd | (v) Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of other
| in vour govesning ¢ocymen? |
organizetion {deacribed on lines 110 support {see instructions) | support (see instructions)

above {see instructions)) Yes No

Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 9az021 08.25.10  Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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ScheduIeA orm 990 or 990-E7) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47- 27225‘72 Page 2

{Complate only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part [IL. i the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part [}

Section A, Public Support ;
Calendar year {or fiscal year teginning in) P {a} 2015 " [b) 2016 {c} 2017 {d) 2018 (e) 2019 {1} Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not )
include any "unusual grants.”} 53,800.] 207,064.[179,124.} 239,355.| 239,228.| 918,571.
2 Tax revenues lavied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 Thae value of services or facilities
. fumished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total Add lines 1 through3 . |_53.800.] 207 064.] 179,124.| 239,355.[ 239,228.] 918,571.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each parson (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included

on ling 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, 'C
coumn ) o /7.

6 _Public support. Subbact kne 8 hom line 4. VWl 918,571.
Section B. Total Support . N ‘
Calendar year (or fiscal your baginning inyp» | _ {a) 2015 (b) 2016 (Er2017 MY (d) 2018 {e) 2019 (1} Total

7 Amountsfrom lined 53,800.] 207,064. 1'719“'1-24"“%239 355.| 239,228.( 918,571.

8 Gross income from interest, \,

dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties, < )
and income from similar sources 10. 124? 68. 25. 29. ,256.

9 Net income from unrelated business ~ Q
activities, whether or not the ' Q
business is regularly carried on | '

10 Other income. Do not include gain W/
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part V1) 1,369. 1,369,
11 Total support, Add lines 7 through 10 920,196.
12 Gross receipts trom related activities, etc. (see instructions) e, 12 | 128,473.

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check thisbhox and stop here ... g | I:]
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2019 {iine 6, column () divided by line 11, column () 14 "99.82 %
15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Il line 14 . . 15 995.77 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2019, If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization | ... e |
b 33 1/3% support test - 2018, |f the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and ling 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ...
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2019, | the crganization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization mesets the “facts-and-<ircumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part V| how the '

organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances® test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . - g [:]
18 _Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b. 17a, o1 7b, check this box and see instructions | 4 [:]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019

932022 09-25-18
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-62) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE . 47-2722572 Pages
chedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a){2) :
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I\. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.}
Section A. Public Support - -
Calendar year (or fiscal ysar beginning in} {a) 2015 {b) 2016 {c} 2017 {d) 2018 {e) 2019 {f} Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and . . o
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”)

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended onitsbehalf

§ The value of services or facilities
fumished by a governmental unit to ) {
i AN

the arganization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through § 7
7a Amounts includsd on lines 1, 2, and Q/ /
3 received from disqualified persons ¢
by Amounts included on lives 2 and 3 received - \Q
#om othe than disqualifisd pa sons that
wxcesd the grealer of $5,000 or 15 of the ' v ’
amount on line 13 for the yoar ) /\
¢ Add lines 7a and 7b =N N\
8 Public support. (Sebiraciline 7¢ f1om lind 6. // ) u\v
Section B: Total Support Y7
Calendar yaar (or fiscal year beginning in) p- {a) 2015 {b)_2016\‘ ~ \(c] 2017 (d) 2018 (8) 2019 {f} Total
9 Amountsfromline6 . . : L NN Y :
10a Gross incoma from interest, ) |
dividends, payments recaived on )

securities loans, rents, royalties,

and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses

acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines10aand10b ... ...
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whather or not the business is
ragularly carredon
12 Other income, Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets {Explain in Part Vi) oot
13 Total support. (aAdd knex &, 10c, 11, and 12}

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stop here p{ 1]
Section.C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column {f), divided by ling 13, 'colurmn () ... .. ... 15 %
16 _Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A Partlll line 18 ... 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 {line 10¢, column (i), divided by line 13, column () .. ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Partlll. ine 17 e, 18 %
192 33 1/3% support tests - 2019. )f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... b [:]

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 192, and line 16 is maore than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

20 _Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b. check this box and see instructions ... p D
932023 00:25-19 Schedule A (Form 950 or 930-EZ) 2019
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hedule A {Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Sc
[Part V] Supporting Organizations

47-2722572 Page 4

{Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 o'n Part |. It you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. I you checked 12b of Part I, complste Sections A and C. Iif you checked 12¢ of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

3a

4a

Sa

9a

10a

b

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s goveming
documents? if *No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describa the designation. If historic and continuing refationship, explain.,

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
undar section 509{a){1) or (27 I "Yes, " expiain in Part VI how the arganization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)4), {5), or (6)? if “Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. T \

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c){4). (5}, or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a){2)? 1f "Yes, " describe in Part V| when and how the
organization made the determination. )

Did the organizatich ensure that all support 1o such organizations was used exclusively for se?ion 170{c){2)(B)
purposes? ff *Yes,* explain in Part VI what controls the organizaﬁon'pur in place to ensure sy Itigse

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported org{‘ jzation")? 4f
"Yes," and If you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b} and (¢} below. \

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whather to mal?{gnts to the foreign
supported organization? /f *Yes, “ describe in Part VI how the organization had sucnﬁcongd{ nd discretion
despite belng controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organiza. qué.&

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does nopfiave.ap IRS'dglermination
under sections 501(c}{3) and 509{a)(1) or {2)7 If *Yes, " explain in Part VI what O‘S ol anization used

Rerals ¢
e{ifg section 170(c)2XB}
g

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exw:

purpOSses. /

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported orga za@ g fhe tax year? Jf "Yas,"
answer (b} and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part lmxrt(dfgg i} the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, oZa;ﬁ_bzed (J:).Lﬁ?reasons for each such action;
{ii) the authority under the organization's organizing documil't gurhon*zi'} such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizidgdcument)!

Type | or Type il only. Was any added or substituted suppo%& o\r'garﬁ 2lion part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? \\/z

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

Did the organization provide suppori (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than () its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class

benafited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also

support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? Jf "Yes,® provide datail in
Part V1.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c}{3{C)}, a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? if *Yes, * complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

Did the organization make & loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77

if “Yas,® complete Part 1 of Schgdula L (Form 990 or 990-EZ}.

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more

disqualified parsons as defined in section 4946 {other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or {2))7 i “Yes, " provide detail in Part VL. )

Did one or more disqualified parsons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? jf *Yes,* provide detail in Part V1.

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership intarest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? if “ves, " provide detail in Part V1.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section

4943{f) {regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and alt Type Ill non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? (f *Yes, " answer 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

Yes

Ne

Ja

3b

~4a

4b

4¢

5a

5b

8a

9b

9¢

10a

10b

. ; ; P ! busi ings |

922024 09-25-19
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 pages
| Supporting Organizations ontinued)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a git or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b} and (c}
below, the governing bady of a supportad organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a parson described in {a) or {b) above? jf “Yes"foa b arc provide detailin Part VI. 11¢c
Section B. Type | Supporting Crganizations

Yes | No

1  Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If *No, " describe in Part ¥l how the supported organization(s) effectively operaled, supervised, or
controfled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describa how the powers (o appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported

organizations and what conditions or rastrictions, if any, appiied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benafit of any supported organization other than the supported

organizations) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? |f "Yes,* explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization{s) tha}operated,

inn 2

. ed .
Section C. Type 1! Supporting Organizations VA

&/ \ Yes | No
1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a méjority of the directors ’
or trusteas of sach of the organization’'s supported organization{s)? Jf “No," descnbe m Part'Vl how controf

or management of the supporting orgamzanon was vested in the same persons that cont o.'léd or managed
____the supoorted organization(s) L v L
Section D. All Type Il Supporting 0r9amzat|ons AT~ ™

Yes | No

organization's tax year, {i} a written notice describing the type and a provided during the prior tax
yaar, (i) @ copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of t%- at ol notification, and (10 copies of the
organization’s goveming documents in effect on the date of notnﬂd’ano to\ﬁ extent not pm\nously provided? 1
2 Waere any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustee gr.f) |n ad or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ij) serving on the governing body of a- suz <16d org atlon? If *No, " explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working re!at\ oywith the supported organization{s). : 2
3 By reason of the relationship described in (2}, did the arganization’ s pponed organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year?- i *Yes,* describe in Part VI the role the organization's

1" Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, :? {e a t da yhe fifth month of the
nt

[ g iaved in thi [
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Chack the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test dunng the yaar {see instructions).
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Compiets line 2 below,
b [:| The organization is the parent of each of.its supported organizations. Complete line 3 bejow.,
¢ [] e organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a govemment enlity (see instructions,
2  Activities Test. Answer (a) and {b) below. Yes | No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year diractly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was respansive? Jf *Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially alf of its activities. : |__2a
b Did the activities described in (2) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? if “Yes,* explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organizatian(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's invoivement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer {a) and {b} below.
o Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported arganizations? Provide details in Part V1. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 1
of its supported organizations? j "Yes * describe in Part VI the rals piaved by the organization in this regard, 3b
032025 06-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedula A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 pages
- [Part V ] Type lIl Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1870 (explain in Part Vl}. See instructions. All
other Type lil non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

{B) Current Year

Section A - Adjusted Net Income . (A} Prior Year ’ (optional)

1__ Net short-term capital gain

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions
3 Other gross income (see instructions)
4  Add lines 1 through 3.
5
6

& [N |-

Depreciation and depletion
' Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for preduction or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or

maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6

-~

7 Qther expenses (see instructions)
B Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6 _and 7 from line 4) 8

{B) Current Year
{optional)

‘Saction B - Minimum Asset Amount {A) Prior Year

1 Aggregate fair markat vatue of all non-axamptuse assets (see
instructions for short tax year orassets held for part of year): /)
Avarage monthly value of securities 1a AN\
Average monthly cash balances 1baA VAN N,
Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets ;li:' /. ~
Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢) ) | /
Discount claimed for blockage or other \%
factors {explain in detail in Part VI): F S
Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets \ . ‘3:!- i
Subtract line 2 from line 1d. *

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 {for greateyfmﬁ'ﬁ\"\\ é
4

see instructions). .

Y

Y
-
2]
ey

o a0 ||

]

w

Hn

§ Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from lins 3} \V/ o~ 5
6 Multiply lina 5 by .035. NN | s
7 7
8 8

Racovarias of prior-year distributions . / /\\ hd
Minimum Asset Amount {add line 7 to line 6) LN 1))

N,

Section C - Distributable Amount ) Currant Year

Adjusted net income for prior year {from Section A, line 8 Column A)
Enter 85% of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)
Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emargency temporary reduction {see instructions). 6
7 D Chack here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization (see
instructions).

L 0 PN (A P

DA S |W N =

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form $90 or 990-EZ) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

47-2T722572 Page?

[Part V' T Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 508(a)(3) Supporting Organizations ontinyed)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposés

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts {prior IRS approva|_required)

Other distributions {describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through &.

@~ |0 & W

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. :

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

{i)

Section E - Distribution Allocations (seée instructions) Excess Distributions -

(ii}
Underdistributions
Pre-2019

(i)
Distributable
Amount for 2019

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019 (reason-
able cause required- explain in Part V). See instructions.

V4

3  Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2019 A

NN

From 2014

N

From 2015

77

4

From 2016

From 2017

NS

A T v 4

From 2018

\NV/

Total of lines 3a through 8

=N W\

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

T e o0 |T|p

Ll )TN

Applied to 2019 distributable amount

Carryover from 2014 not applied {see instructions)

i Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

* 4 - Distributions for 2019 from Seétion D,
ling 7: 3

a Applied to underdistributions of pricr years

b Applied to 2018 distributable amount

¢ HRemainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater .
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j
and dc.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2015

Excess from 2016

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

o o |0 |7 e

Excess from 2019

832027 09-25-19
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-€2) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 pages

[Part VI | Supplemental Information. Frovide the explanations required by Part II, line 10: Part II, line 17a or 17b: Part lll line 12:
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b. 8¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines ¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
{See instructions.)

932028 09-25-10 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2019
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 15450047
{Form 990, 890-EZ, P Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.
890-PF ; : :
g:‘mmmt or)m-smey P Go to www.irs.gov/Form930 for the latest information. 20 1 9
Internal Revenue Sarvice
Name of the organization ' Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

Organization type {check one):

Fiters of: Section:

Form 930 or 990-EZ [(X] s01cH 3 ) {enter number) organization

4947(a)1) noﬁexampt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

Form 980-PF

S01{cH3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundﬁn

SQ1(c)3) taxable private foundation, /

00000

Chack if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. .
Note: Only a section 501{c)(7). (8), or {10) organization can check boxes for both the:General Ru B de a Speacial Rule. See instructions.

\Y/

|:| For an grganization filing Form 990, 990-E2, or 990-PF that recei ‘.:fur g haydar, contributions totaling $5,000 or more {in monay or

property} from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and ll. See in tru i ns for determmmg a contributor's total contnbullons

General Rule

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 9[_)_-0 990-E2 that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a){1) and 170(b}1)(A){vi}, that checked Schedule A {Form 990 or 980-EZ), Part 11, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5.000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i} Form §80, Part VIII, line 1h;
~or {ii) Form S90-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts l and II.

|:| For an organization described in section S01(c)({7), {8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 830-EZ that raceived from any one contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exciusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the
prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts |, I, and lll.

[:l For an organization described in section 501{c}{7}, {8). or {10) filing Form 890 or 390-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
yoar, contributions exciusively for religious, charitable, atc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is chacked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an  gxciusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purposs, Don’t completa any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year |

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B {Ferm 980, 990-EZ, or 980-PF),
but.it must answer "No® on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 390; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 890-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form $80, 090-EZ, or 990-PF, Schedule B (Form 890, 990-EZ, or 900-PF) (2019}

923451 11-08-19
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF} {2019) Page 2
Name of organization - Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572
Contributors (ses instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
{a) (b} (c} (d)
No. Name, nddress, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions- Type of contribution
1 | TOM AND MARGIE GARASCHE Person
. Payroll D
PO BOX 240 $ 5,293. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
HOLDERNESS, NH 03245 noncash contributions.) .
{a) (b} (e} (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
2 | PAUL AND ANNE YOUNG ' porson  [X]
A Payroll M
33 DEER STREET #512 : _ 5,000. | Noncash [
{Complete Part Il for
PORTSMOUTH, NH (03801 ? noncash contributions.)
- | / /)
{a) (b} (€) {d}
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 VN Total contributions Type of contribution
3 | ARTHUR & OLIVIA DOBLES FOUNDATION \w /b Person
/ \'\\ ) Payroll [
2 EAGLE SQUARE /) s 30,571, | Noncosh [ ]
d {Complete Part Il for
CONCORD, NH 03301 noncash contributions.}
(2} (b) \\) ) (c) )
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
4 | KENNETH BROWN Person
Payroll ]
71 PATTERSON ROAD $ 21,600. Noncash [ |
{Complete Part Il for
WILMOT, NH 03287 noncash contributions.}
(n) (b) " (e) ) {d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
5 | PHRMA Person
- Payroll :l
950F STREET NW SUITE 300 $ 20,000. Noncash [ ]
. {Completa Part Il for
WASHINGTON , DC 02004 ] ) noncash contributions.}
(a) {b) (e) {d) ,
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
ANTHONY & GLADYS SAKOWICH CHARITABLE
6 | FOUNDATION Person
. Payroll E]
40 EAST MAIN STREET $ 10,000, Noncash [ |
' {Complate Part |l for
TILTON, NH 03301 noncash contributions.}
923452 11-08-18 Schedule B (Form 00, 990-EZ, or 990-PF} {2018}
22
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Schedule B (Form 950, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019}

Page 2

Name of organization

DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Employer identification number

47-2722572

Partl Contributors (ses instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional

space is neaded,

(b}
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(a)
No.

()

Total contributions

{d)
Type of contribution

7 | NH CHARITABLE FQUNDATION

37 PLEASANT STREET

$ 10,000.

CONCORD, NH 03301

]
]

{Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.}

Person
Payrol!
Noncash

{a)
No.

(b}
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

8 | R¥ ABUSE LEADERSHIP INITIATIVE

102 FOURTH STREET

$\/< 10,000,

MANCHESTER, NH 03102

4

I

Pearson
- Payroll D
Noncash [ ]

{Complate Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

{b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(2)

No. I

NS
atal contributions

{d)
Type of contribution

>

9 | ORDER QF MALTA \tl Person
/ \'\\} Payroll E:]
3 HITCHING POST LANE 7)) $ 6,203, | Noncash [
Y ~ (Compléte Part |l for
HINGHAM, MA 02043. Pl noncash contributions.)
(a) (b} <\t:\\/l) (c) (a)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 . Total contributions Type of contribution
~N
Person D
Payroll ]
$ Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part | for
noncash contributions.}
(a} (b} (c) (d})
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person I:]
Payroll |:]
3 Noncash [ |
(Complete Part |l for
noncash contributions.)
{) (b) {c} (d)
No, Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person D
Payroll ]
$ Noncash [ |

{Complete Part |l for
noncash contributions.}

923452 11-08-18
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019)

Page 3

Name of organization

DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Employer identification number

47-2722572

Part ll| Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

{a) (c}
No. (b) " (d)

F .
from Description of noncash property given MV‘{.or estn:nate) Date received
Part | (See instructions.)

$
{a) ©)
No. (b) . (<
. i FMV (or estimate}
t .
';':rl:'tl Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
"
27/
(a) TN &
(c}

No. (b) N . ()

FM
from Description of noncash property given : v !or estlr'nate) Date received
Part | (See instructions.)

L7 TN
N/ v
P $
: 7NN\ Y
(a) \) )
No. b} FMV (or estimate) (d)
from Description of noncash property given ) . Date received
Part | ' {See instructions.)
3
(a)
]
No. (b) FMV {or estimate) {d)
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl : : {See instructions.)
$
{a}
(c}
’:"r'n Descriotion of (b} " ) EMV (or estimate) Dat d )
o escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receive
8

923453 11-06-19

08500515 758259 1006.001
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) Page 4
Name of organization Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

| Part Il I Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501{c}{7), {8}, or {10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any cne contributor. Complete columns (a) through {e) and the tollowing line entry. For organizations
completing Part [1], anter the 1otal of exclusively religious, charitable, ate,. contributions of 51,000 or less for the year. {Entar 1his info. 0ace.) 3
Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

{a) No.
|1;‘l'l:>rrt|'i| {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

a

(e} Transfer of gift
Transferae's name, address and ZIP + 4 . Relationship of transferor to transforee
77

(?) No. N \

rom b) Purpose of gift c) Use of gift ( d} Description of how gift is held
from ~ (b)Purp g c) g 4 NN p g

\ - 7/

” VA W.V4
N

I
hY

N
{e) Transfer @7(3
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 JC-.\ Relationship of transferor to transferee

o J7 NITNY
4 Al

D)
=y
%/

{a) No. : \
from (b) Purpose of gift b)&j‘g’of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

Part |
V

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

{a) No.
gor!;l‘ll - (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift {d} Description of how gift is held
2

{e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

923454 11-08-18 Schedule B (Form 9890, 990-EZ, or 60-PF} {2018}
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements QU o 1R
{Form 990} P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 930, 20 1 9
Part IV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 114d, 11e, 11¢, 12a, or 12b. ——
Depariment of the Treasury B Attach to Form 990. Opento P”h"':_l
Internal Reverus Service P Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization . Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

[Partl | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complela if the

organization answered "Yes” on Form 590, Pan IV, line 6.

O b WN 2

{a) Donor advised funds {b} Funds and other accounts

Totalnumber atend of year .. ...
Aggregate valus of contributions to (during year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

|:| Yos C] No

are the organization’s property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . ...
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donar or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

IMpermissible pPrivate Derelit T ... iiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiieiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieiiiiiieiiiieeiiisiessiieensiceeesiivesiiiieenzegazzazas D Yes I:] No

|Part I [ Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

2

a o oo

Purpose{s) of conservation sasements held by the organization (check all that apply). - {

E] Preservation of land for public use {for example, recreation or education) |:] Pri tion of a historically important land area
D Protection of natural habitat |:| reservati }of a certified historic structure
|:| Preservation of open space ‘0\7

Completa lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation cont buti_c\)p n'the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total numbér of conservation easemants | o g g et nes 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements e Ny 2b
Number of conservation easements on a ceartified historic struclure mcluded in (a) ___________________________________ 2c
Number of conservation gasements included in {c) acquired after 7/25, (:\nu no\q\n>a historic structure
listed in the National Register | ... ... { ........................................ 2d
1

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, Qed. or terminated by the o'rganization during the tax
sJotate

year p
Bment I3

Number of state’s where property subject to conservation e
)to ing, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it b Y / ) D Yes |:| No

>

Doss the organization have a written policy regarding the

Staff and voluntear hours davotad to menitoring, inspecting, handlingfof violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| - :

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»>$ _

Does sach conservation easement reportaed on line 2{d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170MhN4)B)()

and section 170{h)(dXB)Gi)7?
In Part XIIl, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
batance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial staternents that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.
(Part Il | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complets if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 990, Pan IV, line 8.

1a

tf the organization elected, as 'permitia'd under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenus statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public”
service, prbvide in Part Xl the text of the footnote to its financial stataments that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permittad under FASE ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these iterns:

{i} Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, line 1
{ii} Assets included in Form 990, Part X

2  If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to thase items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, line 1 | -3
b Assels included n Form 980, Part X ... | 2
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D {Form 990) 2019
$32051 10-02-19
26

08500515 759259 1006.001

2019.03042 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSH 1006.001



DocuSign Envelope ID: 18AFDDCD-A2B5-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

Schedule D (Form 990} 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

47-2722572 Page2

[PartTll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (coniinyeq)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items {check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition :
b [:] Scholarly research

d E] Loan or exchange ;:irogram

e [ Other

. C [:l Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XlII.

5§ During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to ba sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?

D Yes

DNO

I Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complste if tha organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
ONFOrM 990, Part X? | e e
b If *Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xlll and complete the following table:

Amount
€ BegInnINg DAIANGE ||, ... 1ottt ¢
d Additions during the YEar e et et e 1d
e Distributions during the year 1e
f OENding Balante ... sse s gl 1t
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 330, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodjsl actount Rability? ... D Yes [:] No
b_1f "Yes." explain the arrangerment in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been prod’i_{d\gﬁl‘r’a WX ]
[Part V ' [ Endowment Funds. Complets if the organization answered *Yes" on Forfn,990, Part [V¥ifig 10.
| {a) Current year {b} Prior year / ((c)_a’ w8 years back | (d) Threa years back | {e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance ... ... N ~ &
b Contributions Y e :\‘}
¢ Net investment eamings, gains, and losses \ R‘- \77
d Grants or scholarships ... \ My
e Other expenditures for facilities / \'\\ )
. andprogams ... /)
f Administrative expenses \ V/ ~
g Endofyearbalance .. AN\

2 Provide the astimated percentage of the current year end bald; Egﬁ'ﬁe ?g c‘oflf:mn {a}} held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment ( % '
b Parmanent endowment P %
¢ Term endowmaent P %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by: ' :
{i} Unrelated organizations
(i)} Related organizationS | || ... ettt e et ene et s e e e e
b If *Yas" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?
4 Describe in Part Xlil the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

Yes | No

3ali)
Jalii)
3b

| Part VI- | Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, ling 10.

Description of property {a) Cost or cther (b) Cost or other {c) Accumulated {d) Book value
basis (investment) basis {other) depreciation

Ta Land | e

b Buildings 42,438. 10,872. 31,566.

¢ Leasshold improvements . ...

d EQUIPMeNnt 15,735, 9,703, 6,032.

e Other .. ... .o 50,514. 10,743, 38,771.
....................................... 3 77,369,

832052 10-02-19
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Schedule D (Form 990} 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE . 47-2722572 Page3
| Part VIl| Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, ling 11b. See Form 880, Part X, line 12.
(a} Dascription of security or calegory (including name of security) {b) Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or and-ot-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives . ...
{2) Closely held equity interests
{3) Other

{A)

{8)

{€)

[(3)]

(E)

(F,

(G

{H}
Total. (Col. {b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) kine 12.) p» : B o |
| Part VIll| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered *Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11¢, See Form 980, Part X, line 13.

{a} Description of investment {b) Book value {c) Mathod of valuation: Cost or end-ot-year market value

(1) : Y4

(2} / N

(3) A7 NN\

(4) : ' / . ~/

5) 7/ ,

(6) : N C

) A~ N\

-(8) AT ™S

() - \V/

Total. {Co, (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B} line 13.) P> / =~ [\ \ I

[Part IX]| Other Assets. /
Completa if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part.IVf|ine 11d See Form 890, Part X, ling 15.

(a) Descriptione—y, N N {b} Book value
(1) : - L7 NN\Y -
2) LN 1)
3) NN/
43 N |

. 4
Part X Other Llabllltles
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Forrn 980, Part IV, line 11e or 111, See Form 990, Part X, line 25,

1. (a) Description of liability - {b} Book value

{1) Federa! income taxes

2 OTHER 2,229,
3)

C {4y
{5}

{6)

)

8)

9
Total. (Gotumn (b) must equal Form 990 Part X, Col (BIHNE DB oo e > 2,229,

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XlI|, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl .. [:]
Schedule D (Form 990} 2019

932053 10-02-19
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572 paged
|Part Xl | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Cornplate if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 880, Part IV, line 12a. '

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 930, Part VIIl, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments _________________________________________________ 2a
b’ Donated services and use of facilities . 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants ) ' 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XL} 2d
e Addines 2athrough 2d | ...t bttt bbbttt 2e
3 Subtractline 2e fromline 1 et et er e e e et ettt ee et 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 890, Part VIl line 76 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XILY .. .. oo 4b
C ADDIINES 4@ NG BB || ... ee e en ettt e e b et e e 4c
Total ravenue, Add lines 3 and de_/This m 000 Part L line 12 e 5
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Fmancual Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 890, Part IX, line 25:
Donated services and use of facilities ;
Prior year adjustments |
Other losses ... ...
Other (Describe in Part X}
Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ;
4~ Amounts included on Form 990, Part X, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIl line 7b
b Other (Describein PartXIIL) o o
¢ Addlinesdaanddb s L4 S, 4c
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990 Parti=liné s
| Part Xlil| Supplemental Information. ,—-\\\

Provide the descriptions réquired for Part i, lines 3, 5, and 9, Part III Iir;s'l)and 4 Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2;'Part X,

e o0 oo

20

lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete th|s parkto providg any additional information.

PART XII, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

BOOK/TAX DEPRECIATION DIFFERENCES

932054 10-02-19 Schedule D (Form 990} 2019
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ QB e BT
{Form 990 or 990-EZ} Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 g
Farm 980 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information,
Departmant of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ, " Open to Public
Internal Revenus Sevice P Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 47-2722572

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

ORGANIZATION OPERATES A HOME IN MANCHESTER, NH WHERE FORMERLY

INCARCERATED WOMEN CAN LIVE AFTER LEAVING PRISON FOR A PERIOD OF TIME

AS THEY TRANSISTION BACK INTO SOCIETY.

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 6

THE ORGANIZATION RELIES HEAVILY ON VOLUNTEER SERVLéE. VOLUNTEERS HAVE

VAN
PERFORMED A VARIETY OF SERVICES INCLUDING ASSISTFNGNIN, HOME

_ AW
RENOVATIONS, COMMUNITY OUTREACH, OFFICE AND OTHER7HOME REALTED

SERVICES. _/“-.\%
FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTI@N‘\OF\.ORGANIZATION MISSION:
INCARCERATION. ( (\\

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

THE 990 WAS REVIEWED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A

REGULARLY SCHEDULED MONTHLY MEETING. FEEDBACK WAS PROVIDED BY THE

DIRECTORS AND INCORPORATED INTO THE FINAL FILING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

THE ORGANIZATION MONITORS COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

BY WAY OF DIRECT DISCUSSION OF THE POLICY AND ANY RELATED CONFLICTS AT

REGULARLY HELD MEETINGS OF THE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) {2019}
032211 09-08-19
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Schedule O {Form 990 or 990-E7) (2018) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

DISMAS HOME OF NEW HAMPSHIRE : 47-2722572

ALL HIRING AND COMPENSATION DECISIONS ARE MADE BY A VOTE OF THE BOARD BASED

ON RECOMHNEDATIONS FROM A PERSONNEL COMMITTEE, WHICH CONSIDERS REQUIRED

QUALIFICATIONS AND REASONABLE COMPENSATION BASED ON MARKET INDICATORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

ALL GOVERNING DOCUMENTS ARE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC UPON

REQUEST.

r .

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS; (
| S
BOOK/TAX DEPRECIATION DIFFERENCES /7 -1,742.
<\\,\_
(
0N\

O
/RN
‘\\V)/

832212 09-06-19 ‘ Schedule O {Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2019)
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ISMAS
THOME

NEW HAMPSHIRE

2021 Board of Directors Directory

Name Role
Brown, Ken Director
Foose, Randy Treasurer
Hoyt, Jodi Secretary
McCarthy, Julie Founder
Stanley-Smith, Annika [Vice President
Young, Chris Director =
Young, Paul . President
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Cheryll Andrews

Executive Director

Major Gifts Development

Collaborative Partner

SUMMARY

| am an accomplished fundraising professional with more than 20 years of relationship building
experience. Combine these skills with creativity, passion, and a vision for the future, and you have a

natural fit for an Executive Director.

Key Skills

Relationship Building

Volunteer Management

Creative Strategic Thinking

Project Management

' Budget Planning

o e s o e e~

-

EXPERIENCE

1/2018- 5/2020:
Executive Director « Managements Great Waters Music
Responsibility: Manage the organization to implement the

. strategic direction approved by the board of directors.

Major Accomplishments:
Doubled the size of the board of directors from 7 {o 14. increased

. revenue hy 108% from 2018 to 2019. Built and implemented a

strategic plan that resulted in the launch of a $1,000,000 Capital
Campaign and raised 38% in the first 4 months {November 2019-
February 2020 before Covid 19). Maintained a high donor retention
rate. Increased the number of major gifts each year by 50%.
Introduced several digital fundraising initiatives such as NH Gives,
Giving Tuesday and a year-end email campaign. Implemented an
annual Gala which raised more than $100K in 2019. Participated on
the negotiating team for the “Concerts in the Clouds” partnership.
Prasented a total of 19 live music concerts, including Rhiannon
Giddens, Chris Thomas King, Steep Canyon Rangers, The Hot
Sardines, and the Lobbyists.

5/2012-8/2017:

" Go Red For Women Director « Development

American Heart Associalion

. Responsibility: Manage annual campaign, Manchester and Boston

Major Accomplishments:

Increased the number of Circle of Red members by 300% (major
giving society). Planned and implemented fundraising events for up
to 500 guests in multiple metro-markets. Managed a volunteer
committee of 10-15 community leaders. Constructed the “largest red
dress” on record as a fundraising promotion.

10/2008-4/2012:
Senior Account Executive + Sales « Cumulus Media- WOKQ
Responsibility: Manage and grow client list of clients (100+) Major

* Accomplishments: Increased active billing by more than 50% in

the first year. Regularly reached and exceeded monthly

" billing/sales goals. Recorded the highest billing month on record for
, the northern territory.
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Leslie P Craigen, MHA

-PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

+ Senior Business Finance Analyst experienced in Financial Planning & Analysis, Budgeting, multi-year forecasting,
business operations and modeling, database reporting and project management '

» Supported CFQ, VPs of Operations and Executive Directors and provided solutions for negative budget variances
ensuring year over year EBITDA growth and adherence to GAAP and SOX

e Effectively dissected and explained complex financial and operational processes to all levels of operations

PROFESSIONAL SUCCESSES

» Successfully negotiated rate relief for five nursing centers in CT yielding an additional 9.3% in Medicaid revenues
over 5 years

s Negotiated six Out-of-State Medicaid contracts for four nursing centers, thereby increasing referrals and revenues

e Played an instrumental role in the passage of Provider Tax Legislation in the states of CT & NH

e Identified and effectively disputed a Forecasting error related to a large acquisition saving the company over $4.2M

+ Achieved a 45% reducticn in Accounts Receivable Days Sales Outstanding (DSO) across 12 nursing centers

EDUCATION
University of New Hampshire _
¢ Masters of Health Administration : 2000
e Bachelors of Health Management and Policy 1995

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN’S HEALTH FOUNDATION Nov 2017 - current

Finance & Administration Manager _

e Staff Finance & Investment Committee with Board members, working in conjunction with outside investment
counsel to manage the Foundation’s endowment, financial policies & procedures, Risk Management, and
Investment Policy Statement

e Prepares all financial reporting for the Foundation staff, Board and external auditors, state and federal

e Reviews all Grant applicants’ financials, tracks grant expenditures and ensures compliance with grant reporting

KINDRED HEALTHCARE 1998 - Oct 2017
Kindred at Home
Executive Director Dec 2016 — Oct 2017

¢ Responsible for the complete operation of a home health agency providing SN, PT, OT, ST, HHA and MSW services to
an average caseload of 180 clients in York County, Maine .

e Ensure compliance with company P&P, state and federal regulations, all HR and financial processing while
maintaining a healthy profit margin {20.7% over budget and 18.1% growth over prior year EBITDA)

Kindred Healthcare . .

Division Operational Analyst Nov 2011 — Nov 2016

* Responsible for 23 Skilled Nursing Facilities, 3 Subacute Units and 7 Assisted Living Facilities across multiple states:
GA, KY, MA, ME, NC, OH, VA, TN & TX

s Prepared Annual Budgets for a $1.2B annual revenue Fortune 500 long term care company

* Responsible for complete budget process from census development, reimbursement & expense trend analysis to the
creation of staffing models

* Directed weekly and month end close ensuring accuracy of statements and adherence to GAAP standards
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» Provided Operational Variance Analysis and assisted leadership to implement mitigation plans

e Maintained Financial Projections, monitored performance, and executed solutions for improvement

¢’ Monitored key business metrics to identify risks and opportunities

e Provided cash flow analysis and ROI for capital projects and new business ventures

- & Provided Financial Training for Executive Leadership, Nursing Home Administrators and Directors of Nursing focused

- on bottom line achievement while fostering an environment of advancement

¢ Continually updated P&P to ensure maximum efficiencies and regulatory compliance were achieved

Regional Manager of Operational Reimbursement Jun 2004 - Oct 2011

» Served as liaison with state healthcare organizations and State Department of Health and Human Services in nine
states: CT, MA, ME, NC, NH, PA, RI, VA & VT to continually keep abreast of proposed changes to reimbursement
methodologies and program implementations impacting reimbursement

e Participated on committees of state healthcare organizations within all nine states; Reimbursement Committee,
Payment for Services Committees, and Government Relations Committees

e Prepared detailed multi-year Medicaid revenue {$400M) forecasts for 95 centers across nine states

s  Articulated to Executive Leadership implications of proposed legisiation

s Trained operations and clinical personnel in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement principles, revenue recognition,
accurate expense coding, allocations and statistical analysis

s  Worked with various reimbursement methodologies and assisted with cost report submissions across nine states to
ensure revenue maximization

s Developed grassroots government relations programs in nine states and initiated political outreach activities as
needed to support/extinguish proposed legislation

s Educated state legislators on impact of proposed state budgets on businesses and the workforce in their district

»  Worked with Managed Care Department to analyze and cost out proposed reimbursement structure including care
levels, per diems, exclusions, and add-ons

s Managed adjudication/payment audits and communication with states and/or legal counsel as needed

Regional Financial Analyst Jan 2001 - May 200

¢ Responsible for 34 Skilled Nursing Facilities across multiple states: CT, MA, ME, NH, PA, RI & VT :

» Prepared annual budgets for centers and provided monthly budget variance analysis

"o Created multi-year proformas and provided impact analysis of new business ventures/opportunities

s Provided constructive input and direction regarding staffing, cost controls and operational planning

* Experienced with acquisition and divestiture forecast analysis and system/operations conversation

s+ Accountable for oversight of Revenue Cycle Management across multiple centers to include accurate billing and
timely reimbursement

s Ensured compliance with GAAP, Sarbanes-Oxley and HIPPA through training and monitoring of segregation of duties,
information systems access and adherence to policies and procedures

District Director of Finance ‘ . Feb 1998 — Dec 2000

s QOversaw 60+ business office staff (AR, AP, Payroll & HR} at twelve nursing centers across three states (MA, NH & VT)_

» Prepared annual budgets and performed monthly variance analysis

» Responsible for Revenue Cycle Management

OLSTEN KIMBERLY QUALITY CARE .

Business Office Manager & Medical Records Aug 1995 - Jan 1998
* Responsible for Medical Records and oversight of payroll, billing and client scheduling departments

Serviced the entire state of New Hampshire with a special focus on terminally ill children and Hospice

PERSONAL AFFILIATIONS

e Girls at Work, Inc 2018 - Present
Finance Manager

e Barrington Soccer Club, LLC 2018 - Present
Treasurer

e SAU 74 Barrington, NH 2011 - Present

Chair of School Board Budget Committee
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Sara J. Lutat

Dedicated and Caring Master Social Workes/MLADC

EXPERIENCE

Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH, Clinical Director (January 2021 to present)

Provide clinical support by development/implementation of evidence-based, peer reviewed and
supported best practices related to clinical and psychoeducational groups as well as research,
preparation, documentation/group reporting within he ASAM 3.1 Level of Care, Low Intensity
Residential Alcohol and Drug Treatment/ Transitional Living Program for previously incarcerated
women diagnosed with substance use disorders and co-occurring mental illnesses as they re-enter the
comununity :

Provide individual clinical counseling, minimum of one hour a week, and clinical monitoring of each
resident, as well as being available for 24/7 clinical consult as needed or determined by assessment of
a crisis management situation, on or off the premises via cell phone or in person
Assessment, evaluation, diagnosis, development, review and adjustment of treatment plans and co-
occurring mental health documentation, monitoring and documenting progress every 30 days
Oversee all evidence-based, case management practices by DHNH case managers/Certified Recovery .
Support Workers (CRSWSs) _ '

Supervise CRSWs/case managers and provide for training to meet state contract and licensure
requirements, to include a weekly facilitation of 2 CRSW team meeting/supervision a minimum of
one hour each week.

Provide clinical/administrative supervision of Program Coordinator/ CRSW
Assist with the development and monitoring of program budgets within allocated budget adopted by

Board of Dicectors and Finance Committee.

Develop new programs in response to adapting to the needs of previously incarcerated women who

are struggling with substance use disorder and co-occurring mental illnesses, as well as responding to
identified service gaps within the New Hampshire communities.

Working with Executive Director, ensure programs, ASAM 3.1, Low Intensity, up to 90-day,
Residential, Alcohol and Drug Rehabilitation/ Transitional Living Programs are compliant with all
state and federal laws and regulations as well as agency policies and procedures

Working with Executive Director develop, annually review, and amend policies as needed to meet
New Hampshire State licensure, and federal laws and regulations as well as agency policies and
procedures

Working with Executive Director ensure needs for supervision and support are met for staff

Supervise social work interns (MSWs/BASWs) and complete all required documentation and
supervision requirernents that placement programs mandate

Working with Executive Director oversee disciplinary actions related to staff to include
documentation, review of pecformance and terminations

Assist Program Coordinator with orientation of new staff, interns, and volunteers

. Oversee Program Coordinator’s supervision of the mandated documentation required for new hiring

to meet licensure requirements, as well as quarterly review of personnel files

Co-facilitate annual performance reviews of staff with Executive Director

Working with Executive Director recruit and retain competent seaff

Plan for and arrange staff training to meet the requirements of licensure and government contracts
Coordinate and conduct biological, psychological, and social interviews for prospective residents,
including conducting background interviews with collateral parties prior to being accepted

Oversee the wait list for clients which have been accepted into the DHNH 4-phase program.
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Oversee coordination of care of residents within the integratéd health system of NH as mandated by
government contractual agreements

Partner with Executive Director with developing, maintaining, stewarding community partnerships
with stakeholders to include but not limited to, other treatment agencies, drug courts, county and state
correctional partners, physical and mental health agencies, integrated health networks of NH, the
Doorway, managing care providers, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Bureau of
Alcohol and Drug Services (BDAS), and State Opioid Response (SOR)

Support of residents with legal requirements and involvement by providing regular updates and
documentation to parole/probation officers, judges, drug courts, officers of the court, and testifying
on the residents’ behalf when asked to do so

Oversee all activities related to the intakes and discharges of residents, as well as complete all
documentation including clinical evaluation before being accepted into the program.

Ensute that all programmatic services meet or exceed the industry and professional standards

Supervise and oversee Program Coordinator and all activities that support the health and well-being
of the residents in execution of the mission of Dismas Home ‘

Coordinate, prepare for, and aid the Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) in conducting quarterly
reviews of DHNH policies, resident care, and case management activities

Present, discuss, review, and implement suggestions of Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) with
Executive Director, and Board of Directors

Provide reports as requested such as maintaining bed utihzation/projection, government funding
stream forecasts to Executive Director, Finance Manager, Finance Committee, and Board Executive
Committee :

Working with Executive Director develop, review, and update all clinical, resident, personael, and
agency policies to meet licensure and state standards

Working with Executive Director ensure compliance with 42CFR Part 2 (Federal Confidentiality
Substance Use Disorder Regulations) and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

Conduct and follow-up on Medicaid Concurrent resident 28-day reviews with Managing Care
Providers .

Complete Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services (BDAS) billing once a month, as well as provide all
documentation and surveys requiced and necessary for compliance of credentialing and contracting

Assist Executive Director with completing applications for grants providing all documentation
necessary as well as follow-up on performance of the grant and use of grant funds to grantors oc
govemnment funding sources

Maintain and enter accurate care notes and substance use disorder information of residents in NH
WITS, data collection system, to meet the contract requirements of BDAS

Maintzin/renew current licensure of Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor, 26 hours
collaboration with a peer, MLADC, each two-years of certification as well as complete all professional
growth units required, 45 hours for every two-years of certification. .

Regularly meet with Executive Director to review overall-supervision of 4-phase program

Participate in an administration team consisting of the Executive Director, Clinical Director and
Finance Manager with the goal of maintaining, sustaining, and supporting a clinically therapeutc,
healing, and nurturing environment in pursuit of the mussion of Dismas Home

Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH, Executive Director/Clinical Director (5/2017- 1/2021)

Ensure on-going, rigorous evaluation of the program, to support strategic plan and goals of the mussion
Implement and oversee DHNH volunteer program

Foster strong communication with Board of Ditectors, alumni, community paftners/stakeholders
Assist Board President with developing/ maintaining and supporting a strong Board of Directors, serving
as ex-officio of cach committee; seek and build board involvement with strategic direction for day-to-
day operations of DHNH

Coordinate and attend all Board of Director Meetings and committee meetings

Develop and review monthly Board meeting agenda with Board President

Update the Board of Directors with current state of DHNH programming
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o Lead, coach develop, and retain DHNH’s staffing team
Develop and sustain strong communication with Board of Directors/ Committee Members

e Develop and sustin effective tracking systems to track progress, and regularly evaluate program
components, to measure successes that can be effectively communicated to the Board of Directors,
funders, and other community stakeholders

o Advocate for policy changes with legislators and community policy makers on behalf of previously
incaccerated women, educating the NH communities to the stigma, barriers, and obstacles such as
substance use disorder, co-occurring mental illnesses, and complex trauma over a lifetime pose for ous
target population ‘

Attend regular trainings and coaching sessions to develop and refine skills as Executive Director

e Assist with financial cost analysis and budget development within the organization and take/make
corrective actions as needed 1o address fiscal challenges and problems

» Implement and oversee revenue generating and fundraising activities to support existing program
operations and expansion efforts ‘

o Deepen and refine all aspects of communications — from web presence to extemnal relations with the
goal of expanding, increasing bed capacity, for DHNH and establishing credibility as a Residential, Low
Intensity, Up to 90-Day Alcohol and Drug Rehabilitation/ Transitional Living Program.

Leverage relationships and community partnerships to gamer new opportunities for planning
Develop and sustain a grant writing system in which grants are researched, applied for, and reported out
on in a timely manner to strengthen grantor/grantee relationships, aiming for a 70% success rate

o  Assist Board President with developing and implementing a media plan and strategies to support
fundraising efforts along with Chair of the Resource arid Development Commuttee

Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH, Program Manager (4/2016 - 5/2017) »
* Program Manager for the start-up non-profit of Dismas Home of NH, responsible for overseeing all
operations of an unlicensed transition/sober living home for previously incarcerated women who were '
diagnosed with substance use disorder, co-occurring mental illness, and complex traumas

 YWCA New Hampshire, Crisis Ceater, Manchester, NH, MSW Internship (8/2015~ 4/2016)
Cynthia Day Family Center, Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH, MSW Internship (8/2014 to 5/2015)
Regional Services and Education Center/The RSEC Academy, Amherst, NH (September 2005 to June 2016)

e Transitional Coordinator for The RSEC Academy, middle school up to high school and beyond

*  Post-secondary transition liaison for students and parents _

*  Focused on student mentoring and developing student potential and leadership

» Developed and designed curriculum for post-secondary, transitional skills program aligned with
national standards and Common Core _

s Coordinated and facilitate PATH (Pulling Altogether to Help) teams for at-risk high school
students

» Developed and facilitate Extended Leaming Opportunities and Job Shadows for career
exploration

= Assisted students with career, college, and job/vocational tfaining explorations and
participation

= Coordinated vocational training opportunities and off-site placement in other educational
settings

e  Case Manager for The RSEC Academy, middle school up to high school
*  Case manager with IEP development and fachtation
= FExperience with wide variety of students with diagnosed learning disabilities
= Skilled in writing, data assessment and interpersonal communication

s  General Special Educator Pre-K— 21 years
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» Licensed NH educator, Pre-K — 8; General Special Educator Pre-K — 21 years
s Certfied as a Project Adventure experiential educator/ facilitator

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire @ Manchester, NH
Master of Social Work (MSW) May 2016,

Notre Dame College, MancheSter, NH
Bachelor of Arts in Elementary Education (K-8) :
Cum Laide, Member of Alpha Sigma Lambda Honor Seciety

Becker Junior College, Worcester, MA -
Associates in Legal Secretanial Science/Paralegal
Merntber of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Sodety
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel/Administrators

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
. this Contract | this Contract

Cheryll Andrews Executive Director $75,000.00 11% $15,000.00

Sara J. Lutat Clinical Director $70,000.00 20% $14,000.00

Leslie Craigen Financial Manager $26,000.00 20% $ 4,500.00

TOTAL  §33,500.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Laorl A, Shibinette 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commissioner 603-271-9544  1-300-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Ketja 5. Fox
Director

November 16, 2020

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

) Authorize the Depantment of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not
to exceed $2,737,838 for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
with the option to ranew for up to two (2) additional years, effective retroactive to October 1, 2020,

"~ upon Govemnor and Council approval through September 30, 2021. 76.265% Federal Funds.
10.829% General Funds. 12.906% Other Funds (Govemor Commission Funds).

Vendor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount
e o™ | 2900618001 $130,640
HEADREST | 175226-8001 $303,412

Ph;)enix Houses of New | Statewide |

England, Inc. 177589-B001 51.264,109
West Central Services 177654-BO01 $10,000
FIT/NHNH, Inc. 157730-B001 $1,029,677
Total: $2,737,838

, Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to avoid a gap in services. The Department did not have the
fully executed contract documents in time for Governor and Council approval to prevent the
current contracts from expiring. This request is Sole Source because the Department determined
the Contractors have the capacity to continue providing substance use treatment and recovery
support services to individuals and prevent a lapse in program services while the Department
develops a new Request for Proposals.

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communiiies and familics
in providing opporiunitics for citizens to achicve healih and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page2of2 -

This request represents five (5) of twelve (12) requests for Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services. The Department anticipales the other seven (7)
requests to be presented at the next Govemar and Executive Council meeting for approval.

The purpose of this request is to ensure the continuation of substance use disorder
treatment and recovery support services for New Hampshire residents in need of services. The
Contractors offer an amay of treatment services, including individual and group outpatient
services;, intensive outpatient services, partial hospitalization; ambulatory withdrawal
management services; transitional !wmg services; high and low intensity residential treatment
services; specialty residential services; and integrated medication assisted trealment. The
Contractors ensure individuals with -substance use disorder receive the appropriate tevels of
treatment and have access to continued and expanded levels of care, which increase most
individuals' ability to achieve and maintain recovery.

The Department will monitor contracted services through monthly, quartery and annual
reponting to ensure; ‘

¢ Services provided reduce the negative impacts of substance misuse.

» The Contractor makes continuing care, transfer and discharge decisions based on
_American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) requirements.

= The Contractor achieves initiation, engagement and retention goals as detailed in
the contract.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals in need of services
may not receive the treatment, tools and education that are required to enhance and sustain the
recovery that, in some cases, prevents unlimely deaths.

Areas served: Slz_alewid e .

Source of Funds; CFDA #93.959/FAIN # TI083041; CFDA #93.788/FAIN #TI081685 and
#T1083326.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully s_ul_amitted.

- N G Weaen

Lori A. Weaver
Deputy Cémmissioner
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Attachment A
Financial Detalls

OF DRUGC & ALCOHOL 5VCS, GOYERNOR COMMISSION FURDS (100% Othar Funds}

059592920 310-33420000 HEALTH AND SOCLAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SYCS DEPT OF, HH3: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL MEALTH, BUREAL

Otymes Home of NH  venaor Cooe: 2000818001 PO TBO
Siate Fiscel Yeur ClagpALcoum Tide- Budgel Amount incresse/Decraese Aevised Madified Dudget
2021 102-500731 m‘?ﬁ”" Prog 10 118991 $18.991
2022 102.50073 c"""’;"“’ Prog T 15,851 15,851
Sub-{otel 21} 112.842 $72.843
FITINHNH, Inc. Vendor Code: 157730-8001 PG T80
State Fisgel Yesr ClasuAccount This Budgy el Amount IncrassaDecrunsse  |Pvined Modiflad Budget
200 102-500731 Consacn for Prog %0 1183858 5152558
1022 102-500721 Conancn or Prog T 534,000 $54.098
Bub-tousl B _$207,030 3207538
HEADREST Yendor Code: 1 75228-8001 PO TBD
Biata Flacal Yaur ClasgAceount Thie Budpet Amount IncraasafOecraass Roviied Modifted Budgw|
2021 102.80079) W'”:R'“ Prog 10 s38.228 $36.226
2022 102600731 Corvacy lor Prog ) 511,021 511,621
Sobioet 0 7847 TEETE
Phoenis Houles of
Hew Englare, lac. YVendor Code: 177585-B001 PO TRD
State Flacst Your ClasafAscount Tioe Budgel Amount WcreasaOscraass | HOViSe0 Modifled Budpet
202 102:500731 i 100.405 % $98.493
nn 102-600731 Contracsstoc Frog $30433 $0 330455
Bubqonel 11205% ¥ $1269%0
Wel Conval
Services Vendir Codae: 1778548001 PO TBD
Siste Fracal Your ClasslAccoun This Budpet Amount ncremsaDecraage  |PUrvised Modifled Budgel
2021 102:500731 Conpach i Prog s 52404 52404
027 102-50071 Conyacn for Prog 50 sam sa01
Sub-1otal 50 $3,208 $3.205
Tots Gov, Comm 128250 FE{TREN H08.300

Attachment &
Flanchl Deted
Pagnlotd
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Attachment A
Financlal Delails

05-85-02-920510.33340000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: OV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU
N OFf CRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLNCAL SEAVICES (34% FEDERAL FUNDS 3% GENERAL FUMNDS)

Disimas Home of NH

Yendor Coda: 2000018001

Sinte Flacn) Your Clasa/Account Tige Budget Amount incresse/Oocraase  |Revited Modified Dudpet
0 102-500734 c""“’;:' Prog %0 $36.000 $38.009
202 102500724 c"""; \:" Prog 0 $12.399 312399
~Sub-iotsl W $48A03 8408
1
FITANHNH, Inc. - Verdor Coda: 187730-8004
Suate Fiscl Your ClasalAceoum Tie Budget Amounl ncraapeDecreans IR""”‘ Modifled Budget
2004 1024800731 c"‘"‘;’"‘" Prog ) 5315402 $325.442
2022 102-500731 m“;:' Prog ® 114882 104,852
Sut-totel ] 3440 094 3440094
HEADRESY Vardor Code: | 752 26-8001 POLOS297S
Suate Flacel Your ClaswAccoum Tie Dudgat Amount IncrassaDacraase  |Rovised Modified Budgat
202 102-50073) c""“‘,:‘"" Prog w ST6.774 . 370,774
022 102-20073 cmnesuwlol P 0 $24.820 $24,620
Sub-jote _ 1 3191403 101403
Phoarix Housss of
Now England, Inc.  Vandor Code: } TT589-8001 PO1062985
Suste Flaca! Yaur ClassfAccount The Dudget Ampun IncreaseDecrasse | avived Modified Budget
201 102500731 Corsacs for Prog §704.508 %0 $204,508
2022 102-500731 Conrach for Prog seats %0 364,545
Jub-total $169.030 30 §260.0%
Wasi Coral
Services Vendo Code: 177834-8001 PO1067583
State Flecel Yesr ClaaslAccount Tids Budgat Amount WcreasaDecraase  [Revisad Madified Budget
207 102-500731 '?u:’ Fre % $5.000 5,095
won 102:500731 Conraehs tor Prog %0 $1.699 31,69
Suh.totsl U 25,783 30,708
Tolal CHnlcal Sve 1 BN.I00

ArLschanent A
Financhil Detal
Pagelold
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Attachment A
Financial Details

05-$5-92-820510-T0400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SYCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCCHOL 5VCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEOERAL FURDS)

Dismay Home ol NH

Vendor Cocae:TRD
Siate Fiscal Yaor ClaswAccount Thls Budgat Amount incressalDecresse  |Revined Modified Budge
2071 102-500731 C"‘"’“‘;‘;" Prog w0 $43.790 43,790
2022 102.500731 cm"”;,,gm Prao 0 515,600 $15,600
Sut-iotal '_ 50 $39.39¢ 339,390
FITINHNH, Ine.  Vendor Code: 137730-8001 ,
Siate Fiscst Year Clasa/Accoun Tile Budgal Amouni ncrassaecrasns  |Rovited Modified Budgut
2021 102-500731 Convacss lor Prog 10 5308281 $300.201
022 102-500731 c“"‘s" > e Prog 50 $73,668 372.6888
Bub-ioisl — 30 $191,027 $381 927
HEADREST Vendor Code: 175220-6001
State Flacal Yo ClasalAce ount Tive Budgst Amount WcrassaDecrenss  [Revived Modified Budpet
20m 102800731 Convecs lor Prog %0 3113502 $113.502
012 VO2-500TH - c“""s“vc‘“' Prog 50 $40.600 $40,600
Sub-iotal £0 §154 162 $154 182
Pnoanis Houses of
Mew Englend, Inc, Yendor Code: 177580-0001
Siate Flacal Yoar ClassiAccount Tile Dudget Amount Incresse/D [Revined Modifled Budget
2021 162-500721 m“;’:‘ Prog 630,109 50 $639.100
w072 162-600734 Conach for Prow $228.600 w $229.000
Sub-jots! 3808409 30 3824,100
' rd
West Canval
Services Vandor Code: 1776548001
Suate Fiscal Yasr Class/Account This Budget Amaount IncrosseMecrasss  |(avised Modifled Budget
2021 102-500731 Cm‘?“'_.“ Preg 30 1 30
200 102500731 c"‘“‘";:“ Preg $0 %0 50
Sub-1otsl 30 30 30
Totsl SOR Granl M- lm_—nm-—‘
Grand Toual All 11284109 IR IANF SLIJTEM
Apchment &
Elnand! Oetal

Pagelotd
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DocuSign Envetope ID: B595D70A-1BE 7 4BES-BFEC-1AFF3602FEFF
. FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Substance Usc Disorder Treaiment and Recovery Support Services (55-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02)

‘Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 10 signing the contract,

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. :
1.1 Statc Agency Name ’ 1.2 State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Streel
Concord, NH 03301-1857
1.3 Contracior Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc. . _ 228 Shaker Rd,
* | North Sutton, NH 03260
1.5 Contractar Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date | 1.8 Price Limitation
Number ’

05-95-92-920510-33820000- 1 02- Sepiember 30, 2021 $130,640

(603)872-3004 500734
: 05-95-92-920510-33840000-102-

500734

05-95-92.920510-70400000- 1 02-

500734
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency t.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Nathan D. White, Director (603) 271-9631
1.11 Conlractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

‘|sara J. Lutat

L~ Docusigned by:
Cara 3. ot Date:11/12/2020 Executive Director
Wmﬁ‘éhcy Signature .| 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
| —— Doculigned by: i ) katja Fox
Katja Foe Date: 11/12/2020 Director

1.15  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicablc)

By: N Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Aitomey General {Form, Subsiance and Exceution) (if applicable)

Coculinaed by
By._[_ - é 5 On: 11/13/2020

1.17 Approval by the Govérnor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C hem number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in  block 1.3
{(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
deseribed in the atiached EXHIBIT B which is mcorporatcd
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemenl to the
conirary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Siate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated tn block 117,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Siate Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Daie™).
3.2 If the Contractor commemces the Services prior to the
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior (o
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the evenl that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability 1o the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay lhe
Contractor for any costs incuwred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any staie or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. [n the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Siate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become nvailable, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under lhis Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or- termination.
The State shall not be required 1o transfer funds from eny other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Siate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contracior for all
cxpenscs, of whalevér nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complele

Page2of4

compensation 10 the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Siate reserves the, right 1o offset from any amounts
otherwise payable 10 the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
cvent shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pu-l‘ormancc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable siatutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authoritics which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited 1o, civil rights and equa)
employment opportunity laws, [n addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall compty with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulalions and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intelleciual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contracior shall not
discriminate against employces or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual

‘orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to

prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Coniractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contracior's books, records and accouats for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

1.1 The Conlractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor wamrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 10
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in wriling, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6} months after the
Comptletion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom il is engaged in a combined effort 1o
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracling Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreemeny, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shatl be final for the State,
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder {“Event
of Default’™):

8.1.1 failure 10 perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; .
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.) failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. .

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or ell, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written natice specifying the Event of
Defauli and requiring it 10 be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30} days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Defoult is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective 1wo (2) days after giving the
Contracior notice of terminalion;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments o be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until 'such time as the Siate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid 1o the Contractor;

§.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eveni of
Defaull, treat the Agreement as breached, taminate the
Agreement and pursue any of ils remedies at law or in cquity, or
both. ' .

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereofnfler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 10 that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Siate 10 enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pant of the Contractor,

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nolwilhstanding paragraph 8, the Statec may, at ils sole.

discretion, lerminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice 1o the Contraclor that
the Staie is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 [n the event of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, ot the State's” discretion, deliver 10 the
Contracting Officer, not later than fificen (15) days afler the date
of termination, a report (“Terminalion Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, end the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matier,

content, and number of copies of the Tamination Report shall -

be identical 1othose of any Final Report described in the atached
EXHIBIT B. In addition; at the State’s diseretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ -
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, Compuler programs, cComputer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, alt whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shatl be governed by N.H, RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior writien approval of the State.

11, CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TQ THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contracior is in all respects
an independent coniractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contraclor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority 1o
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State 10 its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contraclor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wriiten notice, which
shall be provided 1o the Siate at least fifieen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control sholl constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equily interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantialty all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Siate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subconiract or an assignmeni agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Siate, its
officers and employecs, from and ageinst any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or properly damages,
patent or copyrighl infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, s officers or employees, which arise out of (or which

may be claimed 10 arise out of) the acts or omigsrorP®l the
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Conuactor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentionzl conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any ¢osts incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at it1s sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.F commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for usc in the Siate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issucd by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contracior shall 21so furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, centificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of cach
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
‘renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreemeny, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requiremenis
of N.H. RSA chapier 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignec to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection  with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuani to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers®
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subconiractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hercto to the other panty
shall be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in 2 United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in wriling signed by the
partics hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Staie of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall |

be governed, interpreied and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respeclive successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the partics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied agzinst or in favor of any pary.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and

maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have -

exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as medified in EXHIBIT

. A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the

P-37 (as medified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefil any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modii;ying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction io be
contrary 1o any siate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
lhis'Agrccmcnt will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers' Compensation laws in  connection with  the.
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
o3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Govemor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective October
1, 2020..

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years

from the Completion Date, conlingent upon satisfactory delivery of

_ services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Coundil.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the.
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take correclive
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontraclor performance.

e
TI71272020

Dismas Home of New Hampshlre, Inc, Page 1ol 1 . “ Date

$5-2021-BDAS-04.5UBST-02 Exhibll A - Revisions lo Standard Conlracl Provisions Conlractor Inltials



DocuSign Envelope 10: 18AFDDCD-AZB9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

DocuSign Envelope 1D: B585070A-1BE7-4BES-BFEC-1AFF3602FEFF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services
1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with written notice no later than 30
day prior to changes in:

1.1.1. Ownership;
' 1.1.2.  Physical location; or
1.1.3.  Name of establishment.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit a copy of the certificate of amendment from the
New Hampshire Secretary of State, as applicable, that includes the effective
date of the name change.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder Trealment and Recovery
Support Services to individuals who:

1.31. Are age 12 or older or under age 12, with required consent from a
parent or legal guardian to receive treatment; and

1.3.2. Have income below 400% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3.  Are residents of New I-iampshire or homeless in New Hampshire; and
~1.34. Are determined positive for substance use disorder.
1.4. Clinical Services

1.4.1. The Contractor shall adhere to a clinical care manual that includes
' policies and procedures related to ali clinical services provided.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure all clinical services:
1.4.21. Focus on the client's strengths;

1.4.2.2.° Are sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the clients
being served,

1.4.2.3. Are client and family centered;

1.424. Are trauma informed and designed to acknowledge the
impact of violence and trauma on individuals' lives and the
importance of addressing trauma in treatment.

1.4.3. The Contractor shall conduct a dclient orientation upon a client's
admission, either individually or by group, that includes:

1.4.3.1. Rules, policies, and procedures relative to programs and
facilities;

1.4.3.2. Requirements for successfully completing the program;.
=1}

¥
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

EXHIBITB

1.4.3.3. The administrative discharge policy and the grounds for
administrative discharge,

1.4.3.4. Al applicable laws regarding confidentiality, including the
limits of confidentiality and mandatory reporling
requirements; and -

1.4.3.5. The requirement that each client must sign dqcumentation
to confirm orientation was conducted, which will be
maintained in the client record.

1.4.4. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV/AIDS screening upon a client’s
admission to treatment, which includes:

1.4.4.1. The provision of information,
1442  Risk assessment;
1.4.4.3. Intervention and risk reduction education, and

1.4.4.4. Referral for testing, if appropriate, within seven (7) days of
‘ admission.

4.5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

15.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order lo receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.5.2.  The Department shall be able to verify that individual referrals to the
Doorways have been completed by Contractor prior to accepting
invoices for services provided through SOR funded initiatives.

153. The Contractor shall provide Medicalion Assisted Treatment (MAT)
only with FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD), which
includes:

1.5.3.1. Methadone.
1.5.3.2. Buprenorphine products, including:

1.5.3.2.1. Single-enlity buprenorphine products;
1.5.3.2.2. Buprenorphine/naloxone tablets;
1.5.3.2.3. Buprenorphine/natoxone films; and
1.5.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal preparations.
1.5.3.3. Long-acting injectable buprenorphine products.
1.5.3.4. Buprenorphine implants.

1.6.3.5. |Injectable extended-release naltrexone. [os
$5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-02 Cantracltor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
EXHIBIT B

1.54. The Contractor shall provide medical withdrawal management
services supported by SOR Funds only when the withdrawal
management service is accompanied by the use of injectable
extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate.

1.55. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving financial aid for
recovery housing utilizing SOR funds are in a recovery housing facility
that aligns with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences
standards and is registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau
of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules, He-A 305, Voluntary Registry for Recovery
Houses.

1.5.6. The Contractor shall accept individuals on MAT and facilitate access
to MAT on-site or through referrals for all individuals supported with
SOR Grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

1.6. Transition Plan

1.6.1. The Contractor shall submit a plan for Department approval no later
than 30 days from the date of Govemor & Executive Council approval
that specifies actions io be taken in the event that the Contractor
ceases to provide services.

1.6.2. The Contractor shall ensure the transition plan includes, bul is not
. limited to: -

1.6.2.1. Aclions lo be taken to ensure individuals seamlessly transition
to alternative providers with no gaps in services.

1.6.2.2. Where and how individual records will be transferred to
ensure no gaps in services, ensuring the Department is not
identified as the entity responsible for individua! records; and

1.6.2.3. Individual notification processes to ensure individuals are
notified of the transition to ensure no gaps in services and
how to access their records.

1.7. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Sysiems of Care

1.7.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment
services that support the Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems
of Care (RROSC) by operationalizing the Continuum of Care Model.
The Contractor shall:

1.7.1.1. Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s} (IDNs} of services
available in order to align work with IDN projects that may be
similar in nature or impact the same populations.

1.7.1.2. Inform the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN) of
services available in order to align work- with olher[ }EN
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

EXHIBIT B

projects that may be similar in nature or impact the same
populations.

1.7.1.3. Coordinate individual services with other community service.
providers involved in the individual's care and the individual's
\ support network

1.7.1.4. Coordinate individual services with the Doorways that include,
but are not limited to.

1.7.1.4.1. Ensuring timely admlssmn of individuals to
services.

1.7.1.4.2. Referring any individual receiving room and board
payment to the Do_orway.

1.7.1.43. Coordinating all room and board individual data
and services with- the individudls' agency to
ensure each room and board individual served
. has a Government Performance and Results Act
(GPRA) interview completed at intake, three (3)
months, six (6) months, and discharge completed
by the agency responsible for completing the
GPRA.

1.7.1.4.4. Referring individuals to Doorway services when
' individuals cannot be admitted for services within
forty-eight (48) hours.

1.7.1.45. Referring individuals to Doorway services at the
time of discharge when an individual is in need of
Doorway services.

1.7.2.  The Contractor shall provide services relevant to individual needs ina
. culturally compelent manner that addresses the diversilty of the
: individuals served.

1.7.3.  The Conlraclor shall provide services thal are trauma informed.
1.8. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services '

1.8.1.  The Contractor shall provide Transitional Living Services according to
an individualized treatment plan designed to support individuals as
they transition back into the community. The Contractor shall ensure
transitional living services include a minimum of three (3) hours of
clinical services per week of which a minimum of one (1) hour is
delivered by a Licensed Counselor or an unlicensed Counselor
supervised by a Licensed Supervisor, with the remaining hours
delivered by a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) working
under a Licensed Supervisor or a Licensed Counselor. The Co@or

S
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shall ensure the maximum lenglthiof stay of six (6) months. The
Contractor may receive a portion of room and board payment from
adult residents that work in the community.

1.8.2.  The Contraclor shall provide Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as
defined as ASAM Ciriteria, Level 3.1 for adults. The Contractor shall
ensure low-intensity residential treatment services provide residential
substance use disorder treatment services designed to support
individuals who need this residentia! service. The Contractor shall
provide low-intensity residential treatment to prepare individuals for
becoming self-sufficient in the community. The Contractor may receive
a portion of room and board payment from adult residents that work in
the community.

1.9. Enrolling Individuals for Services ' ' ;

1.9.1.  The Contractor shall initiate face-to-face communication by meeting in

" person, or electronically, or by telephone conversation with individuals

and providers, as applicable, within two (2) business days from the

date an individual makes contact for Substance Use Disorder

Treatment and Recovery Support Services. The Contractor shall

document all attempis at contacling individuals and providers, as
applicable, in the individual record or call log.

1.9.2.  The Contractor shall complete an initial Intake Screening within two (2)

' business days from the date of the first direct contact with the
individual, using the eligibility module in Web Information Technology
System (WITS) to determine probability of being eligible for services
under this contract and for probability of having a substance use
disorder. The Contractor shall:

'1.9.2.1. Ensure ali atteh'lpts at contact are documented in the
individual record or call log;

1.8.2.2. Assess individuals' income prior to admission using the WITS
fee determination model;

1.9.2.3. Provide the client, the client's guardian, agent or personal

. representative | with a listing of all known applicable charges

and identify what care and services are included in the
charges; and

1.9.2.4. Update individual income information, as needed over the
course of treatment by asking individuals about any changes
in income no less frequently than every 4 weeks. The
Contractor shall document inquiries about changes in income
in the individua! record

D3
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1.9.3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for
all services in within two (2) days of the initial Intake Screening in using
the ASI Lite module in WITS or other Department-approved method,
when the individual is determined probable of being eligible for
services.

1.9.4. The Contractor shall ensure the data from the ASAM Level of Care
Assessment is available to the Department in a Department-approved
format, upon request.

1.9.5. The Contractor shall use the clinical evaluations completed by a
Licensed or unlicensed Counselor from a referring agency.

1.9.6. The Contractor shall complete a clinical evaluation for each individual
ulilizing CONTINUUM, or an alternative method approved by the
Department, that includes DSM 5 diagnostic information” and a
recommendation for a level of care based on the ASAM Criteria,
published in October, 2013 if the individual does not present with an
evaluation completed by a licensed or unlicensed counselor. The
Contractor shall complete a clinical evaluation, for each individual:

1.9.6.1. Prior to admission as a part of inlerim services or within three '
{3) business days following admission.

.1.9.6.2. During treatment only when determined by a Licensed
Counselor. .

1.9.7.  The Contractor shall either complete clinical evaluations in Paragraph
1.9.6, above before. admission or Leve! of Care Assessments in
Paragraph 1.9.3, above before admission along with a clinical
evaluation in Paragraph 1.9.6, above after admission.

1.9.8. The Confractor shall provide eligible individuals substance use
disorder treatment services in accordance with the individual's clinical
evaluation unless:

1.9.8.1. The individual chooses to receive a service wilh a lower
intensity ASAM Level of Care; or

1.9.8.2. The service with the needed ASAM level of care is unavailable
atl the lime the level of care is determmed in which case the
individual may choose:

19.82.1. A service with a lower Intensity ASAM Level of
Care;

1.9.8.2.2. Aservice with the next available higher intensity
ASAM Level of Care;

03
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1.9.8.2.3. Be placed on the waitlist until their service with
the assessed ASAM level of care becomes
available; or

1.9.8.2.4. Be referred to another agency in the individual's
. service area thal provides the service with the
needed ASAM Level of Care.

1.9.8.  The Contractor shall enroll eligible individuals for services in order of
the priority described below:

1.9.9.1. Pregnant women and Individuals with dependent children,
even if the children are notin their custody, as long as parental
rights have nol been terminated, including the provision of
interim services wilhin the required 48-hour time frame. If the
Contractor is unable to admit a pregnant woman for the
needed level of care within 24 hours, the Contractor shall:

1.9.9.1.1. Make a referral to the Doorway of the individual's
choice to connect the individual with substance
use disorder freatment services,; or

1.9.9.1.2. Assist the pregnant woman with identifying
’ alternative providers and with accessing services
with the providers if the individual refuses the
referral. The Contractor shall ensure assistance

includes:

1.99.1.21. Aclively reaching -out to identify
: providers on the behalf of the
individual; and

1.9.9.1.2.2. Providing interim services until the
approgriate level of care becomes
available at either the Contractor
agency or an alternative provider.
interim services shall include a
minimum of one {1):

1891221, 60-minute individual or group
outpatient session per week;

1.9.9.1.2.2.2. Recovery support services, as
needed by the individual; and

1.99.1.2.2.3. Daily calls to the individual to
. assess and responds tc any
emergent needs.

SA
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1.9.9.2. Individuals who have been administered naloxone to reverse
the effects of an opioid overdose either in the 14 days prior to
screening or in the period between screening and adm1ssson
to the program.

1.9.9.3. Individuals with a history of injection drug use induding the
provision of interim services within 14 days.

1.9.9.4. |Individuals with substance use and co-occurring mental
health disorders.

1.8.9.5. Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.
1.9.9.6. Veierans with substance 'use disorders.

 1.9.9.7. Individuals with substance use disorders who are involved
with the criminal justice and/or child proteclion system.

11.9.9.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the request of the
Department

1.9.10. The Contractor shall obtain consent for treaiment from the individual
prior to receiving services for individuals whose age is 12 years and
older, in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

1.9.11. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Parl 2
for treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the individual is
under the age of 12 years prior to receiving services.

1.9.12. The Contractor shall ensure consent forms include language for
individual consent to share information with other social service
agencies involved in the individual's care, including but not limited to:

1.9.12.1. The Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF).
1.9.12.2. Probalion and parole programs.
1.9.12.3. Doorways.

1.9.13. The Conlractor shall not prohibit individvals from receiving services
when an individual does not consent to information sharing, except
that individuvals who refuse to consent to information sharing with the
Doorways shall not receive services utilizing State Opioid Response
(SOR) funding.

1.9.14. The Contractor shall notify individuals -who sign a consent to
information sharing of the abilily to rescind the consent at any time
without any impact on services provided under this contract, except
that individuals who rescind consent to information sharing with. the
Doorway shall not receive any additional services utilizing State Opioid
Response (SOR) funding.

D3
1.9.15. The Contractor shall not deny services to an adolescent due tcf: SiL
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1.9.15.1.  The parent's inability and/or unwillingness to pay the
fee; or

1.98.15.2. The adolescent's decision to receive confidential
services pursuant to RSA 318-B: 12-a.

1.9.16. The Contractor shall provide services 10 eligible individuals who:

1.9.16.1. Receive MAT services from other providers, including but
not limited to the individual's primary care provider,

1.9.16.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; and/or

1.9.16.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
' prescribed regardiess of the class of medication.

1.9.17. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment
services separately for adolescent and adults, unless olherwise
approved by the Department.

1.9.18. The Contractor shall ensure adolescents and adults do not share the
same residency space, but may share communal spaces at separate
times, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.9.18.1.  Kitchens.

1.9.18.2. Group rooms.

1.9.18.3. Recreation rooms and/or areas.
1.10. Denial of Services

1.10.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who are denied services:
1.10.1.1.  Areinformed of the reason for denial; and

1.10.1.2. Receive assistance with identiffing an accessing
appropriate available treatment.

1.10.2. The Contractor shall not deny services to any individual solely because
the individual:

1.10.2.1.  Previously |eft treatment against the advice of staff;
1.10.2.2; Relapsed from an earlier treatment;

1.10.2.3. Is on any class of medicalions, including but not limited to
opiates or benzodiazepines; or

1.10.2.4. Has been diagnosed with a mental health disorder.
1.11. Waillists '

1.11.1. The Contractor shall maintain a waitlist of individuals who are unable
to receive services due to unavailability of services, regardlesns; of

_ payor source. [ oy,
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1.11.2. The Contractor shall track the wait time for the individuals to receive
services, from the date of initial contact with the individual to the date
the individuals first receive substance use disorder treatment services
other than evaluation. : ‘

1.12. Assistance with Enrolling in Insurance Programs

1.12.1. The Contractor shall assist individuals and/or their parents or legal
guardians, who are unable to secure financial resources necessary for
initial entry into the program, with oblaining other potential sources for
payment, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Enroliment in public or private insurance, including but not
limited to New Hampshire Medicaid programs within
fourteen (14) days after intake.

1.12.1.2. Assistance with securing financial resources or
documenting the refusal of assistance in the individual
record

1.13. Service Delivery Activities and Regquirements

1.13.1.. The Contractor shall develop and implement wrilten policies and
procedures that govern operations and all services provided. The
Contractor shall ensure:

1.13.1.1. All policies and procedures are reviewed and revised,. as
necessary.

1.13.1.2. All staff providing services receive lraining on policies and
procedures currently in place.

“1.13.1.3. Maintenance of specific policies that include, bul are not
limited to:

1.13.1.3.1. Client rights, grievance and appeals policies
and procedures.

1.13.1.3.2. Progressive discipline, leading 1o
administrative discharge.

1.13.1.3.3. Reporting and appealing staff grievances.

1.13.1.3.4. Policies on client alcohol and other drug use
while in treatment.

1.13.1.3.5. Policies on client and employee smoking.

1.13.1.3.6. Drug-free workplace policy and procedures,
including a requirement for the filing of written
reports of aclions taken in the event of staff
misuse of alcoho! or other drugs.

os
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1.13.1.3.7. Policies and procedures for holding -a client's
POSSESsions.

1.13.1.3.8. Secure storage of staff medications.
1.13.1.3.9. A client medication policy.
1.13.1.3.10. Urine specimen colleclion, as applicable, that:

1.13.1.3.10.1. Ensure that collection . is
~conducted in @ manner that

preserves clienl privacy as
much as possible; and

1.13.1.3.10.2. Minimize falsification.
1.13.1.3.11. Safety and emergency procedures on:
1.13.1.3.11.1. Medical emergencies;

1.13.1.3.11.2. Infection control and universal
precautions, including the use
of protective clothing and
devices;

1.13.1.3.11.3. Reporting employee injuries;

1.13.1.3.11.4. Fire monitoring, warning,
evacuation, and safety drill
policy and procedures;

1.13.1.3.11.5. Emergency closings; and

1.13.1.3.11.6. Posting of the above safety
and emergency procedures.

1.13.1.3.12. Procedures for protection of dient records that
govern use of records, storage, .removal,
conditions for release of information, and
compliance with 42CFR, Part 2 and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA).

1.13.1.3.13. Procedures regarding collections from client
fees, private or public insurance, and other
payers responsible for the client’'s finances.

1.13.1.3.14. Procedures relaled to quality assurance and
quality improvement.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall assess all individuals for risk of self-harm at all
phases of treatment, including, but not limited to:

03
1.13.2.1. During initial contacl. ‘ cy
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1.13.2.2. During screening.

1.13.2.3. Atintake.

1.13.2.4. During admission.

1.13.2.5. During on-going treatment services.
1.13.2.6. Atdischarge.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall assess all individuals for withdrawal risk based
on ASAM (2013) standards at all phases of treatment, including but
not limited to:

1.13.3.1. During initial contact.

1.13.3.2. During screening.

1.13.3.3. Atintake.

1.13.3.4. During admission.

1.13.3.5. During on-going treatment services.

1.13.4. The Contraclor shall stabilize all individuals based on ASAM (2013)
guidance. The Contractor shall:

1:13.4.1. Provide stabilization services when an individual's level of
risk indicates a service with an ASAM Level of Care that
can be provided through. contract services,

- 1.13.4.2. Integrate withdrawal management into the individual's
treatment plan and provide on-going assessment of
withdrawal risk to ensure that withdrawal is managed safely
if an individual's risk level indicates a service with an ASAM
Level of Care that can be provided through conlract
services,

1.13.4.3. Refer individuals to a facility where the services can be
provided when an individual's risk indicates a service with
an ASAM Level of Care thal is higher than can be provided
through contract services; and

1.13.4.4. Coordinale with the withdrawal management services
provider to admit the individual to an appropriate service
once the individual's withdrawal risk has reached a level
that can be provided through contract services.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall complete individualized treatment plans based on
clinical evaluation data for each individual served within three (3) days
or three (3) sessions, whichever is longer, of the clinical evaluation that
address problems in all ASAM (2013) domains that justified the
individual’s admittance to a given leve! of care, which: Ej{,
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1.135.1. Include goals, objectives, and interventions in each
individual treatment plan written in terms that are:

1.13.5.1.1. Specific with clearly defined action steps;

1.13.5.1.2. Measurable with clear criteria for progress
and completion;

1.13.5.1.3. ' Attainable and within the individual's ability to
achieve;

1.13.5.1.4. Realistic while ensuring the resources are
available to the individual; and

1.13.5.1.5. Timely in a manner that supports a stated
period for completion that is reasonable.;

1.13.5.2. Include the individual's involvement in identifying, |
developing, and prioritizing goals, objectives, and
interventions;

1.13.5.3. Are updated based on changes in any ASAM domain and
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent. The Contractor shall
ensure treatment plan updates include:

1.13.5.3.1. Documentation of the degree to which the
individual is meeting treatment plan goals and
objectives;

1.13.5.3.2. Modifications of existing goals or addition of
new goals based on changes in the -
individuals functioning relative to ASAM
domains and treatment goals and objectives;

1.13.5.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether the
individual needs 1o move to a different level
of care based on changes in functioning in
any ASAM domain and documentation of the
reasons for this assessment; and

1.13.5.3.4. The signature of the individual" and the
counselor agreeing to the updated treatment-
plan, or if applicable, documentation of the
individual's refusal to sign the treatment plan.

1.13.5.4. Track individual progress relative to the speéiﬁc goals,
"objectives, and interventions in the individual's treatment
plan by completing encounter notes in WITS.

o3
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1.13.6. The Contractor shall refer individuals to, and coordinate care with,
other providers. The Coniractor shall:

1.13.6.1. Obtain consents from each individual, including 42 CFR
Part 2 consenl, if applicable, and in compliance with state,
federal laws and state and federal rules;

1.13.6.2. Ensure providers include, bul are not limited to:
1.13.6.2.1. A primary care provider, as appropriate.
1.13.6.2.2. A behavioral health care provider when the

individual  presents  with  co-occurring
substance use and mental health disorders. -

1.13.6.2.3. Medication assisted treatment provider, as
appropriate.

1.136.2.4. Peer recovery . support provider, as
appropriate.

1.13.6.3. Coordinate with local recovery community organizations, if
_available, in order to:

1.13.6.3.1. Bring peer recovery support providers into the
treatment setting;

1.13.6.3.2. Meet with individuals to. describe available
services; and

1.13.6.3.3. Engage individuals in peer recovery support
services as applicable.

1.13.6.4. Coordinale with case management services offered by the
individual's managed care organization, Doorway, third
party insurance or other provider, if applicable.

1.13.6.5. Coordinate with olher social service agencies engaged with
the individual, including but not limited to:

1.13.6.5.1. The Department's Division of Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF), as applicable.

1.13.6.5.2. Probation and/or parole programs, as
applicable

1.13.6.5.3. The Doorways, as applicable.

1.13.6.6. Clearly document in the individual's file if the individual '
refuses any referrals or care coordination.

1.13.7. The Contractor shall complete continuing care, transfer, and discharge

plans for services provided, except for Transitional Living, that addgess
all ASAM (2013) domains, which: SH
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1.13.7.1. Include the process of transfer and/or discharge planning
at the time of the individual's intake to the program.

1.13.7.2. Include atleastone(1)oflhethree(3)criter-iafor continuing
services, which are:

1.13.7.2.1. Continuing Service Criteria, A: The individual
is making progress, but has not yet achieved
lhe goals articulated in the individualized
treatment plan. The Contraclor shall ensure
‘continued treatment at the present level of
care is assessed, as necessary, to permil the
individual to continue working toward his or
her treatment goals; or

1.13.7.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The individual is
nol yet making progress, but has the capacity
to resolve his or her problems, The individual
is actively working toward the goals articulated
in the individualized treatment plan. The
Contractor shall ensure continued treatment at
the present level of care is assessed as
necessary to permit the individual to continue
working toward his or her treatment goals; and
for '

1.13.7.2.3. Continuing Service Criteria C: New problems
have been identified that are appropriately
treated at the present leve! of care. The
Contractor shall provide services for the new
problem or priority, the frequency and intensity
of which can only safely be delivered by
continued stay in the current level of care. The
Contractor shall ensure the level of care that
the individual is receiving treatment is
therefore the least intensive level at which the
individual's problems can be addressed
effectively. ‘

1.13.7.3. Include a minimum of one (1) of the four (4) criteria for
transfer or discharge, which include:

1.43.7.3.1. Transfer or Discharge Critena A: The
individual has achieved the goals articulated in
the individualized treatment plan, thus
resolving the problem(s) that justified

admission to the present level of cartl'he
¥
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Contractor shall ensure continuing the chronic
disease - management of the individual's
condition at a less intensive level of care is
indicated; or

1.13.7.3.2. Transfer or Discharge Criteria B: The
individual has been unable to resolve the
problem(s) that justified the admission o the
present level of care, despile amendments 10
the treatment plan. The Contractor has
determined " the individual achieved the
maximum possible benefit from engagement
in services at the cuent level of care. The
Contractor shall ensure treatment at another
level of care (more or less intensive) in the
same type of services, or discharge from
treatment, is therefore indicated; or

1.13.7.3.3. Transfer or Discharge Criteria C:- The
individual has demonslrated a lack of capacity
due to diagnostic or co-occurring conditions
that limit his or her ability to resolve his or her
problem{s). The Contractor shall ensure
treatment at a qualitatively different ievel of
care or type of service, or discharge from
treatment, is therefore indicated; or

1.13.7.3.4. Transfer or Discharge Criteria D: The
individual has experienced an-intensification
of problem(s), or has developed a new
problem(s), and can be trealed effectively at a
more intensive level of care.

1.13.7.4. Include clear documentation that explains why continued
services, transfer or discharge is necessary for Transitional
Living.
1:13.8. The Contractor shall deliver services using evidence based praclices,
as demonstrated by meeting one of the following criteria:

1.13.8.1. Ensuring services are included as an evidence-based
mental health and substance abuse inlervenlion on the
SAMHSA Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center;

1.13.8.2. Ensuring services are published in a peer-reviewed journal
"~ and found to have positive effects; or

that has validated research.
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1.13.9. The Contractor shall deliver services in this Contracl in accordance
with:
1.13.9.1. The ASAM Criteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (_2013).

1.13.9.2. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement
Protocols (T!Ps).

1.13.9.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs).

1.14. Individual and Group Education ’

1.14.1. The Contractor shall offer individuals receiving services individual or
group educalion on prevention, treatment, and nature of:

1.14.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV).

1.14.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).
1.14.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases {STD).
1.14.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that include:

1.14.1.4.1. Assessing individuals for motivation in
stopping the use of tobacco products;

1.14.1.4.2. Offering resources that include, but are not
limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the
certified , tobacco cessation counselors
available through the QuitLine. :

1.14.2. The Contractor shall coordinate individual and group education
sessions with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program, for individuals
identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

1.15. Medication Services

1.15.1. The Contractor shall ensure no administration of medications,
induding physician samples, occurs except by a licensed medical
practitioner working within his or her scope of pracice.

1.15.2.  The Contractor shall ensure all prescription medications brought by a
client are in their original containers and legibly display the following
information:

1.16.2.1. The client's name; ‘
1.15.2.2. The medication name and strength;
1.15.2.3. The prescribed dose;

1.15.2.4. The route of administration;

03
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1.15.2.5. The frequency of administration; and
1.15.2.6. The date ordered.

1.15.3. The Contractor shall ensure any changes to or discontinuation of
prescription medications are changed or discontinued upon receiving
a written order from a licensed practitioner.

1.15.4., The Contractor shall ensure all prescription medicalions, with the
exception of nitroglycerin, epi-pens, and rescue inhalers, which may
be kept on the client's person or stored in the client's room, are stored
as follows:

1.15.4.1. All medications are kept in a storage area that is:

1.15.4.1.1. Locked and accessible only to authorized
personnel;

1.15.4.1.2. Organized to allow correct identification of
each client's medication(s),

1:15.4.1.3. lluminated in a manner sufficient to allow
reading of all medicalion labels; and

1.15.4.1.4. Equipped to maintain medication at the ﬁroper
lemperature.

1.15.4.2. Schedule li controlled subslances, as defined by RSA 318-
B:1-b, are keplt in a separately locked compariment within
the locked medication storage area and accessible only 1o
aulhorized personnel; and

1.15.4.3. Topical liquids, ointments, patches, creams and powder -
' forms of products are stored in a manner that mitigates
cross-contamination with oral, optic, ophthalmic, and
parenteral products.

1.15.5. The Contractor shall ensure medications belonging to staff are not
accessible to clients or stored with client medication.

1.15.6. The Contractor shall ensure over-the-counter (OTC) medicalions are
handled in the following manner: '

1.15.6.1. Only original, unobened containers of OTC medications are
allowed to be brought inlo the program;

1.15.6.2. OTC medicalion is stored in accordance with medication
storage requirements above; and

1.15.6.3. OTC medicalion conlainers are marked with the name of
the client using the medicalion and taken in accordance
with the direclions on the medicalion container as
) ordered by a licensed praclitioner. I 4
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1.15.7. The Contractor shall supervise all medications self-administered by a
client, with the exception of nitroglycerin, epi-pens, and rescue
inhalers, which may be taken by the client without supervision, as
follows:

1.15.7.1. Staff remind the client to take the correct dose of his or her
: medication at the correct time;

1.15.7.2. Staff may open the medication container but cannot
\ physically handle the medication itself in any manner; and

1.15.7.3. Staff remain with the dient to observe them taking the
prescribed dose and type of medicalion.

1.15.8. The Contractor shall document in an individual client medication log:

1.15.8.1. The medication name, strength, dose, frequency and route
of administration;

1.15.8.2. The date and the time the medication was taken;

- 1.15.8.3. The signature or identifiable initials of the person
supervising the taking of said medication; and

1.15.8.4. The reason for any medication refused or omitted.
1.15.9. The Contfractor shall ensure upon a client’s discharge that;
1.15.9.1. The medication log is included in the client's record: and

1.15.9.2. The dient is provided with remaining medication lo take
" with him or her

1.16. Tobacco Free Environment

1.16.1. The Contractor shall ensure a tobacco-free environment by having
policies and procedures that:

1.16.1.1. Address the smoking of any tobacco product; the use of
oral tobacco products or “spit” tobacco; and the use of
electronic devices.

1.16.1.2. Apply to employees, individuals and employee or individual
visitors. '

1.16.1.3. Prohibit the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's
facilities at any time.

1.16.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Conltraclor-owned vehicle
and personal vehicles when transporting individuals on
authorized business

1.16.1.5. Include whether or not use of tobacco products is prohibited

outside of the facility on the grounds. [os
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1.16.1.6. Include the following if use of tobacco products is allowed
outside of the facility on the grounds:

1.16.1.6.1. A designated smoking area(s), which is
located at least twenty {20) feet from the main
entrance. .

1.16.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in designated
area, including cigarette bults and maiches,
must be extinguished and disposed of in
appropriale containers. '

1.16.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated
smeking area.

1.16.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area is not properly
maintained, it can be eliminated at the
discretion of the Contractor.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all individuals are regularly screened
for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitlLine as part
of treatment planning.

1.16.3. The Confractor shall ensure the tobacco free environment policy is:
1.16.3.1. Posted in the Conlractor's facilities.
1.16.3.2. Posted in all Contractor vehicles.
1.16.3.3. Included in employee, individual, and visitor orientations.

1.16.4. The Contractor shall not use tobacco use, in and of itself, as grounds
for discharging individuals from substance use disorder treatment and
recovery supporl services provided.

1.17. Staffing

1.17.1. The Contractor shall establish and monitor a code of ethics for the
Conlractor and its staff, as well as a mechanism for reporting unethical
conduct.

1.17.2. The Contractor shall develop a current job description for all staff,
including contracted staff, volunteers, and student interns, which
include:

1.17.2.1. Job title;

1.17.2.2. Physical requirements of the position;

1.17.2.3. Education and experience requiremen;s of the position;
1.17.2.4. Duties of the position; ~

1.17.2.5. Positions supervised; and ["’.
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1.17.2.6. Tntle of mmednate supervisor.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall develop and |mp1emenl policies regarding
criminal background checks of prospective employees, which include,
but are not limited to:

1.17.3.1. Requiring a prospective employee to sign a release to allow
the Contractor to obtain his or her criminal record.

1.17.3.2. Requiring the administrator or his or her designee 1o obtain
and review a criminal records check from the New
Hampshire department of safety for each prospectlive
employee. .

1.17.3.3. Criminal background standards regarding the following,
beyond which shall be reason to not hire a prospective
employee in order to ensure the health, safety, or well-
\ , being of clients:

1.17.3.3.1. . Felony convictions in this or any other state;

1.17.3.3.2.  Convictions for sexual assault, other violent
crime, assault, fraud, abuse, neglecl or
exploitation; and

1.17.3.3.3. Findings by the department or any
administrative agency in this or any. other -
state for assault, fraud, -abuse, neglect or
exploitation or any person.

1.47.4. The Contractor shall ensure all staff, including contracted staff:

1.17.4.1. Meet the educational, experiential, and physical
qualifications of the position as listed in their job
description;

1.17.4.2. Do not exceed the criminal background standards
established above;

1.17.4.3. Are licensed, registered or cerlified as required by state
statute and as applicable, .

1.17.4.4. Receive an orientation within the first three (3) days of work
or prior o direct contact with clients, which includes:

1.17.4.41. The Contractor's code of ethics, including
' ethical conduct and the. reporting of
unprofessional conduct;

1.17.4.4.2. - The Contractor's policies on client rights and
responsibilities and complaint procedures,
D3

1.17.4.4.3.  Confidenliality requirements; | SH,
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1.17.444. Grievance proce'dures for both clients and
staff;

1.17.445.  The duties and responsibiliies and the
- policies, procedures, and guidelines of the
position for which they were hired;

1.17.44.6, Topics covered by both the administrative
and personnel manuals;

1.17.447. The Contractor's infection prevention
program,

1.17.44.8.  The Contractor's fire, evacuation, and other
emergency plans which oulline the
respensibilities of personnel in  an
emergency; and

1147.449. Mandatory reporting r'equirernents for abuse
or neglect including but not limited to the
requirements in RSA 161-F and RSA 169-
C:29;

1.17.4.5. Sign and date documentation that certifies orientation is
completed; and

1.17.4.6. Complete a mandatory annual in-service education, which
includes a review of all elements described above.

1.17.5. The Contractor shall ensure that, prior to having contact with clients,
employees and contracled employees:

11751 Submit proof of a physical examination or a health
screening conducted not more than 12 months prior to
. employment which includes, butis not limited to:

1.17.5.1.1. The name of the examinee.
1.47.51.2. The date of the examination.

1.17.5.1.3. Whether or not the examinee has a
contagious or any other iliness that affects
the examinee's ability to perform job duties.

1.17.5.1.4. Results of a 2-step tuberculosis (TB) test,
. Mantoux method or other method approved
by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC).

1.17.5.1.5. The dated signature of the licensed health
praclitioner.

o3
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1.175.2. Are aliowed to work while waiting for the results of the
second step of the TB test when the results of the first step
are negaltive for TB; and

1.17.5.3. Comply with the requirements of the Centers for Disease

Contro! Guidelines for Preventing the Transmission of

Tuberculosis in Health Faciliies Settings, 2005, if the

person has either a positive TB test, or has had direct

- contact or potential for occupational exposure to

. Mycobacterium tuberculosis through shared air space with
individuals with infectious tuberculosis.

1.17.6. The Contractor shall ensure employees, contracted employees,
volunteers and independent contractors complete a symptomatology
screen of a TB test if in direct contact with clients who have a history
of TB or a positive skin test. :

1.17.7. The Contraclor shall maintain and store in a secure and confidential
manner, a current personnel file for each employee, student,
volunteer, and contracted staff. The Contractor shall ensure each
personnel file includes, but is not limited to:

1.147.7.1. A completed application for employment or a resume,
including:

.1.17.7.1.1. Identification data; and

1.17.7.1.2. The education and work experience of the
employee.

1.17.7.2. A copy of the current job description or agreement, signed
by the individual, that identifies the:

1.17.7.2.1. Position title,
1.17.7.2.2. Qualificalions and experience; and
1.17.7.2.3. Dulies required by the posilion.

1.17.7.3.  Wiritten verification that the person meets the Contractor's
qualifications for the assigned job description, such as
school transcripts, certifications and licenses as applicable.

1.17.7.4.  Asigned and dated record of orientation.

1.17.7.5. Acopy of each current New Hampshire license, registration
or certification in health care field and CPR certification, if
applicable.

1.17.7.6.  Records of screening for communicable diseases results
required above.

:os
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1.17.7.7.  Written performance appraisals for each year of
employment including descriptions of any corrective
aclions, supervision, or training determined necessary by
the individual's supervisor,

-

1.17.7.8. Documentation of annual in-service education.

1.17.7.9.  Information on the general content and Iengih of all
continuing education or educational programs attended/

1.17.7.10. A signed statement acknowledging the receipt of the
Contractor's policy setting forth the client's rights and
responsibilities, induding confidentiality requirements, and
acknowledging training and implementation of the policy.

1.17.7.11. A slalement thal is signed by the individual at the time of
initial offer of employment and annually thereafter, stating
the individual:

1.17.7.11.1.  Does not have a felony conviction in this or |
any olher state that has not been disclosed
to the Depariment;

1.17.7.11.2. Has not been convicted of a sexual assault,
other violent crime, assault, fraud, abuse,
neglect or exploitation or pose a threat to
the health, safety or well-being of a client;
and

1.17.7.11.3. Has not had a finding by the department or
! any administrative agency in this or any
other stale for assault, fraud, abuse, neglect

or exploitation of any person; and

1.17.7.11.4.- Documentation of the criminal records
check.

1.17.8. The Contractor shall meel the minimum staffing requirements to
provide the scope of work in this contract as,follows:

1.17.8.1. A minimum of one (1) licensed supervisor, defined as:

1.17.8.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcoho! and Drug
Counselor (MLADC);

1.17.8.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC)
who also holds the Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

1.17.8.1.3. Licensed mental health provider,

C
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1.17.8.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the
services provided and the number of .individuals served.
incl uding but not limited to:

1.17.8.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCS,
LADCs and individuals licensed by the Board
of Mental Health Practice or Board of
Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver
any clinical or recovery support services within
their scope of practice.

1.17.8.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals
who have completed the required coursework
~ forlicensure by the Board of Alcohol and Other
Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental Health
Practice or Board of Psychology and are
working to accumulate the work experience
required for licensure. Unlicensed counselors
may deliver any clinical or recovery support
services within their scope of knowledge
provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor. -

1.17.8.2.3. Certified Recovery Support workers (CRSWs)
who may deliver intensive case management
and other recovery support services within
their scope of practice provided that they are
under the direct supervision of a licensed
supervisor.

1.17.8.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined
as individuals who are working to accumulate
the work experience required for certification
as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support
services within their scope of knowledge
provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

1.17.9. The Contractor shall ensure no more than 12 staff are supervised by
a licensed supervisor unless. the Depariment has approved an
alternative supervision plan. The Contractor shall:

1.17.9.1. Provide ongoing clinical supervision that ocours at regular
intervals, that include, but are not limited to:

1.17.9.1.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions

for resources or therapeutic approacfﬁ%jﬁo-
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therapy, and periodic assessment of progress;
and

1.17.9.1.2. Group supervision to help optimize the
learning experience, when enough candldates
are under supervision.

1.17.10. The Contractor shall ensure all unlicensed staff providing treatmenl,
education and/or recovery support services are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

1.17.11. The Contractor shall ensure no more than twelve (12) unlicensed staff
are supervised by a licensed supervisor unless the Depariment has
approved an alternative supervision plan.

1.17.12. The Contractor shall ensure unlicensed counselors receive a minimum
of one (1) hour of supervision for every forty (40) hours of direct client
contact.

1.17.13. The Contractor shall ensure supervision is provided on an individual
or group basis, or both, depending upon the employee's need,
experience and skill level.

1.17.14. The Contractor shall ensure supervision includes the foIIowing'
techniques:

1.17.14.1. Review of case records;

1.17.14.2.  Observation of interactions with clients;
1:17.14.3.  Skill development; and

1.17.14.4. Review of case management aclivities.

1.17.15. The Contractor shall ensure supervisors mainlain a log of the
supervision date, duration, content and who was supervised by whom.

1.17.16. The Contractor shall ensure licensed or certified employees receive
supervision in accordancé with the requirement of their licensure.

-1.17.17. The Conlractor shall provide training lo staff on:

1.17.17.1. Knowiedge, - skills, values, and ethics with specific
application to the practice issues faced by the supervisee;

1.17.17.2.The 12 Core Functions;

1.17.17.3.The Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge,
Skllls and Atlitudes of Professional Practice: and

117174The standards of prachce and ethical conduct, with
particular emphasis given to the counselor's role and

appropriate responsibilities; professional boundaries. and
power dynamlcs as well as appropriate information fegljsty
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and confidentiality practices for handling protected health
information (PHI) and substance use disorder lreatment
records, as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2.

1.17.18. The Conlractor shall notify the Department, in writing, of changes.in
any personnel with a copy of the current resume who spend a
minimum of 10% of their work lime providing substance use disorder
treatment and/or recovery support services.

1.17.19. The Contractor shall employ an administrator responsible for day-to-
day operations. The Coniractor shali:

1.17.19.1.Maintain a current job description and minimum
qualifications for the administrator, including the
1 administrator’s authority and duties; and

1.17.19.2.Establish, in writing, a chain of command that sets forth the
line of authority for the operation of services provide to be
delegated the authority and responsibility to act in the
administrator's behalf when the administrator is absent.

1.17.20. The Conlractor shall notify the Depariment in writing within one month
of hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person
essential to carrying out this scope of services is hired 1o work in the
program. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the resume of the
employee and applicable licenses, which clearly indicates the staff
member is employed by the Contractor, with the notification.

1.17.21. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within 14 calendar
days, when there is not sufficient staffing to perform all required
services for more than one month. ‘

1.17.22. The Contractor shall ensure policies and procedures related to student
interns  address. minimum coursework, experience and core
competencies for interns having direct contact with individuals served.
The Contractor shall ensure student interns, prior to beginning an
internship, complete:

+.17.22.1.A Department-approved ethics course,
1.17.22.2 A Depariment-approved course on the 12 Core Funcﬁons;

1.17.22.3.The Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge,
Skills, and Atlitudes of Professional Practice: and

1.17.22 .4 Appropriate {raining relative 10 informalion security and
confidentiality practices for handling protected health
information (PHI) and substance use disorder treatment
records, as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2. .

D
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1.17.23. The Conftractor shall ensure unlicensed staff complete the courses and
trainings within six {6) months of hire.

1.17.24. The Contractor shall ensure staff receive continuing education in the
refative to substance use disorders -as well as stale and federal laws,
and rules relating to confidentiality to ensure services provuded align
with current besl practices. . :

1.17.25. The Contractor shall provide in-service training to all staff involved in
' individual care within 15 days of the contract effective date or the
individual's start date, if after the contract effeclive date, and at least

annually thereafter on topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.17.25.1.The contract requirements.
1.17.25.2 Al policies and procedures provided by the Department.

1.17.26. The Contractor shall provide annual in-service irainings, or ensure
attendance at Department-approved annual trainings, to clinical slaff
on: . .

1.17.26.1.Hepatitis C (HCV);

1.1?.26.2.Human immunodeficiency virus (HIV);

1.17.26.3.Tuberculosis (TB); and

1.17.26.4.Sexually transmitted diseases (STDs).
1.18. Facilities License |

1.18.1. The. Contractor shall ensure all residential services provided are
licensed with the Department’s Health Facilities Administration.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall comply with the additional licensing requirements
by the Department's Bureau of Health Facilities Administration for
medically monitored and residential withdrawal management services.

1.18.3. The Contractor shall ensure faciliies where services are provided
meet all the applicable laws, rules, policies, and standards.

1.19. Inspections

1.19.1. The Contractor shall ensure the service siteis accessible to individuals
with a disability in accordance-with the Americans with Disabilities Act’
(ADA) accessibility and barrier free guidelines in accordance with 42,
U.S. C. 12131, et seq. The Contractor shall ensure each site has:

1.19.1.1. Areception area separate from'living and treatment areas;

1.19.1.2. Private spacé for personal consultation, charting, treatment
and social aclivilies, as applicable;

’ D3
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1.19.1.3. Secure storage of active and closed confidential client
records; and

1.19.1.4. Separate and secure storage of toxic substa‘nc‘es.

1.19.2. The Contractor shall admit and allow any Department representative
at any time to inspect the following.to ensure contract compliance:

1.19.2.1. The facility premises,
1.19.2.2. All programs and services provided under the contract; and

1.19.2.3. Any records required by the contract.

1.19.3. The Department may issues a notice of deficiencies when, as a result
- of any inspeclion, the Department determines that the Contractor is in
violation of any of the contract fequirements. '

1.19.4. If the notice identifies deficiencies to be corrected, the Contractor shall
- submil a plan of correction no later than 21 working days of receiving
the inspection findings. - v

1‘.20. Web Information Technology System (WITS)

1.20.1. The Contractor shall use the WITS, or an allernative electronic health .
record approved by the Department, to record all individual activity and
individual contact within (3) days following the activity or contact, as
directed by the Department.

1.20.2. The Conftractor shall obtain written informed consent from the
individual on the consent form provided by the Department before
providing services.

1.20.3. The Contractor shall ensure any individual refusing to sign the
informed consent form:

1.20.3.1. Is not entered into the WITS system; and
1.20.3.2. Does not'receive services described this contracl.

1.20.3.3. Is assisted with finding alternative payers for the required
services.

1.20.4. The Contractor shail utitize the WITS system only for individuals who
are in a program funded by, or under the oversight of, the Depariment.

1.21. Quality Improvement

1.21.1. The Contractor shall ensure the standard of care for individuals by
participating in quality improvement activities, as requested by the
Department, which include, but are not limited to:

1.21.1.1. Participating in electronic and in-person individual record .

reviews. o9
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1.21.1.2. Parlicipaling in site visits.

1.21.1.3. Panicipalirig in {raining and technical assistance activities,
as directed by the Depariment.

1.21.2. The Contractor shall maintain consistent service capacity for
Substance Use Disorder Treaiment and Recovery Support Services
by monitoring: '

1.21.2.1. Program capacily, including but not limited 1o, staffing and
~ other resources to consistently and evenly deliver these
services; and -

1.21.2.2. The percentage of contract funding expended relative to
the percentage of the contract period that has elapsed.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department if there is a difference of
more than 10% between expended funding and elapsed time on the
contract. The Contractor shall:

1.21.3.1. Notify the Department within 5 days of identifying the
difference; and

1.21.3.2. Submit a plan for correctling the discrepancy within 10 days
of notifying the Department.

1.22. Client Discharge and Transfer

- 1.22.1. The Contractor may discharge a client from a program due to:

1.22.1.1. The client completing the program or transferring based on
.changes in the client's functioning relative to ASAM criteria;

1.22.1.2. The client terminates from the program due to:
1.22.1.2.1. Administrative discharge,
1.22.1.22. Non-compliance with the program;

1.22.1.23. The client leaving the program before
completion against advice of ireaiment slaff;
and

11.22.1.3. The client being inaccessible, including for reasons that
may include, but are notlimited to the client has been jailed
or hospilalized; and

1.22.2. The Contractor shall ensure the counselor completes a narrative
discharge summary no later than seven (7) days following a client's
discharge or transfer, or for withdrawal management services, no later
than the next business day following a client's discharge or transfer.’
The Contractor shall ensure the summary includes, but is not limited

to: ) o3
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1.22.2.1. The dates of admission and discharge or transfer.

1.22.2.2: The client's psychosocial- substance abuse history and
legal history.

1.22.2.3. A summary of the client's progress toward treatment goals
in all ASAM domains. :

1.22.2.4. The reason for discharge or transfer.

1.22.2.5. The client's DSM 5 diagnosis and summary, to include
other assessment testing completed during treatment.

1.22.2.6. A summary of the client's physical condltlon at the time of
discharge or transfer.

1.22.2.7. A continuing care plan, including all ASAM domains.

1.22.2:8. A determination as to whether the client would be ehg:ble
for re-admission to treatment, if applicable.

1.22.2.9. The dated signature of the counselor completing the
summary.

1.22.3. The Contractor shall complete a progress note on the client's
" treatment and progress toward treatment goals and update the client
assessment and treatment plan when transferring a client, from one
level of care either to another within the same certlﬁed Contractor

agency or to another treatment program.

1.22.4. The Contractor shall forward copies of the following information to the
receiving agency, only after a release of confidential information is
signed by the client:

1.22.4.1. The discharge summary;

1.22.4.2. Client demographic information, including the client’s
name, date of birth, address, telephone number, and the
last 4 digits of his or her Social Security number; and

1.22.4.3. A diagnostic assessment statement and other assessment
information, including:

1.22.4.3.1. TB test resuits;
1.22.4.3.2. Arecord of the client's treatment history; and

1.22.4.3.3. Documentation of any court-mandated or
agency-recommended follow-up treatment.

1.22.5. The Contractor shall ensure the counselor meets with the client at the
time of discharge or transfer to establish a continuing care plan that:
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1.22.5.1. Includes recommendations for continuing care in all ASAM
domains; C

1.22.5.2. Addresses the use of self-help Qroups including, when
indicated, facilitated self-help; and

1.22.5.3. Assisis the client in making contact with other agencies or
services.

1.22.6. The Contractor may administratively discharge a client from a 'program
only if: . ' ‘
1.22.6.1. The client's behavior on program -premises is abusive,
violent, or illegal;
1.22.6.2. The client is non-compliant with prescription medications;

1.22.6.3. Clinical staff documents therapeutic reasons for discharge,
which may include the client's continued use of illicit drugs
or an unwillingness to follow appropriate clinical
interventions; or '

1.22.6.4. The client violates program rules in a manner that is
consistent with the Contractor's progressive discipline
policy.
1,23. Client Rights
1.23.1. Notice of Client Rights
1.23.1.1. The Contractor shall inform clients of their rights in clear,

understandable language and form, both verbally and in
wriling ensuring:

4

1.23.1.11. Abplicants for services are informed of their
rights to evaluations and access to treatment;

1.23.1.1.2. Clients are advised of their rights upon entry.
into any program and annually, thereafier.

1.23.1.1.3. Notification of rights are documented in the
client record.

1.23.1.1.4. Posting the notices continuously and
conspicuously; :

1.23.1.1.5. Complete copies of the rules pertaining to
client rights are available for client viewing in
each program and each residence, as
applicable:

: T}
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-1.23.1.2. The Contraclor shall ensure client fundamental, personal
and treatment rights are available and conspicuously
posted for client viewing.

1.24. Administrative Remedies

1.24.1. The Department may impose admnmstrahve remedies for violations of
contract requirements, including:

1.24.1.1. Requiring a Contractor to submit a plan of correction
(POCY};

1.24.1.2. Imposing a directed POC upon a Contractor
1.24.1.3. Suspension of a contract; or
1.24.1.4. Revocation of a contract.

- 1.24.2. When administrative remedies are imposed, the Department shall
. - provide a writlen notice, as applicable, which: :

1.24.2.1. Identifies each deficiency;

1.24.2.2. ldentifies the specific remedy(s) that has been proposed;
. and

1.24.2.3. Provides the Contractor with information re’garding the right
to a hearing in accordance with RSA 541-A and He-C 200.

1.24.3. A POC shall be developed and enforced in the following manner:

1. 24 3.1. Upon receipt of a notice of deficiencies, the Contractor shall
submit a written POC to the Department within 21 days of
the date on the notice describing:

1.24.3.1.1. How the Contractor intends to correct each
deficiency;

1.24.3.1.2. What measures will be put in place, or what
' system changes will be made to ensure that
the deficiency does not recur; and

1.24.3.1.3. The date by which each deficiency shall be
corrected which shall be no later than 90 days
from the date of submission of the POC;

- ‘1.24.3.2. The Department shall review and accept each POC that:

1.24.3.2.1. Achieves compl'iance with contract
requirements,; .

1.24.3.2.2. Addresses all deficiencies and deficient .

practices as cited in the inspection report;
03

SX
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1.24323. Prevents a new violation of contract ‘
requirements as a result of mplementatuon of
the POC and

1.24.3.2.4. Specifies the date upon which the deficiencies
will be corrected;

1.24.3.3. If the POC is accéptable, the Depariment shall provide
written notificalion of acceptance of the POC;

1.24.3.4. If the POC is not acceptable, the Department shall notify
; the Contractor in writing of the reason for rejecting the POC,

1.24.3.5. The Contractor shall develop and submit a revised POC to
the Department within 21 days of the date of the writlen
notification of rejection, as applicable;

1.24.3.6. If the revised POC is not acceptable to the Department, or
is not submitted ‘within 21 days of the date of the writlen
notification above, the Contractor shall be subject to a
directed POC;

1.24.4. - The Department shall verify the implementation of any POC that has
been submitted and accepted by:

1.244.1. Re\fiewing materials submitted by the Contractor;
1.24.4.2. Conducting a follow-up inspection; or

1.24.4.3. Reviewing compliance during the next scheduled
. inspection; ’ _
1.24 5. Verification of the implementation of any POC shall only occur after
the date of completion specified by the Contractor in the plan; and

1.24.6. If the POC or revised POC has not been implemented by the
completion date, the Contractor shall be issued a directed POC.

1.24.7. The Department shall develop and impose a directed POC that
specifies correclive actions for the Contractor to implement when:

1.24.7.1. As aresult of aninspeclion, deficiencies were identified that
require immediate corrective action to protect the health
and safely of the clients or personnel,

1.24.7.2. Arevised POC is not submitted within 21 days of the writlen
notification from the department; or

1.24.7.3. A revised POC submilted has not been accepted.
2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Confractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information, in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identiﬁableli—?ﬂllth
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Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties. - ,

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhlbll K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits' D through K, which are attached
hereto and mcorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requurements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly and quarterly reports no Jater than the 10™
day of the month following the reporting month or quarter.

3.2. The Contraclor shall report on the National Outcome Measures (NOMs) data in
WITS for: ‘ .

3.2.1. 100% of all individuals at admission;

32.2. 100% of all individuals who are discharged because they have
-completed treatment or transferred to another program' and

3.2.3. 50% of all individuals who are discharged for reasons other than those
specified abové in Subparagraph 31.2.

3.3, The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department that include, but
~are not limited to:

3.3.1.  The average wait time for all individuals, by the type of service and
- payer source for all the services. .

3.3.2.  The average wait time for priority individuals by the type of service and
payer source for lhe services.

3.4. The Contraclor shall notify the Department of all critical incidents in writing as
soon as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The
Contractor agrees that:

3.4.1.  “Critical incident” means any actual or alleged event or situation that
creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to physical or
mental health, safety, or well- being, including but not limited to:

3.41.1. Abuse.
3.4.1.2. Neglect,
3.4.1.3. Exploitation.
3.4.1.4. Rights violation.

3.4.1.5. Missing person. o3
l SA
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3.4.1.6. Medical emergency.
3.4.1.7. Restraint. '
3.4.1.8. Medical error.

3.5. The Contractor shall report all contact with law enforcement to the Department
in wriling as soon as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident.

3.6. The Contractor shall report all media contacts to the Department in writing as
soon as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident.

3.7. The Contractor shall report all sentinel events to the Depértment;

3.7.1. When the sentinel even involves any individual receiving services
under this contract; -

3.7.2. Immediately by verbal notification upon discovering the event, which
includes:
3.7.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and agency
and/or organization;

3.7.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the individual(s) involved in
the event;

3.7.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

3.7.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where, and how
‘the event happened, as well as other relevant information
including the identification of any other individuals involved;

3.7.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or suspected
crime; and

3.7.2.6. Theidentificalion of any media that had reported the event; and

‘ 3.7.3.  Within 72 hours of the sentinel event by submilting a completed
“Sentine! Event Reporting Form™ (February 2017) and providing any
additional information regarding the event as information becomes
available, in writing.

3.7.4.  Additional information on the event that is discovered after filing the
form in Paragraph 3.7.3. above shall be reported to the Department,
in wriling, as it becomes available or upon request of the Department;
and

3.7.5.  Submit additional information regarding Paragraph 3.7.1 through 3.7 4
- above if required by the department.

4. Performance Measures

. [+] ]
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4.1.The Contractor's performance shall be measured to evaluate that services are
mitigating negative impacts of substance misuse, including but not limited to the
opioid epidemic and associated overdoses. The Contractor shall:

411, Rebort data in WITS for Department use during the first year of the
contract in order to establish benchmarks for each of the following
measures: '

4.1.1.1. Initiation: Percentage of individuals accessing services within
14 days of screening;

4.1.1.2. Engagement: Percentage of individuals receiving 3 or more
eligible services within 34 days,

4.1.1.3. Retention: Percentage of individuals receiving 6 or more eligible
services within 60 days; :

4.1.1.4. Clinically appropriate services: % of individuals receiving ASAM
: level of care within 30 days; ’ :

4.1.1.5. Treatment completion: Percenlage of individuals completing
treatment; and

4.12. Report National Outcome Measures (NOMS) that ensure the
percentage of individuals out of all individuals discharged meet a
minimum of three (3) out of the five (5) NOMS outcome criteria listed
below: '

4.1.2.1. Reduction in /no change in the frequency of substance use at
discharge compared to date of first service.

4.1.2.2. Increase in/no change in number of individuals employed or in
school at date of |ast service compared to first service.

4.1.2.3. Reduction in/no change in number of individuals arrested in
past 30 days from date of first service to date of last service.

© 4.1.2.4. Increase in/no change in-number of individuals that have stable
housing al last service compared to first service.

4.1.2.5. Increase in/no change in number of individuals participatihg in
community support services at last service compared to first
service. -

5. Additional Terms
5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achigve
compliance therewith. - Sj{;
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5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1:» The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistancé services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English

" proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss: individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
- challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, nolices, press releases, research reports and other

- materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include-the following statement, “The-
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Depariment of Health and Human
Services.”

5.3.2. Al materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
‘approval from the Department before printing, production, dlstrlbutuon
or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.
5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4.  The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
- contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4, Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. Inthe operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipa! authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services al such facility. If any governmental @,e

| S¥
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or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marsha! and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records’
6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. - Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
. evidencing and reflécling all costs and other expenses incurred by the.
" Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received’

or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. Al records must be maintained in accordance with accounling
procedures and practices, which sufficienlly and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceplable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3.  Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
‘such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Depariment to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/irecipient of services.

-6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
" Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and

any -of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant lo the Conlract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are 1o be performed

after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of t@al
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Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deducl the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Statement at the organizational level, and Cash Flow Statement for the
Contractor. The Profit and Loss Statement shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted within
thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor shall be
evaluated on the following: )

7.1.1. 'Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered
by the unrestricted cash on hand,

. 7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments
divided by total operating expenditures,  less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments
on debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above shall mature within three (3) months
and should not include common slock.

7.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum
of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

7.1.2.  Current Ratio:

7.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assels
available to cover the cost of current-liabilities. '

7.1.2.2. Formula:‘ Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

7.1.23. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3.  Debl Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor’s ability to cover
the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

+ 7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

7.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense
plus Interest Expense divided by year to dale debt service

(principal and interest) over the next twelve (12) monthT Sj{,
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7.1.3.4. Source of Dala: The Contractor’'s Monthly Finaﬁcial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal
and interest). :

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum standard of 1.2:1 wilth no variance allowed.

7.1.4, Net Assets to Total Assets:

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability
to cover its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets {o total
assets. '

7.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assels.

7144 Source of Dataz The Contractor's Monthly Finan'ciaI'
Statements.

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

7.2. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, the Profit
and Loss stalement for the month and year-to-date for the agency and the Profit
and Loss statement for the month and year-to-date for the program being funded
with this contract.

7.3. In the event that the Contractor experiences an operating loss for two
consecutive months at the program level or at the organization level, or does
not meet either:

7.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2} consecutive months; or

7.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months, then

7.3.3. The Department may require that the Contraclor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons that the Contraclor has not
mel the standards.

7.34. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive correclive action plan within thirty (30) calendar days
of notification that any provisions oullined in 7.3 have not been met.
The corrective action plan shall include:

7.3.4.1. The specific reason(s) the Contractor did not achieve the

standard;
03
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7.3.4.2. Strategies describing how the Contractor will implement
corrective actions to address the reason(s) for noncompliance.

7.3.4.3. A date by which the reason(s) for noncompllance will be
resolved.

7.3.4.4. A program-by-program profit and loss stalement across the
entity as requested by the Department.

7.4, Notwnthstandmg Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraphs 8, Event of
DefaultyRemedies, and 9., Terminalion: '

74.3. If a correclive plan is required, the Contractor shall update the
corrective ptan at [east every thirty (30} calendar days until compliance
is achieved.

7.42. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
' continued access to services as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe agreed

upon by both parties.

- 7.5. The Contractor shall inform the Deparlment by phone and by email: within
twenty-four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably be considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under this
Agreement with the Department. )

7.6. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement,

' and all-other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this -
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the end
of each month.

8. Contract Compliance Audits

8.1.The Contractor agrees to provide fiscal reports and documentation behind
~  contract reporting documents as requested by the Department,

8.2. The Contraclor agrees to comply with requests by the Department for file reviews
to verify the administration of the contract is in compliance with state and federal
laws and rules.
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Payment Terms

1. Sources of Funding
1.1. This Agreement is funded by -

1.1.1.  16.373%, federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention
and Treatment Block Grant as awarded on October 1, 2019, by
the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
the Substance Abusé and Mental Health Services
Administration, CFDA #93.959/FAIN # T1083041;

1.1.2. . 59.892%, federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant

- as awarded on September 30, 2020, by the United States

Depariment of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse

and Mental Health Services Administration CFDA #93.788/FAIN
#TI081685 #T1083326;

1.1.3.  10.829%, general funds; and

1.1.4. 12.906%, Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery Funds.

1.2. The Sources of Funding listed in Section 1.1 represent the best funding
information available as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and may
change depending on the services provided under this Agreement

2. Forthe purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Conlraclor as a Subrecuplent in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

23, The Department has identified this Contracl as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3.  The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1.The Depariment shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided
through this contract when a client has or may have an alternalive payer
for services described the Exhibit B; Scope of Work, such as but not limited
to:

3.1.1.  Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs
for clients who are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

3.1.2.  Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for
Medicare.

Ds
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3.1.3. Services covered by the client's private insurer(s) at a rate
greater than the Contract Rate in Exhibit C-1, Service Fee
Table.

3.2.Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek
reimbursement from the State for services provided under this contract
when a client needs a service that is nol covered by the payers listed in
Section 3.1.

3.3.Payments may be withheld until the Contractor submits accurate required
monthly and quarterly reporting.

3.4, Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, when payment of the deductibie or
copay would constitute a financial hardship for the client, the Contractor
shall seek reimbursement from the State for the deductible based on the
sliding fee scale, not to exceed $4,000 per client per.treatment episode.

3.5.For the purposes of this section, financial hardship is defined as the client’s
monthly household income being less than the deductible plus the
federally-defined monthly cost of living (COL}, and:

35.1. | theindividual owns a vehicle:

Family Size
o 2 -3 4 . 5+
Monthly COL | $3,119.90 | $3,964.90 | $4,252.10' | $4,798.80 | $4,643.90

35.2. If the individual does not own a vehicle:

_ Family Size
1 2 3 4 S5+

Monthly COL | $2,570.90 | $3,415.90 | $3,703.10 | $4,249.80 | $4,643.90

4. The Contractor shall bil! and seek reimbursement for actual services delivered
by fee for services in Exhibit C-1, Service Fee Table, unless otherwise stated.
The Contractor agrees:

41.The fees for services, excluding Clinical Evaluation, are all-inclusive
contract rates to deliver the services and are the maximum atlowable
charge in calculating the amount to charge the Department for services

. delivered as part of this Agreement {See Section 5 below).

S
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4.2.To bill for Clinical Evaluation services separately from all other per-day |
units of services.

4.3. Payments may be withheld until the Contractor submnts accurate required
monthly and quarterly reporting.

5. Caleulating the Amount to Charge the Department Apollcable to All Services

5.1. The Contractor shall directly bill and receive payments from public and
private insurance plans, the clients, and the Department for services and/or
transportation provided.

5.2. The Contraclor shall ensure a billing and payment system that enables
expedited processing to the greatest degree possible in order to not delay
a client's admittance into the program and to |mmed|ately refund any
overpayments.

5.3. The Contraclor shall maintain an accurate accounting and records for all
services billed, payments received and overpayments, if any, refunded and
shall provide such records upon the request of the Department.

5.4.The Contractor shall determine and charge for services provided, as
follows:

5.4.1.  First: Charge the client's private insurance up to the amount
specified in Exhibit C-1 Service Fee Table, Table A.

5.4.2. Second: Charge the client according to Section 9, Sliding Fee
Scale, when the private insurer does not remit payment for'the
full amount specified in Exhibit C-1 Service Fee Table, Table
A.

5.4.3. Third: If, any portion of the amount specified in Exhibit C-1
Service Fee Table, Table A remains unpaid, charge the
Department for the unpaid balance.

5.5.The Contractor shall ensure the amount charged to the client does not
exceed the amounts specified in Exhibit C-1, Service Fee Table, Table A,
multiplied by the corresponding percentage specmed in Section 9 Sliding
Fee Scale, in accordance with the client's applicable income level.

5.6.The Contractor shall assist clients who are unable to secure financial
resources necessary for initial entry into the program by developing
payment plans.

5.7.The Contractor shall not deny, delay or discontinue services for enrolled
clients who do not pay fees in Section 5.4.2 above, until after working with
the client as in Section 5.6 above, and only when the client fails to pay their
fees within thirty (30) days after being informed in writing and counseled
regarding financial responsibility and possible sanctions including

discharge from treatment. [Ds
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5.8. The Contractor shall-provide copies of financial accounts to clients, upon
request. .

5.9.The Contractor shall not charge the combination of the public or private

insurer, the client and the Department an amount greater than the amount

. specified in Exhibit C-1, Service Fee Table, Table A, except for services
specified in Section 6 and Section 7, below.

5.10. The Contractor shall, in the event of an overpayment, wherein the
combination of all payments received by the Contractor for a given
service exceeds the amounts specified in Exhibit C-1, Service Fee
Table, Table A, and/or Section 6 and/or Section 7, below, refund the
parties in the reverse order, unless the overpayment was due to insurer,
client or Departmental error.

5.11. In instances of payer error, the Contractor shall refund the party who
erred, and adjust the charges to the other parties, in accordance with a
‘corrected application of the Sliding Fee Schedule.

5.12. In the event of overpayment as a result of billing the Department for
services when a third party payer would have covered the service, the
Contractor shall repay the Depariment in an amount and within a
timeframe agreed upon between the Contractor and l_he Department.

6. Additional Billing information for Room and Board for Medicaid Clients with
Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) in Residential Level of Care.

6.1.The 'Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board
payments up to $100/day for Medicaid clients with QUD in residential level
of care.

6.2. With the exception of room and board payments for transitional living, the
Contractor shall nol bill the Department for Room and Board payments in
excess of $59,390.

: 6.3. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:
6.3.1. Medicaid ID of the Client.
6.3.2. WITS ID of the Client, if applicable.
6.3.3.  Period for which room and board payments apply.

6.3.4.  Level of Carefor which the client received services for the date
range identified in 6.3.3.

6.3.5. Amount being billed to the bepartment for the service.

6.4. The Contractor shall ensure clients receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use,
Disorder {OUD).

Dismas Homa of New Hampshire, Inc, ' Exhibit C Conlractor Initials
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6.5.The Contractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with
documerted history or current diagnoses of OUD, receiving services
rendered from SOR funds, with Doorways in accordance with 42 CFR Part
2.

7. Charging the Client for Room and Board for Transitional Livirig and Low Intensity
Residentia! Services .

7.1.The Contractor may éharge the client fees for room and board, in addition
to: ‘

7.1.1.  The client's portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit C-1, Service
Fee Table, using the sliding fee scale in Table A below, and

7.4.2.  The charges to the Department.

7.2.The Contractor may charge the client for Room and Board, inclusive of
lodging and meals offered by the program according to the Table A below:

Table A
Then the Contractor may charge
the client up to the foliowing
If the percentage of Client’s income of the | amount for room and board per
Federal Poverty Level {(FPL) is: . week:

0%-138% $0
©139% - 149% $8°
150% - 199% o $12
200% - 249% $25
250% - 299% : $40
300% - 349% $57
350% - 399% ' $77

7.3.The Contractor shall hold 50% of the amount charged to the client, ensuring
itis returned to the client at the time of discharge.

7.4.The Contractor shall maintain records to account for the client's
contribution to room and board. '

8. Charaing for Clinical Services under Transiticnal Living

8.1.The Contractor shall charge for clinical services separately from this
contract to the client's other third party payers such as Medicaid, Granite
Advantage, Medicare, and private insurance. The Contractor shall not
charge the client according to the sliding fee scale.

Cos
Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit C Contracior Initlals
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8.2.Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contraclor may charge in
accordance with Sections 5.4.2 and 5.4.3 above for clinical services
provided only when the client does not have any other payer source other
than this contract.

9. Sliding Fee Scale

8.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale in accordance with
Section 5, above. :

9.2. The Contractor shail implement the sliding fee scale as follows:

Percentage of Contract
Percentage of Client's income of the Federal Rate in Exhibit C-1, to
Poverty Level (FPL) Charge the Client
0%-138% ‘ 0%
139% - 149% | 8%
150% - 199% 12%
200% - 249% 25%
250% - 299% 40%
300% - 349% 57%
350% - 399% 77%

9.3. The Contractor shall not deny a child. under the age of 18 services
because-of the parent's unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child's
decision to receive confidential services pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

= 10.Submitting Charges for Payment

10.1. The Contractor shall ,submit billing through the Website Information
Technology System (WITS) for services listed in Exhibit C-1, Service
Fee Table, Table A. The Contractor shalt: A

10.1.1.  Enter encounler note(s) into WITS no later than three (3) days
after the date the service was provided to the client

10.1.2.  Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days
following the last day of the billing month, and notify the
Department that encounter notes are ready for review.

10.1.3.  Correct errors, if any, in the encounter notes as identified by
the Department no later than seven (7) days after being
notified of the errors and notify the Department the notes have
been corrected and are ready for review.

Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc, Exhibin C Contraclor InHials
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10.1.4. Batch and transmit the encounter notes upon Department
approval for the billing month.

10.1.5. Submit separate batches for each billing month.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days
after of the last day of the billing month may be subject o non-payment.

10.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to develop an alternative
process for submitting invoices for services that cannot be billed through
WITS.

104. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic
signature and emailed to invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov, orinvoices
may be mailed to;

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

10.5. "The Contractor shall only bill room and board for SUD clients with Opioid
Use Disorder that are Medicaid coded for both residential and
transitional living services.

10.6. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program
already funded from another source.

10.7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activifies related to
Department-funded programs and services.

10.8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
-that funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part,
in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or
products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance wuth the
terms and conditions of this agreement.

10.9. The Contractor shall submit final invoices to the Department no later
than forty-five (45) days after the contract completion date.

10.10. The Contractor shall ensure any adjustments to a prior invoices are
submilted with the original invoice, adjusted invoice and supportmg
documentation to justify the adjustment.

10.11. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30)
- days of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted
invoice and if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of

the General Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.
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10.12. Thé final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40)
days after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General
Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10.13. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of ‘
Services, in compliance with funding requirements.

10.14. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be -
withheld, in whole or.in part in the event of non-compliance wnh the
terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11.Limitalions and reslictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and
Treatment (SAPT) Block Grant Funds

11.1. The Contraclor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last
resor. :

11.2. The Contractor agrees to the following funding restrictions on SAPT
Block Grant expenditures to:

11.2.1. Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance
abuse services.

11.2.2.- Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended
in Federal Fiscal Year 1991 for treatment services provided in |
penal or correclional institutions of the State.

11.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the
purpose of conducling testing for the efiologic agent for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is
accompanied by appropriate pre and post-lest counseling.

11.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contracl for the
purpose of conducling any form of needle exchange, free
needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning
of needles for intravenous drug abusers.

11.3. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Chmce federal statutory
provisions as follows:

11.3.1. Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that
religious organizations are able to equally compete for
Federal substance abuse funding administered by SAMHSA,
without impairing the religious character of such organizations
and without diminishing the religious freedom of SAMHSA
beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and 42 CFR Part 54 and
Part 54a, 45 CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and
Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory provisions of the
Public Health Service Acl enacted by Congress in 2000 are
applicable to the SAPT Block Grant program. No fungs

¥
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provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local
government 1o organizations participating in applicable
programs may be expended for inherently religious activities,
such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. If an
organization conducts such activities, it must offer them
separately, in time or location, from the programs or services
for which it receives funds direclly from SAMHSA or the
relevant State or local government under any applicable
program, and parlicipation must be voluntary for the program
beneficiaries.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following condilions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
. federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant 1o 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contraclor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable -
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. |f Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requurements Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exisls, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days afier the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year,

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

12.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under_the

| )
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Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

h
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. Dismas Home of New Hampshirs, Inc. éx‘.hibﬂ c Contractor Inftials
11/12/2020

§5-2021-BDAS-04-5UBST-02 Page 10 of 10 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 18AFDDCD-A2B9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

DocuSign Envelope ID; BS95070A-1BE 7-4BES-BFEC-1AFFIG02FEFF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit C-1

| Service Fee Table

The contract rales in the Table A are the maximum allowable charge used in the Methods for
Charging for Services.

Table A
Service MaxImum Allowable Charge Unit
1.1. | Clinical Evaluation $275.00 Per evaluation
. o | Transitional Living for '
1.2, room and board only $75.00 Per day
Low-Intensity Residential
for Adults only for clinical
1.3. services and room and $119.00 Per day
hoard '
Low-Intensity Residential
for Medicaid clients with
14-| OUD- Enhanced Room | $100-00 Per day
and Board
03
R EY
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 1o comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitte D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free .
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Sublitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1980 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will mainlain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contraclors) that is a State
may elect to make one cedification to the Depantment in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerdification. The certificate set out below is a
malerial representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cenrtification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send il to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1, The grantee cerifies thal it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statemen! notifying employees that the untawful manufacture, dislribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the graritee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Eslablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The graniee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free werkplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employaes (or drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; ’

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a),

1.4. Nolifylng the employee in the statement required by paragraph (2) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Nolify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; .

1.5. Nolifying the agency in wriling, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicled employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicled employee was working, uniess the Federag’agency

¥
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has desighated a central point for the receipt of such natices, Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affecled grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, wilh respecl to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personne! action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to paricipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.5.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s} for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, co'unty, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

. Docu3igned by:
11/12/2020 Sara ). (utat
Date - Name: PP YT Tutat
Title:

Executive Director

C.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and {urther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT QF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title V|

."Child Care Development Block Grant under Titte IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influericing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in .
connection ‘with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or ]
modification of any Federal conlract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federa!l appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cerification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all liers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shail certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or enlered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100.000 for
each such failure, .

Vendor Name:

11/12/2020
Date

:os
Exhibll £ - Cerlification Regarding Lobbying Vendor (nilials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genéral Provisions agrees ta comply with the provisions of
Executive Office af the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's
represenlative, as identified in Seclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION )
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the cenification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerification, The certification or explanation will be

* considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' {OHHS)
determination whether lo enter into this transaclion. However, failure of the prospective primary
participan! to fumish 3 certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined o enter into this transaction. 1f it is later determined that the prospeclive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may lerminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospeclive primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary paricipant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumslances. -

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” *suspended,” 'ineli'gible,' *lower tier covered
transaction,” "participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set cut in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules mplementmg Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the .
attached definitions.

6. The prospeclive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contracl) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitling this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certilication Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transaclions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a cerification of a prospeclive participant in a
fower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certificalion is erroneous, A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

S. Nothing conlained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and[ o

Exhlblt F - Certification Regarding Osbarment, Susponsion Contracior Initiats
And Other Responsibility Matters 11/12/2020
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10.

information of a panicipant is not required to exceed that which is norma!ly possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary coursa of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available lo the Federal government, DHHS may lerminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS o
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

12.

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excfuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a ciiminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
slalutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise cAiminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

- (Federal, State or focal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify' to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS :
13. By signing and submitting this.lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract),

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitling this praposal (contract) that it will -
include this clause entilled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and’
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower lier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered lransactions,

Contractor Name:

Deculignes bry:

11/12/2020 Sara. ). [udad

Date

Bmg ST T Lutat

Title: . N
Executive Director

C
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Cantractor's
representative as idenlified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 3789d)} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this stalute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, an the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
slatute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, calor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Oppoertunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Righls Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794}, which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assislance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans wilh Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation:

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-88}, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.5.C. Sections 6106-07}, which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or aclivities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does no! include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pl. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pl. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and polscy making
criteria {or parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pl. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower piotections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nationa! Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 {Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013} the Pilol Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activilies in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or viclation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of paymenlts, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
os
Exhibil G ‘ Sj{/
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward .a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s,
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Cantractor Name:

11/12/2020
Date

DS
Exhiblt G ‘ S {/
Contractor Inilials o

Cwnification o Compliance with requiremants pertaining to F eceral Nordlscrimination, Equal Tresiment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whislistioww protectiont
werid 11/12/2020
Rav. 1021714 Page 2 of 2 Data



CocuSign Envelope 1D: 1BAFDDCD-A2B9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

DocuSign Envelope 10: B595D07DA-1BET4BES-BFEC-1AFFIB02FEFF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services lo children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcoha! treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signalure of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrées ta make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1804,

Contractor Name:

11/12/2020
Date

T Lutat

:os
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually ldentifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to prolected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning gwen such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such termin section 160.103 of Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Sel” shall have the same meaning as the lerm des:gnated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164 501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164,501,

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”

- in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXill, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvesiment Acl of
2008.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually |dentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promuigated under HIPAA by the United States -
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, fimited to the information created or received-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. S JL

3014 Exhibit 1 Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Porability Acl .
Businass Associata Agreemenl 11/12/2020
Page 1 of B Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 18AFDDCD-A2B9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

DocuSign Envelope ID: B$8507DA-1BE7-4BES-BFEC-1AFFI602FEFF

New Hampshira Department of Health and Human Services

Exhiblt |

l. Rgguured by Law"” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadabie, or indecipherable 10 unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shal! have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parls 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Assocnale shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibil A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but nof limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associale may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI 1o a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed 10 the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibil A of the Agreemenl disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity 1o object to the disclosure 2 and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bus{eSSjL

312014 . Exhibil | Contraclor Initlals
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

{3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Assaciate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured

. - protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. ' The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk 1o the protected health information has been
mitigated. )

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in wriling lo the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.’

d. Business Associale shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PH! received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. :

e. Business Associale shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, 1o agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contraclor’s business assggiate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receivi gSPEI

2014 : Exhibit 1 Contractor Initlals
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine,,
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PH| in a Designated Record Set to the-
Covered Enlily, or as directed by Covered Entity, 1o an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PH| or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI avaitable to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment {o enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
indivigual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528,

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such requesl to Covered Entity. Covered Enlity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within len (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If relurn or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Assaciate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, 1o such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business‘ S JL

Exhibil | Contractor Indtials

Health nsurance Portabllity Act

Business Assoclale Agreement 11/12/2020
Page 4 of & ’ 0



DocuSign Envelope I1D: 18AFDDCD-A2B9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

OocuSign Envelope [0: BS95070A-1BET-4BES-BFEC-1AFF3602FEFF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhiblt )

{4)

(5)

(6)

2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been desiroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity -

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent thal such change or limitation ray affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Enlity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508, .

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164,522,
1o the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit [, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree 10 take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalfl of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be 1 ed
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. S

Exhiblt | Coniractor Infilats
Healih insurance Porabliity At
Business Associnle Agreement 11/12/2020
Page 50l6 e



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BAFDDCD-A2B9-4FB3-AD36-41BBC0034286

DocuSign Envelope ID: B595070A-18BE7-4BES-BFEC-1AFF3602FEFF

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which ¢an be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. - Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |,

Department of Health and Human Services Dismas Home of New Hampshire, Inc.

e o Bephibe Contractor 3
Katja fou ’ Sara ). (ubat
Signature of Authorized Representative  Signature of Authorized Representative
Katja Fox sara J. Lutat
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representalive
Director . Executive Director
Title of Authorized Representative Titte of Authorized Representalive
11/12/2020 11/12/2020
Date Date
. o3
o E Exhibit | Contractor Initials SJL
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CERTIFICAYION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT {(FFATA) COMPLIANC

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Qctober 1, 2010, to report on

. data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
-In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Depariment of Health and Human Services {DHHS) must report the following information for any
‘subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are grealer than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPENOOALNS

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabitity and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
- The below named Conlractar agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
‘Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Doculigned by: '
11/12/2020 I Sara . (et
Date ‘Name: - Lutat

Title:

Executive Director

:os
Exhibit J = Cerlification Regarding the Fedarel Funding Contrector Initlals

Accountability And Transparsncy Act (FFATA) Compllance 11/12/2020
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As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisians, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are lrue and accurate.

_ 098110045
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. Inyour business or arganization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or crganization
receive {1} B0 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and {2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants subgrants, and/or
cooperalive agreements?

X __NO . YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
-If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access o information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic repors filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the'Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 ( 15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)}) or section 61 04 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1985‘?

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name; Amount:
Namae: Amount;
Name; Amgunt;
Name: . Amount;
‘ " Name; Amount;
D3
Exhibit J — Centification Regarding the Federal F unding Contractor Inltip!s
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 11/12/2020
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaﬁing in this document:

1. "Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to -
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potenlial access 1o personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Slandards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3 “Confidenlial Information™ or “Confidential Data™ means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all'information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human. Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
" Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (P1), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4, "End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, coniractor's employee
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act thal potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attermnpts (either failed or successful) to gam unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

[}
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wiraless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
- not designated by the Slale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
appraved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, stc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. ' . '

8. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protecled Health.Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. ' ‘ ‘

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Proteclion of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. :

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Prolected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization thal is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES CGF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Centractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as oullined under this Conlract, Further, Contractor,
including but not limited 1o all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitule a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidentiai Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/08/18 Exhiblt K Contractor Initials
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response .to a
subpoena, etc., without first nolifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additiona)
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4, The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant {o the terms of this Contract. '

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmiting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor altests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or-portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Eméil. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypled and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized 1o receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers {SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site,

5. File Hosting Services, also known as. File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file -
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
. Confidential Data. ’

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continentat U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing bonable devices to transmit
Confidential Dala said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

:os
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which inforrmation will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol {SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
struclure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
informalion. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is lransmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices,-all
data must bé encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. '

Iil. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RE.CORDS

The Contractor will only retain the dala and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exisl, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract, To this end, the parties must: '

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud starage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

‘2. The Contractor agrees lo ensure proper security manitoring capabilities are in
place to delact potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systéms,

3. The Contractor agrees to provide éecurity awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

: :os
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whole, musl have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall prolection.

6. The Contraclor agrees to and ensures ils complele cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. i the Contractor will maintain any Confidentia) Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will

* obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire dala shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonsirate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thily (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Conlract, Contractor agrees 10 completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of dala erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

/

V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Conlractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Departrment
confidential information collected, processed, managed, andfor stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures o protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used 1o store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, elc.).

o
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authenlication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential mformahon
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper seéurity monitoring capabilities are in pléce to
detact potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Deparnment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users.in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expactations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. :

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub—oontractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associale Agreement
{BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Depariment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Depariment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Departiment data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promplly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Conlractor all costs of response and recovery from

1]
, ' S)
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited 1o, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1874 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually idenlifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
pravided in Seclion VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must reslrict access lo the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contracl.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadverient disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

]

V5. Lasl updale 10/00/18 Exhibil K Contractor Inltlals
DHHS Information .
Securily Requirements 11/12/2020
Page7 of & Date
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Al

limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitied by law.

o

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). ‘

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as .determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application,

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the righl to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
-Contract, including the privacy and securily requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract,

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Secdrity Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. . _

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 CF:R. §§ 431.300 - 306. in addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures musl also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in tncidents;

3. Report suspected or confirméd Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:
4

Identify and convene a core response group lo determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses 10 Incidents: and

C
V3, Last update 10v09/18 Exhiblt X Coniractor Initials

DHHS Information
Securly Requirements 11/12/2020
Page 8ol 9 ae _______
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents. from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.l ;

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI.  PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:”
- DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Lest updale 10/09/18 Exhibit K

:os
Conlractor Inilials ———
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 11/12/2020
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State” or
“Department”) and Headrest (“the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 2, 2020 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and -

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contalned
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$366,150
2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1, Subsection 1.20., Paragraph 1.20.4 to read:

1.20.4 The Contractor shall utilize the WITS system for individuals who are in a program funded
or overseen by the Department, including:

1.20.4.1. Individuals receiving BDAS-funded SUD treatment services,

1.20.4.2 Individuals receiving services from Impaired Driver Care Management Programs
(IDCMPY); and

1.20.4.3 Individuals receiving services from.Impaired Driver Service Providers (IDSP),
regardless of funding source.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.20, by adding Paragraph 1. 20 5to
-~ read:

'1.20.5 The Contractor may use WITS to enter information for non-BDAS clients, as approved by
the Department, if the Contractor was utilizing WITS prior to contract year 2019 and did not
have an alternative electronic health record available for use.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.20, by adding Paragraph 1.20.6 to
read:

1.20.6 The Contractor shall cease utilizing WITS if a client enrolls in Medicaid, obtains private
health insurance, or receives funding assistance from a private orgamzatron whlle in
treatment, unless otherwise approved by the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Section 5, Subsection 5.3, Credits and Copyright Ownership to update the heading
title to read:

5.3. Credits, Copyright Ownership, and Licenses
6. Modify Exhibit B, Section 5., Subsection 5.3, by adding Paragraph 5.3.5 to read:
9.3.5. Effective May 1, 2021, if a Contractor publicly references or markets their use of American
Society of Addiction Medicine criteria, or utilizes language related to American Society of Addiction
Medicine levels of care in promotion or marketing of their services, the Contractor shall:
D8 :
2.3.5.1. Sign and have in effect, Exhibit L, Amendment #1 Sample End Usi ldgense
SS-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST'-06-A01 Headrest Contractor Initials:

' 1
A-8-1.0 Page 10f 4 Date:5/12/202
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Agreement with the State of New Hampshire prior to such referencing or
marketing.

5.3.5.2. Comply with the executed End User License Agreement, or shall otherwise not be
permitted to publicly reference or market the use of anything related to American
Society of Addiction Medicine.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 6, to read:

6. Additional Billing information for Room and Board for Medicaid Clients with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) or Stimul_ant Use Disorder in Residential Leve! of Care.

6.1.  The Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board payments up to $100
per day for Medicaid clients with OUD or Stimulant Use Disorder in residential level of
care.

6.2. ' With the exception of room and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor
shall not bill the Department for Room and Board payments in excess of $2716,900.

6.3. The Contractor shali maintain documentation that includes, but is not limited to:

6.3.1. Medicaid ID of the Client.

6.3.2. WITS ID of the Client, if applicable.

6.3.3. Period for which room and board payments apply.

6.3.4. Level of Care for which the client received services for the date range
identified in 6.3.3.

6.3.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service.

6.4. The Contractor shall ensure clients receiving services rendered from SOR funds have
- a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) or Stimulant
Use Disorder. .

6.5. The Contractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with documented
history or current diagnoses of OUD or Stimulant Use Disorder, receiving services
rendered from SOR funds, with Doorways in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 9, Submitting Charges for Payment, Subsection 9.5, to
read:

9.5  The Contractor shall only bill room and board for SUD clients with Opioid Use Disorder
and/or Stimulant Use Disorder that are Medicaid coded for both residentiat and
- transitional living services.

9. Modify Exhibit C-1, Service Fee Table, Table A, Row 1.6 to read:
Service Maximum Allowable Charge | Unit-

1.6 | Low-Intensity = Residential  for | $100.00 ‘Per day
Medicaid clients with OUD or
Stimulant Use Disorder - Enhanced
Room and Board

10. Add Exhibit L, Amendment #1 - Sample End User License Agreement, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

DS
cF
$5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06-A01 Headrest Conltractor Initials:

2/2021
A-5-1.0 Page 2 of 4 Dala:s/l /
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment #1 remain in fuli force and
effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

"IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
5/13/2021 . Katjn For
Date Name: RaLI& FoX ="
Title: Director
Headrest
DocuSigned by:
5/12/2021 . Camston Fotd
Date Name: cameron Eord
Title:  gyecutive pirector
$5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06-A01 Headrest

A-5-1.0 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution,

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

. DocuSigned by:
5/14/2021 c@h

Date Name: Cg%ﬂ'}'lléhﬂ ne Pinos

Title:  attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved'by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
§8-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06-A01 Headrest

A-5-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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SAMPLE End User License Agreement

This End User License Agreement ("EULA") is made this ___ day of , 20

by the undersigned provider ("ELIGIBLE PROVIDER") with the American Society of
Addiction Medicine (“LICENSOR") with offices at 11400 Rockville Pike Suite 200,
Rockville, MD 20852 and <PUBLIC ENTITY NAME> (“LICENSEE") with offices at
<PUBLIC ENTITY OFFICE LOCA TION>, Capltallzed terms not defined herein shall have
the meanings as set forth in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, LICENSOR and LICENSEE entered into the Public Entity Permission
Agreement (“Agreement”) on [DATE];

WHEREAS, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER desires to be subject to a non-transferrable sub-
licensee to use the WORK pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER desires to be-subject to the Agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, in order to be legally bound, and for good and valuable
consideration, which is hereby acknowledged, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER elects as follows:

1. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER hereby agrees to participate, comply and be bound by the
terms of the Agreement. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER represents that it has reviewed the
Agreement attached hereto which is made a part of and incorporated herein.

2. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER shall be permitted to describe, characterize, market, or
- otherwise communicate their compliance with the ASAM Criteria and delivery of
specific ASAM Level(s) of Care to the extent the WORK is incorporated into state
laws or policies that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER is subject to. Such communications may
use plain-text versions of the ASAM trademark and The ASAM Criteria trademark,
but shall not use any logo, seal, or graphic incorporating the ASAM or The ASAM
Criteria trademark without separate, direct permission from ASAM. ELIGIBLE
PROVIDER shalt not be permitted to incorporate ASAM Criteria content in their other
business operations, including digital technology and commercial training services,
‘uniess they have a separate, direct agreement with ASAM to license the ASAM
Criteria.

3. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER agrees that LICENSOR retains the right to review and
approve the ELIGIBLE PROVIDER's public communications described in paragraph
2 upon request, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, and ELIGIBLE
PROVIDER agrees to make such public communications only in the form approved
by LICENSOR. ELIGIBLE PROVIDER agrees to provide to LICENSOR the means
to access any public communications described in paragraph 2 for the limited
purpose of ensuring compliance with this Agreement. LICENSOR agrees to notify
ELIGIBLE PROVIDER of any objections to its public communications within thirty (30)
business days of LICENSOR’s review. If LICENSOR does not approve the public
communications subject to paragraph 2, ELIGIBLE PROVIDER may redesign and/or

DS
[«

5/12/2021
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Exhibit L, Amendment #1

SAMPLE End User License Agreement

modify them and submit to further review by LICENSOR. In the event that
LICENSOR has not approved the public communications within 180 days following
the initial review, the LICENSOR may terminate this EULA.

4. LICENSOR shall have the right to immediately terminate this EULA only by providing
written notice of such termination to ELIGIBLE PROVIDER in the event that
ELIGIBLE PROVIDER fails to abide by any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, in the event that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER's license, contract, or other
arrangement with LICENSEE terminates or expires for any reason, or in the event
that ELIGIBLE PROVIDER'’s continued use of the WORK or operation of the
OPERATIONS is reasonably determined by LICENSOR to be materially detrimental
to the interests of ASAM and its members. In the event of a termination of this
Agreement for any reason, all rights with respect to the WORK shall automatically
revert to LICENSOR. Termination of this EULA shall be without prejudice to any rights
of either party at law or equity.

5. In the event of a conflict between the terms of any other agreements between
LICENSEE agreement and ELIGIBLE PROVIDER and the Agreement, the terms of
the Agreement shall control as to ELIGIBLE PROVIDER's, LICENSOR's, and
LICENSEE's obligations under the Agreement.

The ELIGIBLE PROVIDER hereby accepts the terms contained herein by signing below.

ELIGIBLE PROVIDER

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Address:

Email address:

'Telephone number:

National Provider Identifier: -

Date:

G

5/12/2021
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Sccretary of Siate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HEADREST is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 27, 1972. 1 further centify that all
fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Busincss ID: 61466
Certificate Number: 0005345860

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
‘the Scalvof the State of Ncw Hampshire,
this 12th day of April A.D. 2021,

Do bd

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, Andrew Daubenspeck , hereby certify
that:

{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of
Headrest

{Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/

shareholders, duly called and held on April 20 ,2021___, at which a quorum of the
Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

{Date) ' N
VOTED: That _Cameron Ford, Executive Director {may list

more than one person) .
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Headrest to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the
purpose of this vote.

3: | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remairis in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is
attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of
Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire wil rely on this
certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are
any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:4/21/2021

, . Signature of Elected Officer
Q_ C—.Q-—_ W Name: Andrew Daubenspeck

Title: Secretary of the board

Rev. 03/24/20
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e HEADINC-01 MDEMICK
ACeRP CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oare umorry

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRAGCT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. )

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to tho certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT
SOBB?);(’OB,Ga division of The Rowley Agency :’ﬂg”‘,&. £x): {603) 643-4540 I (FAAJé ne)-(603) 643-6382
Hanover, NH 03755 | 5gbkEss.
INSURER(S} AFFQRDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer 4 : Philadelphia Insurance Co.
INSURED insurer & : Eastern Alliance )
Headreast, Inc. INSURER C :
14 Church Street INSURER D :
Lebanon, NH 03766 INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFQRDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iy TYPE OF INSURANGE ADDLSueR POLICY NUMBER (MABONOr) | R LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| cams-mape [ X ] occur PHPK2158369 | 7152020 | 7Msiz021 | BRMASEIORENTED s 100,000
% | Professional Liahilt : ' : MED EXP (Any one person)__ | $ 5,000
L _ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L, AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
POLICY D & \:I Loc . PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3’090’000
OTHER:- 3 .
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY JCEdeEDS'NGLE LMT 1,000,000
| any aUTO PHPK2158365 711512020 | 715/2021 | gooiLy INJURY (Par person) | §
| owNED SCHEDULED
|l AUTOS oMLY AUTOS . BODILY INJURY {Per gccident) | $
AMAGE
| X | RO onuy PRy RN s
; T
A | X |umerertatms | X [ occur . EACH OCCURRENCE $ 3,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB731419 71152020 | 7/15/2021 AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
oep | X [ retentions 10,000 s
: PER OTH-

B e SRR P Re | %%
AgzlgggfifIETORR”EQ?:I{‘;EE’E%(ECUTNE ia 128046-01 711512020 | 7THS5202% [ o ACH AGCIDENT s 500,000
fdanitory 1n i ‘ E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 500,000
IiEes. describe under 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF QPERATIONS batow E.L. DISEASE - PQLICY LIMIT | § J

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATI;DNS fLOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule, may ba attached If more space is required) .
Workers Compensation Covered States- 3A Part Ona: NH. 3C Part Three: No coverage afforded for other states. Excluded Officers: Board of Directors.

- CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

- SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
. . THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELWERED IN
State of New Hampshire , ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Department of Health & Human Sarvices
128 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 033014 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

| ' | Ay

ACORD 25 {2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
: The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement (updated January 2020)

Headrest supports individuals and their families, friends and neighbors affected by
substance use, navigating recovery, or in crisis, by providing effective programs and
treatment options that support prevention and long-term recovery.
Headrest will never turn anyone away.

Vision:

We imagine a world where there is no shame in getting the help you need.
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HEADREST, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020 and 2019
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES P. C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
46 N, S'I'ALI'IE STREET
CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301
TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
FAX #(603) 226-33532

MEMBER
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors
Headrest, Inc.
Lebanon, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Headrest, Inc., which comprises the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash flows and functional
expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Rcsponsﬂnhty - :
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of ma'terial_
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contro! relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinioh.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Headrest, Inc. as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Headrest, Inc.’s 2019 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on
those audited financial statements in our report dated December 5, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

M*M:FV

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
December 16, 2020
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Tune 30, 2020, With Comparative Totals for Fune 30, 2019
Sce Independent Auditors' Report

Net Asscts Net Assets |
Without Donor  With Donor 2020
Restrictions Restrictions Total 2019
ASSETS ’
CURRENT ASSETS o
Cash and cash equivalents $ 468,485 $ $ 468,485 $ 6,807
Accounts receivable 110,500 110,500 108,999
Grants receivable - - 20,000
Prepaid expenses _ 4,800 4,800 4,397
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 583,785 583,785 140,203
FIXED ASSETS ‘
Land . 19,010 19,010 19,010
Building and improvements 241,037 241,037 241,037
-Furnishings and equipment 201,123 201,123 182,782
Total Fixed Assets 461,170 461,170 442 829
Less accumulated depreciation (345,474) (345,474) (328,864}
115,696 115,696 113,965 .
OTHER ASSETS
Loan origination fee, net of amortization 374 374 500
TOTAL ASSETS  § 69§,855 $ $ 699,855 $ 254,668
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 21,765 $ 5 21,765 5 11,621
Accrued expenses 57,905 57,905 37,964
Line of credit : - - 35,128
- Current portion of long term debt 10,628 10,628 9,996
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 90,298 90,298 94,709
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long term debt 23,738 23,738 '35,354
OTHER LIABILITIES _
SBA Payroll Protection Program loan 182,300 182,300
TOTAL LIABILITIES 296,336 296,336 130,063
NET ASSETS
Net assets without donor restriction ’ 403,519 403,519 88,199
Net assets with donor restriction - - 36,406
TOTAL NET ASSETS 403,519 403,519 124,603
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  § 699,855 5 $ 699 855 $ 254,668

. Notes to Financial Statements
2.
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets
‘Without Donor With Donor 2020
Restrictions Restrictions Total 2019
SUPPORT AND REVENUE ‘
State contracts $ 536,315 $ - 536,315 484,813
Local government grants 123,510 - 123,510 98,074
Contributions 157,492 - 157,492 168,023
Service fees ‘ ' 658,399 . 658,399 295,582
Other grants . 282,057 - 282,057 248,963
Interest 226 - 226 46
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 1,757,999 - 1,757,999 1,295,501
Net assets released from donor
imposed restrictions’ 36,406 (36,406) - -
EXPENSES _ :
Program services - ' 1,264,857 - §,264,857 1,060,046
Management and general 176,965 . - 176,965 157,637
Fundraising 37,263 - 37.263 27,470
1,479,085 - 1,479,085 1,245,153
Increase (decrease) in net assets ‘ 315,320 (36,406) 278,914 50,348
Net Assets, Beginning of year ) - 88,199 36,406 - 124,605 74,257
Net assets, End of year $ 403,519 % - 403,519 124,605

Notes to Financial Statements
-3-
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HEADREST, INC :
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
See Independent Auditors' Report

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets : ,
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets

to niet cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
{(Increase) in Operating Assets
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
{Decrease) increase In Operating Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Line of credit

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of vehicle and equipment
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds, Payroll Protection Plan

Repayments of long term notes payable

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW

Cash paid for interest

Notes to Financial Statements
) 4.

2020 2019
278,914 $ 50,348
16,736 13,758
(1,501) (32,441)
20,000 (20,000)
(403) (319)
10,144 8,547
19,941 10,949
{35,128) (24 872)
308,703 5,970
(18,341) (36,865)
182,300 -
(10,984) (9,678)
171,316 (9,678)
461,678 {40,573y
6,807 47,380
468,485 $ 6,807
3,722 $ 3,809
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2019
See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Services Management 2020 2019
Quutpatient CMRD Total & General Fundraising Total Total

Payroll $ 660,950 $§ 220,317 $ 8Bl,267 § @ 76632 § 24562 § 982461 § 816,824

* Payroll taxes 52,554 17,518 -70,072 6,093 1,953 78,118 62,527
Fringe benefits 77,340 25,780 . 103,120 . 8967 2,874 114,961 89,160
Professional fees - - - 30,432 - 30,432 15,665
Telephone and internet 1,558 637 2,195 1,469 - 3,664 3,229
Printing - - - 3,085 1,851 4,936 3,567
Depreciation 9,863 4,028 13,891 2,845 - 16,736 . 13,738
Rent 25,618 10,464 36,082 7,390 - 43,472 37,200
Utilities 17,218 7,032 24,250 : 4,967 - 29,217 22,095
Billing Services 43,373 - 43,373 - - 43,373 42,154
Repairs and maintenance 15,060 6,151 21,211 . 4,345 - 25,556 19,188
Supplies ) 6,714 2,743 9,457 6,626 - 16,083 11,904
Vehicle expensé 3,666 1,498 5,164 3,315 - 8,479 11,695
Interest ) - 2,196 897 3,093 629 - 3,722 _3,809
Insurance 19,068 7,789 26,857 2,335 749 29,941 33,27
Bookkeeping . - - . - - - 17,400
Food _ - 18,266 18,266 - - 18,266 16,860
Professional development 2,060 841 2,901 5114 - 8,015 6,607
Membership dues and fees - - - 9,129 - 9,129 8,433
Laundry : - 2,270 2,270 ) - - 2,270 2,262
Miscellaneous - 1,388 1,388 - 5,274 6,662 .3,254
Website & Marketing ‘ - . - - 3,592 -

3,592 4,291

TOTAL EXPENSES § 937,238 '3 327,619 § 1264857 § 176965 $§ 37,263 $1,479,085 ######

Notes to Financial Statements
-5.
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
‘Nature of Activities

Headrest, Inc. (“Headrest™) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that provides
information and referral, crisis intervention and other related services through the uses of a
telephone hotline and office visitations. Headrest also provides outpatient counseling,
residential treatment, and information to the community relating to drugs and alcohol. The
organization's primary source of income is from state contracts, service fees, grants, and
donations.

Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding the Organization’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Organization’s management who is responsible for their integrity and-
objectivity. These accounting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred..
The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor
restrictions. '

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions — These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — These net assets result from gifts of cash and other
assets that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either
temporarily or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated
time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction 1s accompllshed the net assets are
restricted.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute
a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2019, from which the summarized information was derived.
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and Equipment |

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $1,000 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily the straight-line
method. Depreciation Expense was $16,736 and $13,758 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Income taxes

The Organization has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization
is further classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) .
of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is
exempt from income taxes and its determination of whether any amounts are subject to
unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization follows the guidance of Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition and recognition of
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant tax positions have
been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not that all .
tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authormes Accordingly, no
prov1510n for income taxes has been recorded.

Grants Recelvable and Recogmnon of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the
Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net
assets without donor restriction if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases
in net assets with donor restriction. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restriction
are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction. Contributions of long-lived assets are

. considered without donor restriction unless the donor specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and accounts receivable using the allowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other circumstances,
which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations. Receivables are considered
impaired if full principal payments are not received in accordance with the contractual terms. It
is the Organization’s policy to charge off uncollectible grants and accounts receivable when
management determines the receivable will not be collected. There were no balances in the
allowance account related to accounts receivabie as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 because all
amounts were deemed collectable.
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1 NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 the Organization had no cash equivalents.

Public Support and Revenue

All contributions are considered to be without donor restriction use uniess specifically restricted
by the donor. -

Functional Expenses

Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated among program services based on
an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Cost Allocation:

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting function
and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are
allocated are payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; rent, depreciation, utilities, and maintenance and repairs which are
allocated on the basis of space utilized for the related activities.

Compensated Absences

Employees of Headrest are entitled to earned benefit time (EBT) depending on job
classification, length of service and other factors. The accrued expense for EBT for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $24,485 and $19,546 respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s
assessment of the credit history with agencies, organizations and individuals having
outstanding balances and current relationships with them. There was no balance in the
allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2020-and 2019. '

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1 NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Concentration of Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances in several accounts-at local banks. These accounts
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization may have cash balances at the financial institution that
exceeds the insured amount. Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in
a high level of risk for the Organization. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization had
$218,485 and $0 in uninsured cash balances, respectively.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, grants receivable, prepaid
expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2020
and 2019, which approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these
Imstruments. '

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization adopted the requirements of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU
2016- 14). This Update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset
classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return
between not-for-profit entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset classes
used in these financial statements. Amounts previously reported as unrestricted net assets are
now reported as net assets without donor restrictions and amounts previously reported as
temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets are now reported as net -

. assets with donor restrictions. ' '

The accompanying information from the 2018 financial statements has been restated to
conform to the 2019 presentation and disclosure requirements of ASU 2016-14.

Reclassifications

|
Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has

been reclassified to conform-with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2020, the date on which
the financial statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance
to require disclosure. There were no events matching this criterion during this period.
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 2 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

A substantial portion of Headrest’s revenue comes from the Department of Health and Human
Services of the State of New Hampshire. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 revenue from
the contract was approximately 30% and 40%, respectively of total revenue.

NOTE 3 LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization has a $75,000 line of credit with a local bank through January, 2021,
collateralized by all assets, with interest at Wall Street Journal prime. Interest was 4.25% as of

June 30, 2020. The outstanding balance was $0 and $35,128 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

NOTE 4 NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following as of:

June June
2020 2019
Mortgage note payable with bank with interest at 4.5%
dated July 31, 2003 and due July 15, 2023 with monthly
instaliments of principal and interest of $996.45, secured
by all assets of the organization, $ 34,366 $45,350
.Less current maturities ' 10,628 | 9.996
Long term debt, less current maturity £23,738 §$.352334
Scheduled principal repayments-on long term debt for the next four years and thereafter follows:
Year Ending
June 30
2021 $ 10,628
2022 11,117
2023 11,627
2024 994
Total 534,366

-10-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 5 OPERATING LEASES
The Organization entered a five-year and three-month lease beginning February 2018 and expiring

April 2023 for office space. Rent expense related to this lease was $41,072 and $37,200 for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, Future minimum rent related to this lease as of June

30 1s:
2021: $ 45,234
2022: 47,040
2023: 40.500
$132,774

NOTE 6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of
assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Significant other
Observable Inputs’
Fair Value {(Level 2)

2020 .

Accounts receivable § 110500 $ 110500

2019

Accounts receivable $ 108,999 $ 108,999

Grants receivable 20,000 20,000
Total § 128999 3128999

The fair market value of accounts and grants receivable are estimated at the present value of
expected future cash flows.

NOTE 7 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Organization had board designated net assets in a reserve bank account of $0 and $2,632 as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

11-
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HEADREST, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020 and 2019
NOTE 8 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets subject to expenditure for specific purpose as of June 30:

2020 2019
Staff Referral Bonuses $ - § 2,750
Retention Bonuses _ - 4,806
HR Recruitment Strategy - 4,000
Supervision Capacity Support - 4,850
Couch Family Foundation Grant : - 20,000
Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions by - 5 36406

NOTE 9 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The Organization’s primary sources of
support are contributions, state contracts and grants. Most of that support is held for the purpose of
supporting the Organization’s budget. The Organization has the following financial assets that
could readily be made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

' ' 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 468,485 $ 6,807
Accounts receivable 110,500 108,999
Grants receivable o - 20,000

- 578,985 135,806

Less amounts required to be held for
donor restriction - 36,406
$578,985 399,400

NOTE 10. SBAPAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 16, 2020 the Organization received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business
Administration as part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of $182,300. This loan
calls for interest fixed at 1%.- No payments are required for six months from the date of the loan.
This note will mature two years from the date of first disbursement of the loan. It is likely that this
loan will be forgiven under the provisions of Section 1106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 116-136). On December 3, 2020 the Organization’s
request was submitted for full forgiveness to the SBA.

12-
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Draft of Board member contact information (CONFIDENTIAL) [July 1, 2020]

Laura Cousineau John Ferney David McGaw Joan Vogel

Nominating cte. Chair Executive cte. Member-at- o Personnel cte.

Development cte, large . ' Nominating cte. .

Governance cte. Personnel cte. Chair ' Brandon Koone
Finance cte. " Matt McKenney Tuck Intern

Andy Daubenspeck Governance cte ' :

Laurie Harding

Board Chair” Facilities cte.
Ex officio on all ctes. M&A ad-hoc cte.
Board Secretary”
Governance cte. chair : Kathie Nolet Alison Underwood
Personnel cte, : Tuck Intern
Past president’ '
Perry Eaton . Nominating cte.
Development cte. Development cte.
Angie Leduc Personnel )
Board Treasurer’ : Cameron Ford, Exec. Director
Finance cte chair _ Carof Olwert
IT cte. chair .
. Vice-chair’ : Executive Director
Karl Ebbighausen Governance cte. ' Development cte. chair
Nominating cte. Finance cte.
Jay Leiter John Vansant
Nominating cte.
Development cte. Facilities cte. Chair

‘Executive cte.
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ALBERT CARBONNEAU

EXPERIENCE

N N Y T T Y PR N N Y N Y

FEBRUARY 2020 — PRESENT

HEADREST

HOTLINE MANAGER

PARTICIPATE IN INTERVIEWING AND HIRING APPROPRIATE HOTLINE COUNSELORS, TRAIN NEW
HOTUNE STAFF, PROVIDE STAFF EVALUATIONS, MANAGE SCHEDULE, REVIEW CALL LOGS AND
PROVIDE FEEDBACK, MANAGE ICARROL DATABASE, PROVIDE REPORTS AS NECESSARY,
FACILITATE MONTHLY STAFF MEETINGS, PARTICIPATE IN MANAGEMENT MEETINGS, PROVIDE
ON-CALL SUPPORT, WORK WITHIN ASSIGNED HOTLINE BUDGET, OUTREACH INTO THE HOTLINE
CATCHMENT AREA

JUNE 2010 - PRESENT
UPPER VALLEY HAVEN

SHELTER STAFF, SHELTER TEAM LEADER, PROGRAM ASSOCIATE/ RECOVERY
SUPPORT

Tasks included working on meeting shelter guest’s day to day needs. Doing house laundry,
making meals when necessary, Keeping notes, entering data, sorting mail, providing
transportation when necessary. Attending shelter staff meetings.

Oversee Family and Adult Shelters. Assist Shelter staff with their jobs. Maintain shelter staff
schedule, Fill in shifts when necessary. Facilitate shelter staff meetings. Submitting supply orders.
Oversaw operation of Seasonal Shelter. Transport and advocate for guests, help in food shelf,
deliver food to.outside programs. Support guests struggling with recovery.

JUNE 2002 - MARCH 2014, MAY 2016 — PRESENT
HEADREST

RESIDENTIAL MANAGER, RECOVERY ASSISTANT, HOTLINE COUNSELOR

Oversee Residential program. Facilitate groups, transport clients, observe medications. One on
One counseling. Oversee staff. Maintain schedule: Minor maintenance repairs. Write daily notes
for individual as well as group. Enter data into multiple databases. Answer calls on the National
Suicide Prevention Hotline, make appropriate referrals, Notify and work with 911 for emergency
interventions as needed. '

EDUCATION

JUNE 1981
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JONOTHAN LAW HIGH SCHOOL

sampewas

SKILLS

# Great working with people. Have a calm
demeanor. Knowledgeable about
homelessness.

* Reliable, dependable, hardworking, punctual,
organized.

ACTIVITIES

Trainings include: Motivational Interviewing, CBT, DBT, Recovery Coach, Ethics, Trauma informed
practices, Bridges out of Poverty, 12.Core Functions, MAT, De-escalation techniques, Relapse
prevention. Trained on HMIS Service Point, NH WITS programs, ICarroll



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 498C0B1C-6564-41D1-B141-1360FE7ED 188

Cameron Ford

EDUCATION

B.S. degree, Organizalional Management, Daniel Webster College, Nashua, NH
Certificate, Human Services, NH Technical College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Aprif 2017- Present

Executive Director, Headrest Inc.

Headrest is a non-profit community organization focusing on addiction and crisis
assistance since 1971. Services include 24 hour Hotline, Quipatient Counseling, a
Transitional Living program, and Outreach and Community Education.

I provide leadership and direction as the senior executive to the organization. Responsible
Jor monitoring the quality and effectiveness of the agency programs and services, and
provide effective leadership in the operations of the organization. Serve as a liaison for the
agency within the community. Responsible for the overall financial health of the
organization. Maintain oversight and compliance with state, federal and grant funding.
Collaborate with other agencies to provide ¢fficient services.

August 2015 to Present-

Founder, CEQ Iron Heart Gateways to Success
fron Heart is a non-profit dedicated to helping Veterans and people facing barriers to
employment find and maintain living wage jobs with sustainability opportunities. As co-
Sounder of this organization, I am committed to every individual that comes through the
door to help them make life changing choices regarding employment, financial literacy
and education.

February 2014 to June 2015-

Executive Director, Granite Pathways

Granite Pathways is a peer-support, self-help contmunity that provides hope and dignity to adults
with mental illness. The mission of Granite Patlnways is to empower and support adults with
mental illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing,
rewarding achievements, and meaningful relationships. It does that by following the certification
standards of the International Center for Clubhouse Development (ICCD,), which define an
evidence-based model of rehabilitation that achicves superior employment and recovery outconies.

*  Responsible for the overall management of the organization including staff development,
strategic planning, fiscal management, and growth.

e Maintain stakeholder relationships, Establish, developed, and maintained
collaborative relationships with foundations and funding sources
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Increased meahbersl—:ip at the clubhouse by 40%
Increased number of employed members by 60%
Completed training at an ICCD certified training Center (Genesis, Worcester Mass.)

February 2004 to March 2013-

Executive Director, MY TURN Inc.

The MY TURN program provides services to approximately 800 students per year through
both in school and out of school programs. The programs provide educational
advancement opportunities, dropout prevention, and include services such as community
service learning, tutoring and study skills, employment skills training, mentoring, college
preparation, leadership, and guidance and counseling. The majority of finding for the
organization is through WIA funds in partnership with local workforce boards. My
position initially covered the NH region until [ was promoted in 2011 to manage the entire
organization.

Administered and oversaw the growth and fiscal management and operations of the
MYTURN Organization in New Hampshire and Massachusetts. Responsibilities
included Board Development, Strategic planning, fundraising and program
development, Position reported to the CEQ.,

Established, developed, and maintained collaborative relationships with
SJoundations, workforce boards and funding sources, and high demand labor market
industries,

Successfully expanded the marketing of the program to and created partnerships
with schools, community colleges, Chambers of Commerce, local civic
organizations, state vision teams and economic development groups.

Explored and developed sustainable avenues for funding and for the growth and
continuous improvement of the MY TURN programs through financial
colluborations with schools and higher education entities, grant writing, and
responding to RFP’s

Managed and motivated 18-20 staff throughout the region including all aspects of
human resources.

Responsible for Regional Board Development, Strategic planning, fundraising and
program development. Position reports to the CEQ.

Oct 1994-April 2004-
Waork Opportunities Unlimited Inc., Director of Youth Development

Oversaw the operation of the Youth Career Program for adjudicated yvouth that
included peer and family groups, career focused jobs for youth, adventure-based
activities such as hikes, camping trips, deep-sea fishing, and experiential based
group activities. This program was highly regarded in New England as an
alternative to placement for adjudicated youth. During my leadership, this program
averaged a 9% recidivism rate.

Created and established new state marketing to funding sources and industry,
development and implementation of the Youth Career Program that assisted
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adjudicated and at risk youth in Workforce Development and youth development
activities. Trained new directors and staff. Contributed to the strategic plan
process for growth of the youth programs within the organization and developed
strategies for expansion into new states. During my leadership, this program
received recognition as a Promising Effective Practices Program from the National
Youth Employment Coalition in Washington DC

8 Responsible for the management of five offices in N.H. and the supervision of as
many as 18 staff” Directly involved in hiring of staff, training and support, and
program growth. Developed and consistently exceeded yearly program recruiting,
operational and financial goals through a strategic planning process.

March 1991-Oct 1994-
Work Opportunities Unlimited Inc. Concord N.H Employment Representative

o Responsible for job development activities for youth and adults with disabilities.
Worked with Counselors from Vocational Rehabilitation, Area Agencies and local
schools. Carried a caseload of 45 clients that included adults and youth from
schools and the Youth Development Center. Maintained an 80% success rate for
placements.

Volunteer Associations-

o Co-Chair, Manchester Continuum of Care _
"o Past Board Chair, Girls at Work, Non-Profit Organization that engages girls in
non-traditional work experiences, with emphasis on the construction field
e Queen City Rotary Club
o Board of Directors, Helping Hands, Manchester NH

Achievements/Awards-

o St Anselm College Presidents' Community Partner Award

o “Entreprencurship! 01 Award” National Consortivun for Entreprencurship

-~ Education :

o National Youth Employment Coalition's New Leaders Academy Class of 2000.
Certifications- ‘

e National Foundation for Teaching Entrepreneurship

o CESP, Nationally Certified Supported Employment Support Professional

o Clubhouse Administrative Training Certification. 2015, Genesis, Worcester Mass.

References- Available upon request
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Chelsea Simpson

SUMMARY

Highly organized individual with a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting & Finance and over 4 years
professional experience. Cosmetologist and previous restaurant manager with excellent

customer service and communication skills. Highly proficient in QuickBooks Desktop, Certified
QuickBooks Online ProAdvisor, and highly proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel and PowerPoint.

OBJECTIVES

To advance my professional career to the next level. | aspire to be not only a great worker, but
also a great leader.

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University
Manchester, New Hampshire

Bachelor of Science, Accounting & Finance
Graduated May of 2020

Magna Cum Laude

New England School of Hair Design
West Lebanon, New Hampshire
Cosmetology

Graduated April 2014
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EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
Headrest, Inc-

14 Church Street
Lebanon, NH 03766

Assistant Director
July 2019-Present

Solely responsible for managing and completing all duties around accounting, payroll, and
human resources. Complete internal audits to ensure insurance is being billed properly. Assist
with grant reporting, completing yearly audit, and strwmg to ensure the organization is
maintaining a positive financial position.

OneSourcé Financial Group

P.O Box 1478

White River Junction, VT 05001
Accounting & Payroll Specialist
October 2016-June 2019

The primary bookkeeper and sole payroll processor. Also completed IRS tax returns for both
individuals and businesses, as well as “front desk” administrative duties.

Lake Sunapee Bank
106 Hanover Street
Lebanon, NH 03766
Teller 1i/Customer Service Representative

Promoted to CSR after only 3 months of employment. Responsible for basic teller duties along
with account opening, fraud reports, and ordering money.
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Subway

1 Glen Road

West Lebanon, New Hampshire 03784
Manager

October 2b10-0ctober 2014

Responsibilities included weekly inventorying, scheduling, banking, food ordering, employing,
terminating, and handling customer complaints.

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION
National Society of Collegiate Scholars
September 2016

Inducted into the society for maintaining an excellent GPA throughout the completion of my
Bachelor’s Degree '

Nuts and Bolts
April 2014

An award given to those who successfully complete the Nuts and Bolts Program, which focuses
" on working with the public and how to succeed in the work field. ‘

Business Award
June 2012
Mascoma Valley Regional High School ‘

For successfully completely four years of business and accounting courses in high school with
outstanding grades.
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Lara Kristen Quillia

Education

Hartford High School (HHS), Hartford, Vermont June 2007
Honors and Awards: The National Honor Society, (Secretary 2005-2007)

Service Above Self Award (for dedication to the act of volunteering)

Outstanding Youth Award (for excellence in Scholarship, Sportsmanship, and Citizenship) &
University of Vermont (UVM), Burlington, Vermont May 2011
Bachelor of Science Degree in the College of Education and Social Services

Major: Social Work

Honors and Awards: University of Vermont De‘m s List, The National Society of Collegiate Scholars and
Phi Alpha Honor Society (for excellence in academic performance in social work)

Karl-Franzens Universitat Graz, Graz, Austria 2/2010 - 7/2010
Whilst attending UVM 1 spent a semester abroad focusing on cultural studnes and learning German at an
intermediate level. In addition to my studies [ was able to fulfill an ambition of mine to expand my
knowledge of the world and foreign cultures by extensively traveling throughout Europe and Northern
Africa.

Social Work Experience

State of Vermont Economic Services (formcrly PATH) 11/2003 - 12/2006
For three years was the HHS chief coordinator and in-service representative for the local community
Christmas Project, a program that connected over 50 children in need from the local community with both
the high school and middle school classrooms, sponsors, and donors. 1 was responsible for cost-effectively
handling the contributed funds/donations and providing the children with presents and/or winter clothing
during the holiday season. ‘

New Sudan Education Initiative (NESEI) 3/2009 - 4/2009 .
Created a new training manual for future volunteers to help them learn about the NESE! organization; as
well as what their time in Africa would be like, how it might feel to return to their home countries after their
experience, and things they could do to prepare for their experience. -

Career Connections 9/2010 - 5/2011
As part of my senior curriculum I worked as an employment counselor intern assisting adults with serious
and persistent mental illness in identifying and accomplishing their education or employment goals.
Furthermore, 1 co-facilitated an eight-week group on stress management and calming techniques.

Work Experience

Headrest — Lebanon, NH 8/2016 — Present
Residential Program Coordinator — In collaboration with other program staff and clients, ensure the safety of
residents living at Headrest. Support residents in recovery from substance use disorder to complete their
treatment goals and achieve successful re-entry into the community.

Murphy’s on the Green — Hanover, NH 5/2012 - 10/2016
Server/Bartender — Implement efficient time management and organizational skills while engaging in inter-
personal communication with diverse clientele. Assisting in the management of staff and coordination of
logistics during shift, monitoring of customers, and training and supervising new staff.

Market Table- Hanover, NH 9/2011 - 5/2012
Server — Anticipated and responded promptly to the desires of patrons, while contributing to the overall
efficiency and friendly atmosphere of the restaurant.

References Available Upon Reguest
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CHERYL A. WILKIE, PSY.D., MLADC

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Headrest ]

Interim Clinical Dnrector October 15, 2020 to present
QOversee the clinical operations of the organization including Residential, Ooutpatient, Intensive Qutpatient
including the Vocational Program.

Easter Seals of NH-Farnum Center

Chief Operating Officer 2008-2020
Clinically supervised all staff working towards their LADC. Oversaw the day 1o day clinical operations of
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and Health Realization for all buildings. Orchestrated the development of Mission
Statement and values as well as detailed action plans. Oversaw all contracts and ensured contractual
obligations were being met by all contracting parties. Worked collaboratively with all insurance companies for
the best outcome of the clients and the insurance companies. Redefined the organizational structure and
culture. Built in programming for staff which resulted in higher production and happier employees. Ran
successful day to day operations of a 120-bed facility. Fiscal responsibility for a 15-20-million-dollar budget.
Merged two companies and opened five new buildings/programs during my tenure. CARF Accredited all the
Farnum Center Programs. Worked across the aisle to create legislation for alcohol and drug treatment facilities
at NH State House,

Southern New Hampshire Services .

Pre-Placement Program, Manchester NH 2003- 2008

Director to community based alternative sentencing program for adult offenders in the criminal justice system.
Supervise all staff. Administration of all Community Corrections Programs. Provide individual and group
counseling to clients waiting to get into an intensive outpatient program or residential program. Provide ongoing
treatment for appropriate clients. Make recommendations to Superior and District Courts regarding offender’s
treatment and sentencing.

Merrlmack County Attorney’s Office, Concord, NH 1998-2003
Clinical Director and Licensed Drug and Alcoho! Counselor (LADC) providing chemical dependency evaluations
to clients involved in the criminal justice system and Pre-Trial Services, Diversion and FAST programs. Make
recommendations to the Superior and District Courts regarding offender’s treatment and sentencing. Provide
training to all staff involving drug and alcohol issues and mental health issues.

Southern New Hampshire Services" .

Manchester Academy Program, Manchester NH 1998-2003

Director to community based altemative sentencing program for adult offenders Provide substance abuse
evaluations to the court system. Supervision of all staff. Make recommendations to Superior and District Courts
regarding offender’s treatment and sentencing. '

Odyssey Family Center, Canterbury, NH 1994-1998

Supervisor at a long-term drug and alcohol treatment program. Supervised direct care staff. Provided drug and
alcohol treatment services, individual and group counseling. Provided intake evaluations and therapeutic
services in addition to case load management. Coordinated outreach screening and continuing care services for
clients and their children. Maintained administrative and fiscal records.

N.H. Department of Corrections, Probation/Parole 1991-1992

Set up and facilitated counseling support groups for women being paroled into society. Dealt with drug and
alcohol issues, parenting issues, financial considerations, domestic violence and sexual abuse. Made referrals
to diverse support groups and worked with women in developing strategies for staying out of the criminal justice
systems.
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N.H. State Prison for Women, Goffstown, N.H. 1987-1993
Drug and alcohol counselor, providing individual counseling and group therapy. Performed crisis intervention
within the prison system. Provided transitional support for inmates.

EDUCATION

PsyD. In Forensic Psychology, Eisner Institute June 2009

Masters Degree in Psychology, Springfield College, 1998

Masters Degree in Human Service Administration, Springfield College, 1998
Bachelor of Science Degree in Criminal Justice, Springfield College, 1994

LICENSES & CERTIFICATES
Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC), license #0398, expiration 2/22

AWARDS

NH Business Review . Granite States 200 Most influential Leaders 2020
NH Business Award for Excellence in Healthcare-2019

Elliot Priest Award- outstanding work in the treatment community- 2018
Tox Fox Award from New Futures-2016

NH Magazine- Leader in Entrepreneurship-2015 -
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Headrest

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Cameron Ford Executive Director $80,000 15% $12,000

Cheryl Wilkie Clinical Direcior $74,800 25% $18,700

Chelsea Simpson Assistant Director - 855,000 15% £8,250

Lara Quillia - Residential Coordinator $54,160 30% $16,248

Al Carbonneau Hotline Coordinator 843,260 15% $£6,489

$61,687
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lorl A. Shibloctte 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commlssioner 603-271-9544  1-800-852.3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-2714332 TODD Access: 1-800-735-2964  www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S, Fox
Director

November 186, 2020

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Autharize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not
to exceed $2,737,838 for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services
with the option to renew for up to two (2} additional years, effective retroactive to October 1, 2020,
upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2021. 76.265% Federal Funds.
10.829% General Funds. 12.806% Other Funds {Govemor Commission Funds).

Vendor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount
Do e e =™ | 290061-B001 $130,640
_HEADREST | 175226-B001 , $303,412
Phoénix Houses of New 17?5l89-8001 Statewide $1.264 1 09

England, Inc. . 1,264,
Woest Central Services 177654-B001 ' $10,000
FITINHNH, Inc. 157730-B001 $1,020677
Total: $2,737,838

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated 10 be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and conlinued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified. '

See attached fiscal details.
EX_F'LANAT!ON

This request is Retroactive to avoid a gap in services. The Department did not have the
fully executed contract documents in time for Governor and Council approval to prevent the
current contracts from expining. This request is Sole Source because the Depariment determined
the Contractors have the capacity to continue providing substance use treatment and recovery
support services to individuals and prevent a lapse in program services while the Department
develops a new Request for Proposals.,

The Department of Health and Humun Seruices’ Mission (8 to join communities and familics
in providing opperiunitics for citizens to achicye health and independence.

5
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

This request represents five (5) of twelve {12) requests for Subslance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services. The Department anticipates the other seven 7)
requests to be presented at the next Governar and Executive Council meeting for approval.

The purpose of this request is to ensure the continuation of substance use disorder
treatment and recovery support services for New Hampshire residents in need of services. The
Contractors offer an array of treatmient services, including individual and group outpatient
services, intensive outpatient services; partial hospilalizalion; ambulatory withdrawal
management services; transitional living services; high-and low intensity residential treatment
services; specialty residential services, and integrated medication assisted treatment. The
Contractors ensure individuals with substance use disorder receive the appropriate levels of
treatment and have access to continued and expanded levels of care, which increase most
individuals' ability to achieve and maintain recovery.

The Department will monitor contracted services through monthly, quarterly and annual
reponting to ensure:

» Services provided reduce the negative impacts of substance misuse.

+ The Contractor makes continuing care, transfer and discharge decisions based on
. American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) requirements.

« The Contractor achieves initiation, engagement, and retention goals as detalled in
the contract.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions 1o Standard Contracl Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, avaitable funding, agreement of the parties, and
Govemor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals in need of services
may not receive the treatment, tools and educalion that are required to enhance and sustain the
recovery that, in some cases, prevents untimely deaths.

Areas served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.958/FAIN # TI083041; CFDA #93.788/FAIN #T1081685 and
HTI083326.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully syt;mitl_ed,

o G Weowren_

Lor A, Wegver
Deputy Commissioner
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Attachment A
Finandal Detalls

OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SYCS, GOVERNGR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

039392920310 33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SYCS DEPT OF, HHS: OIY FOR OEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU

Dlamay Home of BH  Vandor Cooe: 290061-001 PO TR0
Siste Fiscal Yusr GlasaAccount Tide Budgel Amount * IncrasseDecrenss  |Rovised Modifled Dudget
2021 102500724 5""":’:" Prog ) 118,091 $18.991
2022 102-500794 Conrect tor Prog 0 35,851 15,851
S0-toint 7] [FFTTS 172847
FITANHNH, Ine.  Vendor Code: 157730-8001 PO TR0
State Fiacy Yewr Clasaslhccount This Dudpet Amount incranse/Dacrenss Revised Modifled Budpet
261 102-500731 Connets bor Prog %0 $153.880 5152858
w22 102-500721 ““‘?vc"' Prog 50 $34.090 $54.09
Sub-totsl $ o $207.858 5207636
HEADREST Vendor Code: 173228-8001 PO T80
State Fiscal Yaer ClangiAccount This Budget Amount IncreasaDocroage  |ROvided Modifled Budgar
2021 103.80073 CW“_,"’W"" Prog %0 538,228 $34.228
2002 102.60073 CW":‘:” Prog $0 1102 sien
Sub-totel w AT BT 17847
Proenis Howses of
Hew England, Inc. Yendor Code; 1 77539-8001 PO TBD
Sinte Fiacl Yaar CuMaWALEount Tiwe Budpel Amount incraasaDecranss  |R4Vieed Modifled Budga
Pty 102500721 Conzacs lox Prog 508,495 %0 390,495
002 102.500731 Contracs for Prog $30.458 50 $30.435
Dyb-totat $1709%0 30 §126.55
Wt Conrad
Services Vendor Code: 1778548001 PO TBD
State Fiscal Yeur Class/Account Tiis Budpet Amount WcressaDecraase  [Revised Modifled Budget
2001 102-500721 Conwacs or Prog PP $2.404 $2.404
2022 102800731 C“’“’";_’:‘" Prog 30 $301 5801
Bub-totl 30 $3.205 $3.208 -
Totsl Gov, Comm 1120080 $i81.85¢ $438.50¢

A hmeny A
Financial Datsl
Pagniold
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Attachment A
Financlal Cetails

03.93-92-920310-33040000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SER.'VICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVYCS DEPT OF, HMS: OV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAL
Of ORUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES (M% FEDERAL FUNDS J4% GENERAL PUNDS)

Otamay Hore of NH

Venoor Code: 19008 1-8001

State FlacH Yaur " ClanwAccount Tive Budyet Amount WcresseDecransy  |PLEVIsed Modified Budpe
2021 102-500734 C"‘"‘;‘: Preg. 0 330,000 $38.009
00 102:500731 c""“;:" Prog 0 312399 $12.399
Pub-ioial B $46.460 48408
)
FITIHHNH, Inc.  Vendor Code: 187730-0001
Siate Flacs Yasr Glass/Aceount Tius Budgel Amount ncroasoDecrense  |R¥vived WModified Budgay
T 102.500731 Conmacs 1 Pros %0 $225.442 £325,442
272 102500731 Cor “‘::'P‘"" 0 $H14082 $114,852
St-tona! - B $a0 094 3440094
HEADREST Vandor Code; 175226-8001 PO1062870
Siate Fincal Your ClassiAccownt Tive Budget Amount IncreasaDecranse  |Revised Modifed Budget
2021 102.500731 C""’"s"m"" Prog 0 $76.774 $76.774
2022 102-500721 cm“wsu: Pres ] $24.529 $24,629
Sub-total 0 $101,403 3101400
Prosnix Houses ol . ’
New England. InC.  Vandor Code: 177589-D001 POL0CIVES
Siste Flacal Year ClasafAccount Tiue Duxigel Amount ncressaDecrasse  |ROvisad Modified Budpet
2021 102-50073 Conwlc;:ll‘rw £204,503 30 1200305
202 102-500731 i iy $64643 s 364,545
Subtotal 3289.050 10 $260.050
Wasi Central
Servicas Vendor Code; V778548001 POI10A IS
State Flacel Year ClassiAccown Tida Budgst Amount WcraasaDuacrasse  |Revised Modified Budgat
200 102500791 °°"."°5°w’°' Prog ) $5.006 $5.096
2022 162-500701 cmv";‘v;"' Prog 80 $1.099 51600
Subqtotat 10 35,795 38,703
Tots! Cinicsl Sve 1243030 BRI

Astachenant A
Flnancial Detal
Pagelofd
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Attachment A
Financisl Detaits

05-95-92-920310-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPY OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCOMOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT {100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

Gismay Home of NH Vandor Code;TED
Siate Flec Year ClasslAccount Titke Budigat dmount incremsafDecraasa  |Fovised Modified Budgat
2021 402-50071 m"”:.em Prog 0 $43,790 $42.700
2022 102-50073) c“"""s“vi"' Preo $0 315,600 $13,600
Sub-toisl - 30 339.3%0 339,090
FITINHNH, . Vendor Code: 137730-8001
Siate Flscal Year Clasw/Account Titie Budgat Amount ciessaDecraaye  |Revised Modified Budgal
202 102-500731 Convacss lor Frog 50 $300.201 $308.281
w072 102-500731 c"""“:ﬂ"" Prog 50 573,008 173868
Bub-otal $0 3381027 $381 927
HEADREST Vendor Code: 175226-8001
Srana Flag s Yoae Clasw/Accownt This Budgel Amount Mncressaecrasse  |Revived Modifled Budga
w2 102500731 Contaes ot Prog s $113582 $13s8
20 102.50073 Contacts lor Preg 50 $40,600 £40,600
Sub-totat 30 S154,182 $i54.182
Phosnix Housses of
Niw England, IS, vandor Cods: 1775498001
Siate Fluce! Yoar ClassiAccount This Budget Amount tncreaseDecrease  |Rovised Modifled Budgst
20 162-600731 Contracts bo oy 3630100 s $639.509
2022 162-800T34 Conect lor Prog $229,000 50 $220,000
Fubmotel 3888.105 30 3358.100
Wesl Cantral
Services Vandor Code: 177654-8001
S1ate Fiscal Yuar ClaawAccount This Budget Amount Incrossa/Decrasss  |ROvised Modified Budget
202 102-500731 m“;’w'“ Frog 50 ) 30
0 102-500731 m“gw“’ Prag 10 s0 30
Subsiotsl 30 $0 2]
Toret 3OR Geant TR PRI N [TRTET
Grand Toual Al 1284108 ILATATZY TRIANY
Atlschment &
Financal Detal

Pagedofe
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DocuSign Envelope |D: CFD5302B-125F 478E-B4AF-87884614508C
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services ($5-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Exccutive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidentinl or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 10 signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Siate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name . 1.2 State Agency Address

New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasam Streetl
Concord, NH 03301.3357

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Headrest : 14 Church St.
Lebanon, NH 03766
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limilation
Number .
Multiple Seplember 30, 2021 $303,412
(603) 4484872 .
1.9 Conmracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 Siate Agency Telephone Number
Nathan D. White, Director (603) 271-9631
1.11  Contractor Signalure ' .12 Name and Title of Contractor Signalory
L Docuignes by: . Cameron Ford .
Camstm Sk D2t41/16/2020° | executive pirector
T Siale Agéncy Signature [.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
| Doculignes by: Katja Fox
Katia Fox D441/16/2020 | pirector

T.15 "Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: . Director, On:

“1.16 Approval by the Attomncy General (Form, Substaﬂ_cc and Execution) {if applicable}

Doe by
__/:'_l §§ ; . On:11/16/2020

1.17 Approval by the Govérnor and Executivé Council {if applicable)

G&C liem number; ‘ G&:C Meeling Date:

9

. v o3
Page 1 of 4 ‘ s

. Contractor Initials
Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{“Stale’), engages contractor identified in  block 1.3
{"Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, idemtified and more panticularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (FServices™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithsianding any provision of this Agrecement to the
contrary, and subject 10 the approval of the Gowvernor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if spplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shali
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“EfTective Date™).
3.2 Il the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Comractor prior 10
the Effective Date shall be performed ot the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs nol become
cffeclive, the State shall have no liability 10 the Contractor,
including without limilation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Comnpletion Date
specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nolwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the

conirzry, all obligations of the Siale hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that ‘reduces, climinates or otherwise modifies the
. appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Siate be diable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
cvent of.a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Siate shall have the right 10 withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate (he Services under this Agreement immedialely upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or 1ermination.
The State shall nol be required 10 transfer funds from any other
account or source 10 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in tha: Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more panicularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be 1he
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hercof, and shall be the only and the complere
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compensation to the Contractor {or the Services. The Siate shall
have no liabilily to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwisc payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liguidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

3.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the *
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumsiances, in no
event shall the total of atl payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS.
AND RECULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In ¢onneclion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, siate, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Coniraclor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal

- emptoymen! opportunity laws. n addition, if this Agréement is

funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rutes, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issuc to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable-intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicams for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will 1ake affirmative oction to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Conlractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contracior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel

- necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that

all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 10
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwisc authorized in wriling, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contracior shall not hire, gnd
shall not permit any subcontracior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom il is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services 1o hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement,

7.3 The Coniracting OfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be-the Staic’s representative. In the event ol any
disputc conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shalf be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Defanlt™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; .

8.1.2 failure 10 submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defaull, the State may
1ake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absénce of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty {30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Defaultis not timely cured,
. terminale this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all paymentis to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the coniract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid 1o the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Coniractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauh and set ofT against any other obligations the State may
owe (o the Contractor any damages the Siate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof alter
any Event of Delault shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Evenl of
Default. No express failure 10 enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale 10 enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pant of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION,

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Staic may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agfccmtnl for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30} days written notice to the Contracior thal
the Siate is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement lor
any rcason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stale’s discretion, deliver 10 Lhe
Contraciing Officer, not later than fiftcen (15) days after the date
of (ermination, a repon (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and ihe coniract price camed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matier,
conicnt, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identicat to those of any Final Report described in the anached
EXRBIBIT B. In addition, al the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of carly termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATNACCFSS!CONFIDENTIALITW
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chars, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer prinlouts, noies,
letrers, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been reecived from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other exisiing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

1l. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respecls
an independent contractor, and is neither an agemi nor. an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor.nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Staic or receive any benefus, workers® compensation or
other emolumenis provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.) The Conlractor shall not assign, or etherwisc transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writlen nolice, which
shall be provided to the Siate at least fifteen (15) days prior 1o
the assignment, and a writien consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, 2 Change of Control shall constitute
assignment.  “Change  of  Control” "means {a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with s afTiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of Aifly percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially alt
of the assels of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wrilten notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignmeni agreement (o which it is not
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall ind¢mnify and hold harmless the Siate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabiliies and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asseried againsi
the State, its officers or employees, which arise-out of (or which

may be -claimed (o arise oul of) the acts or omigstoR3ofl the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Siate shall not
be lisble for any costs incurred by the Coniractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreemeni.

14. INSURANCE."

14.1 The Contractor shall, a1 its sole expense, obtain and
conlinuously maintain in force, and shall requirc any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in amounis of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Siale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Conlractor shall atso furnish to the Contracling Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior 16 the expiration date of each
insurance policy, The certificate(s) of insurance and any

renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by -

reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Conlractor agrees, certifies
and warrants thai the Contraclor is in compliance with or exempt
{rom, the requirements of N:H. RSA chapter 281-A (" i¥orkers'
Campensation™),

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject (o the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapier 281-A, Contractor shall mainain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee 1o secure and maintain,
paymeni of Workers' Compcnsalion in connection with
activities which the person proposes 16 undertake pursuant 1o this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her suceessor, prool of Workers’
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
atlached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Siate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compbensation premiums or for any other claim or benefil for
Contractor, or any subcontraclor or employee of Coniractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party herelo 10 the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by en insirument in writing signed by the
partics hereto and only after approval of such amendment,

waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Siate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM, This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and consirued in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by Lhe parties 1o express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shatl be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising oul of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shall have
exclusive jurisdiclion thereof. -~

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. [n the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as maodified in EXHIBIT
A) ondfor attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall controt.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panies and this Agreement shall not be -
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shal! in no way be held (o explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inlerpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Apgreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addilional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by relerence.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the cvent any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a count of eompetent jurisdiction to be
conlrary to any state or federal Jaw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and cffect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
execuled in 8 number of counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and

understanding between the pariics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect 10 the subject matier

which mighl arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers” Compensation  faws  in connacelion  with  the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
: —D3
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EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions -

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwnhstandmg any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject lo the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective October
1, 2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3 3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
: subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

"~ 12.3. Subcontractors are subject lo the same contractual conditions as the
- Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreemenls with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if- the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
aclion as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

D3
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with written notice no later than 30
day prior to changes in: :

1.1.1.  Ownership;
1.1.2. Physical location; or
1.1.3. Name of establishment.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit a copy of the certificate of amendment from the
New Hampshire Secretary of State, as applicable, that includes the effective
date of the name change. ' o

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery
Support Services to individuals who:

1.3.1. Are age 12 or older or under age 12, with required consent from a
parent or legal guardian to receive treatment; and

1.3.2. Have income below 400% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3.  Are residenis of New Hampshire or homeless in New Hampshire; and
1.3.4. Are delermined positive for subslance use disorder.

1.4. Clinical Services

14.1. The Contractor shall adhere to a clinical care manual that includes
policies and procedures related to all clinical services provided.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure all clinical services:
' 1.4.21. Focus on the client's strengths,

1.4.2.2. Are sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the clients
' being served;

1.4.2.3.  Are client and family cenlered;

1424, Are trauma informed and designed to acknowledge the
impact of violence and trauma on individuals' lives and the
importance of addressing trauma in trealment.

1.4.3. The Contractor shall conduct a client orientation upon a client's
admission, éither individually or by group, that includes:

1.4.3.1. Rules, policies, and procedures relative to programs and
"~ facilities;

1.4.3.2. -Requirements for successfully completing the program;

11 ]
[«
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EXHIBITB

1.4.3.3. The administrative discharge policy and the grounds for
administrative discharge;

1.4.3.4. Al applicable laws regarding confidentiality, including the
limits of confidentiality and mandatory reporting
requirements; and

1.4.3.5. The requirement that each client must sign documentation
: to confirm arientation was conducied, which will be
maintained in the client record.

1.4.4. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV/AIDS screening upon a client's
admission to trealment, which includes:

- 1.4.41.  The provision of information;
1.4.42. Risk assessment;
1.4.4.3. Intervention and r_isk reduction education; and

1.4.4.4. Referral for lesting, if appropriate, within seven (7) days of
admission.

1.5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.5.1.  The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
“agreements with the Doorways in compliance with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources. '

1.5.2. The Department shall be able to verify that individual referrals to the
Doorways have been completed by Contractor prior {0 accepling
invoices for services provided through SOR funded initiatives.

- 15.3. The Contractor shall provide Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT)
only with FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD), which
includes:

1.5.3.1. Methadone.
1.5.3.2. Buprenorphine products, including:
1.5.3.2.1. Single-entity buprenorphine products;
15322 ° Buprenorphinéfnaioxone tabtets;
1.6.3.23. Buprenorphine/naloxone films; and
1.5.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal preparations.
1.5.3.3. Long-acling injectable buprenorphine products.
1.5.3.4. Buprenorphine implants. '
1.5.35. Injeclable extended-release naltrexone. E
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1.54. The Contractor shall provide medical withdrawal management
services supported by SOR Funds only when the withdrawal
management service is accompanied by the use of injectable
extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate.

1.5.5. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving financial aid for:
recovery housing utifizing SOR funds are in a recovery housing facility
that aligns with the National Alliance for Recovery Residences
standards and is registered with the State of New Hampshire, Bureau
of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules, He-A 305; Voluntary Registry for Recovery
Houses.

1.5.6. The Contraclor shall accept individuals on MAT and facilitate access
' to MAT on-site or through referrals for all individuals supporied with
SOR.Grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

1.6. Transition Plan

1.6.1.  The Contractor shall submit a plan for Department approval no later
than 30 days from the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval that specifies actions to be taken in the event that the
Contractor ceases to provide services.

1.6.2.  The Contractor shall ensure the transition plan includes, but is not
limited to:

1.6.2.1. Actions to be taken to ensure individuals seamlessly transition
- .to alternative providers with no gaps in services.

1.6.2.2, Where and how individual records will be transferred to
ensure no gaps in services, ensuring the Department is not
identified as the entity responsible for individual records; and -

1.6.2.3. Individual notification processes to ensure individuals are
nolified of the transition to ensure no gaps in services and
how to access their records.

1.7. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

1.7.1.  The Contractor shall provide. substance use disorder treatment
services that support the Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Syslems
of Care (RROSC) by operationalizing the Continuum of Care Mode!.
The Contractor shall:

1.7.1.1. Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (IDNs} of services
available in order to align work with IDN projects that may be
similar in nature or timpact the same populations.

"1.7.1.2. Inform the Regionél Public Health Networks (RPHN) of
services available in order to align work with othe[ 5 HN
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projects that may be similar in nalure or impact the same
- populations. :

1.7.1.3. Coordinate individual services with other community service
providers involved in the individual's care and the individual's
support network

1.7.1.4. Coordinate individual services with the Doorways that include,
but are not limited to:

1.7.1.4.1. Ensuring timely admission of individuals to
services.

1.7.1.4.2. Referring any individual receiving room and board
payment to the Doorway. :

1.7.1.4.3. Coordinating all room and board individual data
and services with the individuals' agency to
ensure each room and board individual served
has a Governmenlt Performance and Results Act
(GPRA) interview completed at intake, three (3)
" months, six (6) months, and discharge completed
by the agency responsible for completing the
GPRA.

1.7.1.4.4. Referring individuals to Doorway services when
C individuals cannot be admitted for services within
forty-eight (48) hours.

1.7.1.45. Referring individuals to Doorway services at the
lime of discharge when an individual is in need of
Doorway services.

1.7.2.  The Contractor shall provide services relevant to individual needs in a
culturally competent manner that addresses the diversity of the
individuals served.

1.7.3.  The Contractor shall provide services that are trauma informed to
ensure treatment provided addresses trauma experience by the
individual.

1.8. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

1.8.1. The Contractor shall provide Individual Qulpatient Treatment as
defined as American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria,
. Level 1. The Contractor shall provide outpatient treatment services to
assist individuals in achieving treatment objectives through the
exploration of substance use disorders and their ramifications,
including an examination of attitudes and feelings, and consideration

. . . D3
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1.9.

of alternative solutions and decision-making with regard to alcohol and
other drug related problems.

1.8.2. The Contractor shall provide Group Cutpatient Treatment as defined
as ASAM Criteria, Leve!l 1. The Contractor shall provide outpatient
trealment services to assist a group of individuals in achieving
treatment objectives through the exploration of substance use
disorders and their ramifications, including an examination of attitudes

« and feelings, and consideration of aiternative solutions and decision:
making with regard to alcohol and other drug related problems.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall provide Intensive Qutpatient Treatment as
defined as ASAM Criteria, Level 2.1. The Contractor shall ensure
intensive outpatient treatmenl services provide intensive and
structured individual and group alcoho! and/or other drug treatment
services and aclivities that are provided according to an individualized
treatment plan that includes a range of outpatient treatment services
and other ancillary alcohol and/or other drug services. The Contractor
shall ensure services for adults are provided at least 9 hours a week
and services for adolescents are provided al leas! 6 hours a week.

1.8.4.  The Contractor shall provide Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as
defined as ASAM Ciriteria, Level 3.1 for adults. The Contraclor shall
ensure low-intensily residential treatment services provide residential
substance use disorder. treatment services designed to support .-
individuals who need this residential service. The Contractor shall
provide low-intensity residential trealment to prepare individuals for
becoming self-sufficient in the community. The Contractor may receive
a portion of room and board payment from aduit residents that work in
the community. .

Enrolling Individuals for Services

1.9.1.  The Contractor shall initiate face-to-face communication by meeting in
person, or electronically, or by telephone conversation with individuals
and providers, as applicable, within two (2) business days from the
date an individual makes. contact for Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services. The Contractor shall
document all attempts at contacting individuals and providers, as
applicable, in the individual record or call log.

1.92.  The Contractor shall complete an initial Intake Screening within two(2)
business days from the date of the first direct contact with the
individual, using the eligibility module in Web Information Technology
System (WITS) to determine probability of being eligible for services
under this contract and for probability of having a substance use

- disorder. The Contractor shall: by’
G
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1.9.21. Ensure all attempls at contact are documented in the
©individual record or call log;

1.9.2.2. Assess individuals’ income prior to admission using the WITS
fee determination modet;

1.9.2.3. Provide the client, the clienl's guardian, agent or personal
representative , with a listing of all known applicable charges.
and identify what care and services are included in the
charges; and

1.9.2.4. Update individual income information, as needed over the
course of treatment by asking.individuals about any changes
in income no less frequently than every 4 weeks. The
Contractor shall document inquiries about changes in mcome
in the individual record

1.9.3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for
all services in within two (2) days of the initial Intake Screening in using
the ASI Lite module in WITS or other Department-approved method,
when the individual is determined probable of being eligible for

. services.

1.9.4.  The Contractor shall ensure the data from the ASAM Level of Care
' Assessment is available to the Department in a Department-approved
format, upon request. .

1.9.5.  The Contractor shall complele a clinical evaluation for each individual
utilizing CONTINUUM, or an alternative method approved by the
Department, thal includes DSM 5 diagnostic information and a
recommendation for a level of care based on the ASAM Criteria,
published in October 2013 if the individual does not present with an
evaluation completed by a licensed or unlicensed counselor. The
Contractor shall complete a clinical evaluation, for each individual:

1.9.5.1. Prior to admission as a part of interim services or within three
(3) business days following admission. :

1.9.5.2. Dwing treatment only when determined by a Licensed
Counselor,

1.96. The Contractor shall provide eligible individuals substance use
disorder trealment services in accordance with the individual's clinical
evalualion unless:

1.9.6.1. The individual chooses to receive a service with a lower
intensity ASAM Level of Care; or

os
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1.9.6.2. The service with the needed ASAM level of care is unavailable
at the time the level of care is determined, in which case the
individual may choose: -

1.9.6.2.1. A service with a lower Intensity ASAM Level of
Care; :

1.9.6.22. A service with the next available higher intensity
ASAM Level of Care;

1.9.6.23. Be placed on the waitlist until their service wilh
the assessed ASAM level of care becomes
available; or

1.9.6.2.4. Be referred to another agency in the individual's
service area that provides the service with the
needed ASAM Level of Care.

1.9.7.  The Conltractor shall enroll eligible individuals for services in order of
the priority described below:

1.9.7.1. Pregnant women and Individuals with dependent children,
even if the children are not in their custody, as long as parental
rights have nol been terminated, including the provision of
interim services within the required 48-hour time frame. If the
Contractor is unable to admit a pregnant woman for the
needed level of care within 24 hours, the Contractor shall:

1.9.7.1.1.  Make a referral to the Doorway of the individual's
. choice to connect the individual with substance
use disorder treatment services; or

1.9.7.12. Assist the pregnant woman with identifying
alternative providers and wilh accessing services
with the providers if the individual refuses the
referral. The Contractor shall ensure assistance
includes:

1.9.7.1.2.1. Actively reaching out to identify
providers on the behalf of the
individual; and

1.9.7.1.2.2. Providing interim services until the
appropriate level of care becomes
available at either the Contraclor
agency or an alternative provider.
Interim services shall include a
minimum of one (1):

D3
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1.97.1.2.21. 60-minute individual or group
outpatient session per week;

1.9.7.1.2.22. Recovery support services, as
needed by the individual; and

1.97.1.223. Daily calls to the individual to
assess and responds to any -
emergent needs.

1.9.7.2. IndeuaIs who have been administered naloxone {o reverse
the effects of an opioid overdose either in the 14 days prior to -
screening or in the period between screemng and admission
1o the program.

1.9.7.3. Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the
pravision of interim servic_es within 14.days.

1.9.7.4. Individuals wilth subslance use and co-occurring mental
health disorders.

1.9.7.5. Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.
1.9.7.6. Veterans with substance use disorders.

1.9.7.7. Individuals with substance use disorders who are involved
with the criminal justice and/or child protection system.

1.9.7.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the request of the
Depariment.

1.9.8. The Contractor shall oblain consent for treatment from the individual
prior {0 receiving services for individuals whose age is 12 years and
older, in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2. ~

1.9.9. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2
for treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the individual is
- under the agé of 12 years prior to receiving services.

1.9.10. The Contractor shall ensure consent forms include language for
individual consent to share information with other social service
agencies involved in the individual's care, including but not limited to:

1.9.10.1. The Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF).
1.9.10.2. Probation and parole programs.
1.9.10.3. Doorways.

1.9.11. The Contractor. shall not prohibit individuals from receiving services
when an individual does not consent to information sharing, except
" that individuals who refuse to consent to information sharing with the

03
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1.10.

Doorways shali not receive services ulilizing State Opioid Response
_(SOR) funding.

1.9.12. The Contractor shall notify individuals who sign a consent to
information sharing of the ability 1o rescind the consent at any time
without any impact on services provided under this contract, except
that individuals who rescind consent to information sharing with the
Doorway shall not receive any additional services ulilizing State Opioid
Response (SOR) funding.

1.9.13. The Contractor shall not deny services 1o an adolescent due to:

1.9.13.1. . The parent's mablllty and/or unwillingness to pay the
fee; or :

1.9.13.2. The adolescent's decision to receive confidential
services pursuant to RSA 318-B: 12-a.

1.9.14. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals who:

1.8.14.1. Receive MAT services from other providers, including but
not limited to the individual's primary.care provider,

1.9.14.2.  Have co-occurring mental health disorders; and/or

1.9.14.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
prescribed fegardiess of the class of medication,

1.915. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment
services separately for adolescent and adults unless otherwise
approved by the Department. :

1.9.16. The Conlractor shall ensure adolescents and adults do not share the
same residency space, bul may share communal spaces at separate
times, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.9.16.1.  Kitchens.

1.9.16.2. Group rooms;

1.9.16.3.. Recreation rooms and/or areas.
Denial of Services '

1.10.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who are denied services:
1.10.1.1.  Areinformed of the reason for denial;-and

1.10.1.2. Receive assistance wilth identifying an accessing
appropriate available treatment.

1.10.2. The Contractor shall not deny services to any individual solely because
the individual:

1.10.2.1.  Previously left treatment against the advice of sta?]; C';:’

55-2021-B0AS5-04-5UBST-06 Contracior Initials

Headre_sl

11/16/2020
Page 9 of 43 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 498C0B1C-6564-4101-B141-1360FE7ED 188

OocuSign Envelope (D: CFD53020-125F 475E-B4AF-3769481450BC

New Hampshire -Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

EXHIBIT B

1.10.2.2. Relapsed from an earlier treatment;

1.10.2.3. Is on any class of medications, including but not limited to
opiates or benzodiazepines; or

1.10.2.4. Has been diagnosed with a mental health disorder.

1.11. Waitlists

1.11.1. The Contractor shall maintain a waitlist of individuals who are unable
to receive services due to unavailability of services, regardless of
payor source.

1.11.2. The Contractor shall track the wait time for the individuals to receive
services, from the date of inilial contact with the individual to the date
the individuals first receive subslance use disorder treatment services
other than evaluation.

. 1.12. Assistance with Encolling in [nsurance Programs

1.12.1. The Contractor shall assist individuals and/or their parents or legal
guardians, who are unable to secure financial resources necessary for
initial entry into the program, with obtaining other potential sources for
payment, which may include, but are not limited to:

11211, Enrollment in public or privale insurance, including but not
: limited to New Hampshire Medicaid programs wnthm
fourteen (14) days afier intake.

1.12.1.2. Assistance with securing financial resources or
documenting the refusal of assistance in the individual
record

1.13. Service Delivery Activities and Reguirements

1.13.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement written policies and
procedures that govern operations and all services provided. The
Contractor shall ensure:

1.13.1.1. All policies and procedures are reviewed and revised, as
necessary.

1.13.1.2. All slaff providing services receive training on policies and
procedures currently in place.

1.13.1.3. Maintenance of specific policies that include, but are not
limited to:

1.43.1.3.1. Client rights, grievance and appeals policies
and procedures.

1.13.1.3.2. Progressive discipline, leading to
: administrative discharge. os
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1.13.1.3.3. Reporling and appealing staff grievances. -

1.13.1.3.4. Policies on client alcohol and other drug use
while in treatment.

1.13.1.3.5. Policies on client and employee smoking.

1.13.1.3.6. Drug-free workplace policy and procedures,
including a requirement for the filing of written
reports of actions taken in the event of staff
misuse of alcohol or other drugs.

1.13.1.3.7. Policies and procedures for holding a client's
‘ possessions.

1.13.1.3.8. Secure storage of staff medications.
- 1.13.1.3.9. Aclient medicatiqn policy.
1.13.1.3.10. Urine specimen coliection, as applicable, that;

1.13.1.3.10.1. Ensure thal collection is
"~ conducled in a manner that
preserves client privacy as

much as possible; and

1.13.1.3.10.2. Minimize falsification.
- 1.13.1.3.11. Safety and emergency procedures on:
1.13.1.3.11.1.  Medical emergencies;

1.13.1.3.11.2. Infection control and universal
precaulions, including the use
of protective clothing and
devices; '

1.13.1.3.11.3. Reporting employee injuries;

1.13.1.3.11.4. Fire moniloring, warning,
evacuation, and safety drill
policy and procedures;

1.13.1.3.11.5. Emergency closings; and

1.13.1.3.11.6. Posling of the above safety
"~ and emergency procedures.

1.13.1.3.12. Procedures for protection of client records that
govern use of records, storage, removal,
conditions for release of information, and
compliance with 42CFR, Part 2 and the Health

Insurance Portability and Accountability, Act
(HIPAA). F
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1.13.1.3.13. Procedures regarding collections from client
fees, private or public insurance, and other
payers responsible for the client's finances.

1.13.1.3.14. Procedures related to quality assurance and
quality improvement.

1.13.2. The Conlractor shall assess all individuals for risk of self-harm at ali
phases of treatment, including, but not limited to:

1.13.2.1. During initial contact.

1.13.2.2. During screening.

1.13.2.3. Atintake.

1.13.2.4. During admission.

1.13.2.5. During on-going treatment services.
1.13.2.6. Atdischarge.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall assess all individuals for withdrawal risk based
on ASAM (2013) standards at all phases of treatment, including but
not limited to: )

1.13.3.1. During initial contact.

1.13.3._2. During screening.

1.13.3.3. Atintake.

1.13.3.4. During admission.

1.13.3.5. During on-going treatment services.

1.13.4. The Contractor shall stabilize all individuals based on ASAM {2013)
quidance. The Contractor shall;

1.13.4.1. Provide stabilization services when an individual's level of
risk indicales a service with an ASAM Level of Care thal
can be provided through contract services; '

. 1.13.4.2. Integrate withdrawal management into the individual's
: treatment plan and provide on-going assessment of
withdrawal risk 1o ensure that withdrawal is managed safely
if an individual's risk level indicates a service with an ASAM
Level of Care that can be provided through contract
services; :

1.13.4.3. Refer individuals to a facility where the services can be
provided when an individual's risk indicates a service with -
an ASAM Level of Care that is higher than can be provided

' through contract services; and os
[«
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1.13.4.4. Coordinate with the withdrawal management services
4 provider to admit the individual to an appropriate service
once the individual's withdrawal risk has reached a level

that can be provided through contracl services.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall complete individualized treatment plans based on
clinical evaluation dala for each individual served within three (3) days
or three (3} sessions, whichever is longer, of the clinical evaluation that
address problems in all ASAM (2013) domains that justified the
individual's admittance lo a given level of care, which:

1.13.5.1. Include goals, objectives, and interventions in each
individuat treatment plan written in terms that are:

1.13.5.1.1. Specific with clearly defined action steps;

1.13.5.1.2. Measurable with clear criteria for progress
| and completion;

1.13.5.1.3. Attainable and within the individual's ability to
achieve;

1.13.5.1.4. Realistic while ensuring the resources are
available to the individual; and

1.13.6.1.5. Timely in a manner that supports a stated
period for completion thal is reasonable.;

1.13.5.2. Include the individual's involvement in identifying,
developing, and priontizing goals, objectives, and
interventions;

1.13.5.3. Are updated based on changes in any ASAM domain and
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent. The Contractor shall
ensure treatment plan updates include:

1.13.5.3.1. Documentation of the degree to which the
individual is meeting treatment plan goals and
objectives;

1.13.5.3.2. Modifications of existing goals or addition of
new goals based on changes in the
individuals functioning relative to ASAM
domains and treatment goals and objectives;,

1.13.5.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether the
individual needs to move to a different level
of care based on changes in functioning in
any ASAM domain and documentation of the

reasons for this assessment; and l F
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1.13.5.3.4. The signature of the individual and the
counselor agreeing 10 the updated treatment
plan, or if applicable, documentation of the
individual's refusal to sign the treatment plan.

1.13.5.4. Track individual progress relative to the specific gdals.
objectives, and interventions in the individual's treatment
plan by completing encounter notes in WITS.

1.13.6. The Contractor shall refer individuals to, and coordinate care with,
other providers. The Contractor shall:

1.13.6.1. Obtain consents from each individual, including 42 CFR
Part 2 consent, if applicable, and in compliance with state,
federal laws and stale and federal rules,

1.13.6.2. Ensure providers include, but are not limited to: '
1.13.6.2.1. A primary care provider, as appfopriate.

1.13.6.2.2. A behavioral health care provider when the
individual  presents  with  co-occurring
substance use and mental health disorders.

1.13.6.2.3. Medication assisted treatment provider, as
appropriate.

1.13.6.24. Peer recovery support provider, as
appropriale.
1.13.6.3. Coordinate with local recovery community organizations, if
available, in order to:

1.13.6.3.1. Bring peer recovery support prowders into the’
lreatment setling;

1.13.6.3:2. Meet with individuals to describe available
' services; and

1.13.6.3.3. Engage individuals in peer recovery s.uppor‘t
. services as applicable.

1.13.6.4. Coordinate with case management services offered by the
individual's managed care organization, Doorway, third
party insurance or other provider, if applicable.

1.13.6.5. Coordinate with other social service agencies engaged with
the individual, including but not limited to:

1.13.6.5.1. The Department's Division of Children, Youth
and Families {(DCYF), as applicable.

o
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1.13.6.5.2. Probation andfor parole programs, as
applicable.

1.13.6.5.3. The Doorways, as applicable,

1.13.6.6. Clearly document in the individual's file if the individual
refuses any referrals or care coordination.

1.13.7. The Contractor shail complete continuing care, transfer, and discharge
plans for services provided, except for Transitional Llwng that address
all ASAM (2013) domains, which: ~ ~

1.13.7.1. Include the process of transfer and/or discharge planning
at the time of the individual's intake to the program.

1.13.7.2. Include at least one (1) of the three {3) criteria for continuing
" services, which are:

1.13.7.2.1. Continuing Service Criteria, A: The individual
is making progress, but has not yet achieved
the goals arliculaled in the individualized
‘treatment plan. The Contractor shall ensure
continued treatment at the present level of
care is assessed, as necessary, to permit the
individual to continue working toward his or
her treatment goals; or

1.13.7.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The individual is
not yet making progress, but has the capacity
to resolve his or her problems. The individual
is aclively warking toward the goals articulated
in the individuatized treatment plan., The
Contractor shall ensure continued treatment at
lhe present level of care is assessed as
necessary to permit the individual to continue
working toward his or her treatment goals; and
lor

1.43.7.2.3. Conlinuing Service Criteria C: New problems .
have been identified that are appropriately
Ireated at the present level of care. The
Contraclor shall provide services for the new
problem or priority, the frequency and intensity
of which can only safely be delivered by
continued stay in the current level of care. The
Contractor shall ensure the level of care that
the individual is receiving- treatment is

) therefore the least intensive leve! at w&the
&
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individual's problems can be addressed
effectively.

1.13.7.3. Inctude a minimum of one (1) of the four (4) criteria for
transfer or discharge, which include:

1.13.7.3.1. Transfer or Discharge Criteria A; The
individual has achieved the goals articulated in
the individualized treatment plan, ‘thus
resolving the problem(s) that justified
admission to the present level of care. The
Contractor shall ensure continuing the chronic
disease management of the individual's
condition at a less mtenswe level of care is
indicated; or

1.13.7.3.2. Transfer or Discharge Criteria B: The
individual has been unable to resolve the
problem(s) that justified the admission to the
present level of care, despite amendments to
the treatment plan. The Contractor has
determined the individual achieved the
maximum possible benefit from engagement
in services at the current level of care. The
Contractor shall ensure treatment at another
level of care (more or less intensive) in the
same type of services, or discharge from
treatment, is therefore indicated; or

1.13.7.3.3. Transfer or Discharge Criteria C: The
individual has demonstrated a lack of capacity
due to diagnostic or co-occurring conditions
that limit his or her ability to resolve his or her
problem(s). The Contractor shall ensure
treatment at a qualitatively different level of
care or type of service, or discharge from
treatment, is therefore indicated; or

1.13.7.3.4. Transfer or Discharge Criteria D; The-
individual has experienced an intensification
of problem(s), or has developed a new
problem(s), and can be treated effectively at a
more intensive level of care.

1.13.7.4. Include clear documentation that explains why continued -
services, transfer or discharge is necessary for Transitional

‘ Living o8
' ' | r
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. 1.13.8.  The Contractor shall deliver services using evidence based praclices,
as demonstrated by meeting one of the foliowing criteria:

1.13.8.1. Ensuring services are included as an evidence-based
mental health and substance abuse intervention on the
SAMHSA Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center:

1.13.8.2. Ensuring services are published ina peer-reviewed journal
and found to have positive effects; or

1.13.8.3. Ensuring services are based on a theorencal perspective
that has validated research.

1.139. The Conlractor shall deliver services in this Contract in accordance
" owith:

1.13.9.1. The ASAM Ciriteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (2013).

1.13.8.2. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services
Administration  (SAMHSA)} Treatment Improvement
Protacols (TIPs).

1.13.9.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs)
1.14. Individual and Group Education

1.14.1. The Contractor shall offer individuals receiving services individual or
group education on prevention, treatment, and nature of:

1.14.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV).

1.14.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).
1.14.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD).
1.14.1.4, Tobacco Trealment Tools thal include:

1.14.1.4.1. Assessing individuals for motivation in
stopping the use of tobacco products;

1.14.1.4.2. Offering resources that include, but are not
‘ limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the
certified tobacco cessalion counselors

available through the QuitLine.

1.14.2. The Contractor shall coordinate individual and group education
sessions with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for individuals
identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS. :

1.15. Medication Services

03
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1.15.1. The Contractor shall ensure no administration of medications,
including physician samples, occurs except by a licensed medical
practitioner working within his or her scope of practice.

1.15.2. The Contractor shall ensure all prescription medications brought by a
client are in their ong:nal containers and legibly display the following
information:

1.15.2.1. The client's name; _
1.15.2.2. The medication name and strength;
1.15.2.3. The prescribed dose;

1.15.2.4. The route of administration;

1.15.2.5. The frequency of administration; and
1.15.2.6. The date ordered.

1.15.3. The Contractor shall ensure any changes to or discontinuation of
prescriplion medications are changed or discontinued upon receiving
a written order from a licensed practitioner.

1.15.4. The Contractor shall ensure all prescription medications, with the
exception of nitroglycerin, epi-pens, and rescue inhalers, which may
be kept on the client’s person or stored in the client's room, are stored

as follows:

1.15.4.1. All medications are kepi in a storage area that is:

1.156.4.1.1. Locked and accessible only to authorized
: personnel;

1.15.4.1.2. Organized to allow correct identification of
each client's medication(s);

1.15.4.1.3. llluminated in a manner sufficient to allow
reading of all medication labels; and

1.15.4.1.4. Equipped to maintain medication at the proper
temperature.

1.15.4.2. Schedule Il controlled substances, as defined by RSA 318-
B:1-b, are kept in a separately locked compartment within
the locked medication storage area and accessible only to
authorized personnel; and

1.15.4.3. Topical liquids, ointments, patches, creams and powder
forms of productls are stored in-a manner that mitigates
cross-contamination with oral, oplic, ophthalmic, and
parenteral products.

Ds
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1.15.5. The Contractor shall ensure medications belonging to staff are not
accessible to clients or stored wuﬁ client medication.

1.156.6. The Contractor shall ensure over-the-counter (OTC) medications are
handled in the following manner:

1.15.6.1. Only original, unopened containers of OTC medications are
allowed to be brought into the program;

1.15.6.2. OTC medication is stored in accordance with medlcaluon
storage requirements above; and

1.15.6.3. OTC medication containers are marked with the name of
the client using the medicalion and taken in accordance
~with the directions on the medication container or as
ordered by a licensed praclitioner.

1.15.7. The Contractor shall supervise all medications self-administered by a
_client, with the exception of nitroglycerin, epi-pens, and rescue
inhalers, which may be taken by the client without supervision, as

follows:

1.15.7.1. Staff remind the client to take the correct dose of his or her
medication at the correct lime;

1.15.7.2. Staff may open the medication container but cannol
physically handle the medication itself in any manner; and

1.15.7.3. Staff remain with the client to observe them taking the
prescribed dose and type of medication.

1.15.8. The Contractor shall document in.an individua! client medication log:

1.15.8.1. The medication name, strength, dose, frequency and route
of administration;

1.15.8.2. The date and the time the medication was taken;

1.15.8.3. The signature or identifiable initials of the person
supervising the taking of said medication; and

1.15.8.4. The reason for any medication refused or omilted.
1.15.9. The Contractor shall ensure upon a client's discharge that:
1.15.9.1. The medication log is included in the client’s record; and

1.15.9.2. The client is provided with remaining medication 1o take
with him or her

1.16. Tobacco Free Environment

1.16.1. The Contractor shall ensure a tobacco-free enwronment by having

. policies and procedures that: o3
[«
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1.16.1.1. Address the smoking of any tobacco product; the use of
oral tobacco products or *spit” tobacco; and the use of
electronic devices.

1.16.1.2. Apply to employees, individuals and employee or individual
visitors.

1.16.1.3. Prohibit the use of lobacco products within the Contractor's
: facilities at any time.

1.16.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Contractor-owned vehicle
' and personal vehicles when transporting |nd|wduals on
authorized business

1.16.1.5. Include whether or not use of tobacco products is prohibited
outside of the facility on the grounds.

1.16.1.6. Include the following if use of tobacco products is allowed
’ outside of the facility on the grounds:

1.16.1.6.1. A designated smoking -area(s), which is
located at least twenty (20) feet from the main
entrance.

1.16.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in designated
area, including cigarelte butts and maiches,
must be extinguished and disposed of in
appropriate containers.

1.16.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated
- smoking area.

1.16.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area is not properly
maintained, it can be eliminated at the
discretior_t of the Contractor.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all individuals are regularly screened
for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part
of treatment planning.

1.16.3. The Contractor. shall ensure the tobacco free enwronment policy is:
1.16.3.1. Posted in the Conlractor's facilities.
1.16.3.2. Posled in all Conlractor vehicies.
1.16.3.3. Included in employee, individual, and visitor orientations.

1.16.4. The Contractor shall not use tobacco use, in and of itself, as grounds
for discharging individuals from substance use disorder treatment and
recovery support services provided.

1.17. Staffing o
55-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06 . Contraclior Initials
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1.17.1.

The Contractor shall establish and monitor a code of ethics for the

Contractor and its staff, as well as a mechanism for reporting unethical

conduct.
1.17.2.

The Contractor shall develop a current job description for all staff,

including contracted staff, volunteers, .and student interns, ' which

include:
1.17.2.1.
1.17.2.2.
1.17.2.3.
1.17.2.4,
1.17.2.5.
1.17.2.6.

Job title;

Physical requirements of the position;

Education and experience requirements of the position;
Duties of the position;

Positions supervised; and

Title of immediate subervisor.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies regarding
criminal background checks of prospeclive empioyees, which include,
but are not limited to: ‘

1.17.3.1.

1.17.3.2.

1.17.3.3.

Requiring a prospective employee to sign a release to allow
the Contractor to obtain his or her criminal record.

Requiring the administrator or his or her designee to oblain
and review a criminal records check from the New.
Hampshire department of safety for each prospective
employee.

Criminal background standards regarding the following,
beyond which ‘shall be reason to not hire a prospective
employee in order to ensure the health, safety, or well-
being of clients:

1.17.3.3.1.  Felony convictions in this or any other stale;

1.17.3.3.2.  Convictions for sexual assault, other violent
crime, assault, fraud, abuse, neglect or
exploitation; and

1.17.3.3.3. Findings by the departlment or any

administrative agency in this or any other
slate for assault, fraud, abuse, neglect or
exploitation or any person.

1.17.4. The Contractor shall ensure all staff, including contracted staff:

1.17.4.1.

55-2021-BDAS-04-5UBST-06
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1.17.42. Do not exceed the criminal background standards
established above, .

1.17.4.3. Are licensed, registered or certified as required by state
statute and as applicable; _

1.17.4.4. Receive an orientation within the first three (3) days of work
or prior 1o direct contact with clients, which includes:

1.17.4.4.1, The Contractor's code of ethics, including
ethical conduct and the reporting of
unprofessional conduct; :

1.17.44.2. The Contractor's policies on client rights and
responsibilities and complaint procedures;

1.17.44.3. Confidentiality requirements;

1.17.4.44.  Grievance procedures for both clients and
staff;

1.17.445. The duties and responsibilities and the
policies, procedures, and guidelines of the
position for which they were hired;

1.17.4.46. Topics covered by both the admnnnstratlve
and personnel manuals;

1:17.4.47. The Contractor's infection prevention
program; .

1.17.4.4.8. The Contractor's fire, evacuation, and other
emergency plans which oulline the
responsibilities of personnel in an
emergency; and

1.17.4.49. Mandatory reporling requirements for abuse
or neglect including but not limited lo the
requirements in RSA 161- F and RSA 169-
C:2g;

1.17.4.5. Sign and date documentation that certifies orientation is
completed; and

1.17.4.6. Complete a mandatory annual in-service education, which
includes a review of all elements described above.

1.17.5. The Conlractor shall ensure that, prior to having contact with clients,
employees and contracted employees:

1.17.5.1. Submit proof of a‘physical examination or a health
screening conducted not more than 12 months pogyr 1o
employment which includes, but is not limited to: | or

58§-2021-BDAS-04-SUBST-06 Contractor Initials
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1.17.5.1.1. The name of the examinee.
1.17.5.1.2.  The date of the examination.

1.17.51.3. Whether or not the examinee has a
contagious or any other illness that affects
the examinee's ability to perform job duties.

1.17.51.4. Results of a 2-step tuberculosis (TB) test,
Mantoux melhod or other method approved
by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC).

1.17.51.5.  The dated signature of the licensed health
: practitioner.

1.17.5.2. Are allowed to work while waiting for the results of the
second siep of the TB tesl when the resulls of the first step
are negative for TB; and

1.17.5.3. Comply with the requirements of the Centers for Disease
Control Guidelines for Preventing the Transmission of
Tuberculosis in Health Facilities Settings, 2005, if the
person has either a posilive TB test, or has had direct
contact or potential for occupational exposure to
Mycobacterium tuberculosis through shared air space with
individuals with infectious tuberculosis.

1.17.6. The Contractor shall ensure employees, contracted employees,
volunteers and independent contractors complete a symptomatology
screen of a TB test if in direct contact with clienls who have & history
of TB or a positive skin test. .

1.17.7. The Contractar shall maintain and store in a secure and confidential
manner, a current personnel file for each employee, student,
volunteer, and conlracted staff. The Contractor shall ensure each
personnel file includes, but is not limited to:

1.17.71. A completed application for employment or a ‘resume,
including: _
1.17.7.1.1. Identification data; and
1.17.7.1.2. The education and work experience of the

employee.

1.17.7.2. A copy of the current job description or agreement, signed
by the individual, that identifies the:
1.17.7.2.1. Position title;
1.17.7.2.2. Qualifications and experience; and o
1.17.7.2.3. Dulies required by the position. ‘ CF
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-1.17.7.3.  Written verification that the person meets the Contractor's
qualifications for the assigned job description, such as
school transcripts, certifications and licenses as applicable.

1.17.7.4. A signed and dated record of orientation.

1.17.7.5. A copy of each current New Hampshire license, registration
or certification in health care field and CPR certification, if
applicable.

1.17.7.6.  Records of screening for communicable diseases resulls
required above.

1.17.7.7. Writlen performance appraisals for each year of
employment -including descriptions of any corrective
actions, supervision, or training determined necessary by
the individual's supervisor.

1.17.7.8. Documentation of annual in-service education.

1.17.7.9.  Information on the general content and length of all
continuing education or educational programs attended/

1.17.7.10. A signed statement acknowledging the receipt of the
Contractor's policy setling forth the client's rights and
responsibilities, including confidentiality requirements, and
acknowledging training and implementation of the policy.

1.17.7.11. A statement thal is signed by the individual at the time of
initial offer of employment and annually thereafter, stating
the individual:

1.17.7.11.1. Does not have a felony convidion in this or
any other slate that has not been disclosed
to the Department;

1.17.7.11.2.  Has not been convicted of a sexual assault,
other violent crime, assault, fraud, abuse,
neglect or exploitation or pose a threat to
the health, safety or well-being of a client;
and

1.17.7.11.3.  Has not had a finding by the department or
any administrative agency in this or any
other state for assault, fraud, abuse, neglect
or exploitation of any person; and

1.17.7.11.4. Documentation of the criminal records
check.

03
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1.17.8. The Contractor shall meet the minimum staffing requirements to
provide the scope of work in this contract as follows:

1.17.8.1. A minimum of one (1) licensed supervisor, defined as:

1.17.8.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug
Counselor (MLADC);

1.17.8.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC)
who also holds the Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

1.17.8.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

1.17.8.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the
services provided and the number of individuals served
including but not limited to:

1.17.8.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCS,
LADCs and individuals licensed by the Board
of Méntal Health Practice or Board of
Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver
any clinical or recovery support services within
their scope of practice.

1.17.8.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals
who have completed the required coursework
for licensure by the Board of Alcohol and Other
Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental Health
Praclice or Board of Psychology and are
working to accumulate the work experience
required for licensure. Unlicensed counselors
may deliver any clinical or recovery support
services within their scope of knowledge
provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

1.17.8.2.3. Cerlified Recovery Support workers (CRSWs)
who may deliver intensive case management
and other recovery support services within
their scope of practice provided that they are
under the direct supervision of a licensed
sSupervisor.

1.17.8.2.4. Uncertified.recovery support workers defined
as individuals who are working to accumulate
the work experience required for certification
as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case

management and other recovery Eﬁ';port
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services within their scope of knowledge
provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor,

1.47.9. The Contractor shall ensure no more than twelve (12) staff are
supervised by a licensed supervisor unless the Department has
approved an alternalive supervision plan, The Contractor shall:

1.17.9.1. Provide ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular
intervals, that include, but are not limited to:

1.17.9.1.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions
for resources or therapeutic approaches, co-
therapy, and periodic assessment of progress;
and '

1.17.9.1.2. Group supervision to help optimize the
learning experience, when enough candidates
are under supervision.

1.17.10. The Contractor shall ensure all unlicensed staff providing treatment,
education and/or recovery support services are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

1.17.11. The Contractor shall ensure no more than twelve (12} unlicensed staff
are supervised by a licensed supervisor unless the Department has
approved an alternative supervision plan.

1.17.12. The Contractor shall ensure unlicensed counselors receive a minimum
of one (1) hour of supervision for every forty (40) hours of direct client
contact. .

1.17.13. The Contraclor shall ensure supervision is provided on an individual
or group basis, or boih, depending upon the employee's need,
experience and skill level.

‘ 1.17.14. The Contractor shall ensure supervision includes the following
techniques:

1.17.14.1. Review of case records;

1.17.14.2.  Observation of interactions with clients;
1.17.14.3.  Skill development; and

1.17.14.4. Review of case management activities.

1.17.15. The Contractor shall ensure supervisors maintain a log. of the
supervision date, duration, content and who was supervised by whom.

1.17.16. The Contractor shall ensure licensed or certified employees. receive
supervision in accordance with the requirement of their Iicens[nj
&
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1.17.17. The Contractor shall provide training to staff on:

1.17.17.1 Knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific
applicalion to the practice issues faced by the supervisee;

1.17.17.2.The 12 Care Functions;

1.17.17.3.The Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge,
Skills, and Attitudes of Professional Practice; and

1.17.17.4.The standards of practice and ethical conduct, with
particular emphasis given to the counselor's role and
appropriate responsibilities; professional boundaries; and
power dynamics as well as appropriate information security
and confidentiality practices for handling protected health
information (PHI) and substance use disorder treatment
records, as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2.

1.17.18. The Contractor shall nolify the Department, in writing, of changes in
any personnel with a copy of the current resume who spend a
minimum of 10% of their work time providing substance use disorder
treatment and/or recovery support services.

1.17.19. The Contraclor shall employ an administrator responsible for day-to-
day operalions. The Cantractor shall:

1.17.19.1.Maintai